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Certain statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are forward-looking and are made pursuant to the safe
harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, In addition, we may make other written or
oral communications from time to time that contain forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements convey
our current expectations or forecast future events. All statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, other
than statements of historical fact, are forward-looking statements. Forward-locking statements inctude statements

regarding our future financial position, results of operations, business strategy, budgets, projected costs and plans

”»ou "o

and objectives of management for future operations. The words “may,” “continue,” “estimate,” “intend,” “plan,”
“will,” “believe,” “project,” “expect,” “anticipate” and similar expressions generally identify forward-looking state-
ments but the absence of these words does not necessarily mean that a statement is not forward-looking. Forward-
looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve risks and uncertainties that may cause
actual results to differ materially from those statements. Risk factors that might cause actual results to differ from
those statements include, without imitation, changes in underwriting results affected by adverse economic condi-
tions, fluctuations in the investment markets, changes in the retail marketplace, changes in the laws or regulations
affecting the operations of the Company, changes in the business tactics or strategies of the Company, the financial
condition of the Company's business partners, changes in market forces, litigation, developments in the discontin-
ued bond program and related Highlands arbitration, the ongoing SEC private investigation and the concentrations
of ownership of the Company’s common shares by members of the Sekol family, and other risk factors identified in

our filings with the SEC, any ane of which might materially affect our financial condition and/or results of operations.

Any forward-looking statements speak only as of the date made, We undertake no obligation to update any forward-

or circumstances arising after the date on which they are made.
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS, CUSTOMERS AND AGENTS

During 2006 we continued to face sluggish market conditions in the automobile industry and
responded with a disciplined approach that included maintaining our underwriting standards,
seeking profitable business, concluding three arbitrations for the discontinued bond program
and selling a non-core business. The resuit was net income of $5.5 million, or $1.08 per diluted
share, which is the second highest in the Company’s history.

With the exception of 2004, we have achieved solid profitability over the past several years by
increasing our presence in the automobile lender/dealer market and complementing our market
focus with unemployment compensation and waste industry products, We seek to leverage our
core strengths through a diversified product portfolio to achieve consistent operating results,
while also producing stable returns on our investments.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Net premiums earned declined 5% to $49.1 million for 2006 from $51.7 million last year prima-
rily due to a general agent transferring half of its production to other insurance carriers in the
second half of 2005 (the “Transferred Business”). Growth in our guaranteed auto protection
product during 2006 was primarily offset by lower creditor placed insurance and waste industry
product premiums.

Total revenues were $58.7 million for 2006 compared to $60.6 million a year ago. The decline in
net premiums earned and lower net realized gains on investments was partially offset by a gain
from the sale of American Legal Publishing Corporation (“ALPC”} and higher investment income.
Total losses and loss adjustment expenses increased to $25.6 million in 2006 versus $23.3 mil-
lion in 2005 due to an increase in losses for the discontinued bond program combined with favor-
able loss development in 2005 for our tender/dealer products. Total expenses declined to $51.9
mitlion for 2006 from $52.5 million the prior year due to lower commissions and fewer one-time
expenses compared to 2005. Income before federal income taxes was $6.8 million for 2006 ver-
sus $8.2 million last year. Book value per common share increased 21% to $7.30 at December 31,
2006 from $6.05 at December 31, 2005.

Automobile Lender/Dealer Products

We have several niche products that provide our customers with specialized forms of insurance.
Automobile lender/dealer products represent our largest specialty insurance line. Net premiums
earned for our guaranteed automobile protection (“GAP”) product increased 15% to $11.2 mil-
lion for 2006 versus $9.8 million the prior year due to rate increases and higher volumes from
existing customers. Net premiums earned for ULTIMATE LOSS INSURANCE® (“ULI™), the compa-
ny’s oldest and largest specialty product, declined 11% to $26.0 million in 2006 from $29.1 mil-
lion in 2005. This was primarily due to the full year effect of the Transferred Business, lower lend-
ing volumes for some financial institution customers and the cancellation of a customer in mid-
2006. Lower volumes among certain financial institution customers also impacted net premi-
ums earned for creditor placed insurance (“CPI™), which declined approximately 30% to $1.6 mil-
lion for 2006 from $2.3 million last year.
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Consistent with our ongoing commitment to superior customer service, we created OIC Lender
Services division in 2006. This sharpens Ohio Indemnity’s focus on the lender/dealer market.
We are providing support to this division through increased staff, expanded marketing and
branding activities, and a dedicated website - www.oiclenderservices.com.

Effective January 1, 2007, we entered into a producer-owned reinsurance arrangement with a
new customer whereby we provide voluntary CPl coverage for tractors and residential/commer-
cial mowers as opposed to automaobiles. Under this arrangement, 100% of the customer's pre-
miums and losses will be ceded to its reinsurance company.

Unemployment Compensation Products

Revenues from our unemployment compensation (“UC”) products include net premiums earned
and management fees. Net premiums earned for UC increased 2% to $5.7 million for 2006 ver-
sus $5.6 million the prior year due to an increase in volume for our excess of loss product.
Management fees increased 16% to $0.8 million for 2006 compared to $0.7 million a year ago
due to favorable unemployment experience and pricing actions. These fees fluctuate in relation
to unemployment cycles.

Waste Industry Products

Using reinsurance, we assume certain waste surety bond business and also write surety bonds
on a direct basis and then cede a portion of that business to other insurance carriers. Net pre-
miums earned for our waste industry products (“WIP”) declined 7% to $4.5 million for 2006 from
$4.8 million a year ago due to the program's general insurance agent changing its distribution
of business with the insurance carriers participating in the program. We began participation in
the WIP program in 2004 and it has grown to represent g% of our premium revenue.

Chio Indemnity has been approved by the United States Treasury Department to issue certain
surety bonds, which name the United States government, branch or agency as the obligee on
such bonds. This designation remains important to our efforts to write and assume business
under the WIP program and certain other surety programs.

For more information regarding our financial results, see our 2006 Form 10-K that is included as
part of this Annual Report.

INVESTMENTS

Investment income increased 16% to $3.8 million in 2006 from $3.2 million the prior year. The
increase in investment income was due to growth in fixed income investments combined with
higher yields. Approximately 90% of our investment portfolio is comprised of fixed income secu-
rities with most of those securities representing investment grade municipal bonds. These tax-
exempt securities generally provide more favorable net yields for the portfolio, which con-
tributed to the decline in our effective tax rate to 19.8% in 2006 from 23.0% in 2005.

Net realized gains are recognized on a discretionary basis from time to time based on market condi-
tions. For 2006, there were $0.1 million of net realized gains on investments compared to $1.3 mil-
lion the prior year. At year-end 2006, there were $1.7 million of net unrealized gains in our portfolio.
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COMBINED RATIO

The combined ratio, which is the sum of the loss ratio and the expense ratio, is the traditional
measure of underwriting performance for insurance companies. Our specialty insurance prod-
ucts are underwritten by Ohio Indemnity Company and its combined ratio is generally below
industry averages for property/casualty insurance companies over complete market cycles. Our
annual combined ratio over the past decade has averaged approximately 93%.

For 2006, our combined ratio was 97.9% compared to 93.6% the prior year. The loss ratio
increased to 53.2% in 2006 from 45.8% a year ago partly due to an increase in losses for the dis-
continued bond program. Excluding the discontinued bond program, our loss ratio increased to
49.6% in 2006 compared to 45.0% a year ago primarily due to favorable loss development for
our ULl product line in 2005. The expense ratio improved to 44.7% in 2006 from 47.8% a year
ago primarily due to lower commissions as a result of the Transferred Business in 200s.

ARBITRATION DEVELOPMENTS

At the beginning of 2006, there were four arbitration cases pending concerning the discontinued
bond program. Today, only one is pending due to final resolution of three arbitrations during the
past year.

At December 31, 2006, the $6.4 million reserve related to the discontinued bond program rep-
resents our best estimate of the ultimate liability for this program. Legal fees associated with the
discontinued bond program arbitrations were significant for 2006 and 2005. We expect to incur
additional fees in 2007 for the final arbitration; however, these expenses should be below 2006
as we move toward completion of all matters related to the discontinued bond program.

RATINGS

We were pleased when A.M. Best Company raised Ohio Indemnity's financial strength rating in
june 2006 to “A-" Excellent and its issuer credit rating to “a-". These ratings are important to sev-
eral stakeholder groups, including our agents and policyholders. The increased ratings enabled
us to expand our sales activities during the second half of 2006. Since our products generally
involve long selling cycles, the benefits of these efforts are expected to become more visible in
2008 and beyond.

In December 2006, A.M. Best reaffirmed Ohio Indemnity’s financial strength and issuer credit
ratings, which reflects the progress we continue to achieve in our business.

In June 2006, Demotech, Inc., a recognized industry rating company, reaffirmed Ohio Indemnity’s
Financial Stability Rating® of A", Unsurpassed. This is their highest rating and marks the sixth
consecutive year it has been assigned to Ohio Indemnity. Demotech specifically analyzes an
insurance company’s ability to maintain positive policyholders’ surplus regardless of the severi-
ty of a general economic downturn or deterioration in the insurance underwriting cycle.
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SALE OF AFFILIATE

We continuously review our business portfolio to determine areas that we believe offer the
greatest long-term potential and are compatible with our core strengths. On August 31, 2006,
we sold 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of ALPC for $4.6 million, which resulted in
a $1.7 million after-tax gain ($0.33 per diluted share). ALPC was a wholly owned subsidiary
engaged in the business of codification, publishing and distribution of ordinances for municipal-
ities, counties and states nationwide. This transaction enabled us to unlock value within a non-
core business and reinforces our focus on the Company's specialty insurance products.

SHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAM

Our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 500,000 Common Shares of the
Company in March zoo7. Shares may be repurchased, at times and amounts to be determined
by management, as market conditions warrant in the open market or through privately negotiat-
ed transactions. Repurchased shares will be ptaced in treasury and may subsequently be reis-
sued in connection with acquisitions and/or the Company's stock option plans. This repurchase
program expires on December 31, 2008.

MANAGEMENT

On March 7, 2007, | was appointed to serve as Acting Chief Executive Officer as my father, Si
Sokol, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, is recovering from surgery. These responsibilities
are in addition to my position as President in which | have served since June 1999. This expand-
ed management role will continue until such time as Si is able to resume his duties as Chief
Executive Officer.

LOOKING AHEAD

We continue to look ahead with confidence as we implement our disciplined growth strategy.
Premium revenues for 2007 will be influenced by market conditions in the automobile industry
and the general economy. While current market conditions remain sluggish, plans are being
implemented that are expected to enhance future results. During 2007 we will focus on areas of
our business that offer the greatest long-term opportunity. Lingering effects from the discontin-
ued bond program have been substantially reduced during the past year. We are stronger as a
Company today than a year ago. While our outlook for the Company’s performance in 2007
remains cautious, the long-term potential is positive.

Your continued interest and support are appreciated.

Sincerely,
john S. Sckol

President and Acting Chief Executive Officer
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are forward-looking and are made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. In addition, we may make other written or oral communications from time to time that conrain
forward-looking statements, Forward-looking statements convey our current expectations or forecast future events. All staternents contained in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, other than statements of historical fact, are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements include
statements regarding our future financial position, results of operations, business strategy, budgets, projected costs and plans and objectives of man-
agement for future operadons. The words “may,” “continue,” “gstimate,” “intend,” “plan,” “will,” “believe,” “project,” “expect,” “anticipate” and
similar expressions generally identify forward-looking statements but the absence of these words does not necessarily mean that a statement is not
forward-looking. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve risks and uncertainaes that may cause actual
results to differ materially from those statements. Risk factors that might cause actual results to differ from those statements include, without lim-
itation, changes in underwriting results affected by adverse economic conditions, fluctuations in the investment markets, changes in the retail mar-
ketplace, changes in the laws or regulations affecting the operations of the Company, changes in the business tactics or strategies of the Company,
the financial condition of the Company’s business partners, changes in market forces, litigation, developments in the discontinued bond program
and related Highlands arbitration, the ongoing SEC private investigation and the concentrations of ownership of the Company’s common shares
by members of the Sokol family, and other risk factors identified in our filings with the SEC, any one of which might materially affect our finan-
cial condition and/or results of operations. Any forward-looking statements speak only as of the date made. We undertake no obligation to update
any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances arising after the date on which they are made.
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PART 1
ITEM 1. BUSINES

GENERAL/OVERVIEW

Bancinsurance Corporation is an Ohio insurance holding company primarily engaged in the underwriting of specialized property/casualty insur-
ance products through our wholly-owned subsidiary, Ohio Indemnity Company ("Ohio Indemnity”), an Ohio corporation. Ohio Indemnity is
licensed to transact business in 48 states and the District of Columbia. Undl August 31, 2006, the Company also had a municipal code publish-
ing business segment. On August 31, 2006, the Company sold its municipal code publishing segment as more fully described in
“General/Overview-Sale of Affiliate” below and in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. In addition, our wholly-owned subsidiary,
Ultimate Services Agency, LLC ("USA"), an Ohio limited liability company which we formed in July 2002, isa property/casualty insurance agency.
Financial information for our business segments for the three years ended December 31, 2006 is included in Note 24 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Unless the context indicates otherwise, all references herein to “Bancinsurance,” “we,”
“Registrant,” “us,” “its,” “out” or the "Company” refer to Bancinsurance Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries.

General information about Bancinsurance is available on the Company's websire, www.bancins.com. Information on our website is not and should
not be considered part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Obio Indemmnity Company

The majority of our net premiwns written and premiums earned are derived from three distinct product lines offered by Ohio Indemnity: (1) auto-
mobile lender/dealer; (2) unemployment compensation; and (3) waste industry. In 2006, we had net premiums earned of $49,106,653 with 79%
attributable to our lender/dealer products, 12% attributable to our unemployment compensation products and 9% attributable to our waste indus-
try products.

Automobile Lender/Dealer Products. Our automobile lender/dealer line offers three types of products. First, ULTIMATE LOSS INSUR-
ANCE® (“ULI"), a blanket vendor single interest coverage, is sold to lending institutions, such as banks, savings and loan associations, credit
unions, automobile dealers and finance companies. UL insures against damage to pledged collateral in cases where the collateral is not otherwise
insured. Our standard ULI policy covers physical damage to the collateral in an amount not to exceed the lesser of the collateral’s fair market
value or the outstanding loan balance. ‘This blanket vendor single interest policy is generally written to cover the lending instituton’s complete
portfolio of collateralized personal property loans, which generally consists of automobile loans. Certain ULI policies are eligible for experience
rated and retrospective rated refunds based on loss experience. We also offer supplemental insurance coverages, at additional premium cost, for
losses resulting from unintentional errors in lien filings and conversion, confiscation and skip risks. Conversion risk coverage protects the lender
from unauthorized and wrongful taking of the lender’s collateral. Skip risk coverage protects the lender when a delinquent debtor disappears with
the loan collateral. During 2006, we provided ULI coverage to approximately 400 lending institutions. ‘The premiums charged for ULLare based
on claims experience, loan volumes and general market conditions. ULI products represented 53%, 56% and 69% of our net premivms earned
during 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Second, creditor placed insurance (“CPI”) provides an alternative to our traditional blanket vendor single interest product. While both products
cover the risk of damage to uninsured collateral in a lender’s automobile loan portfolio, CPI covers an automobile lender's loan portfolio through
wracking individual borrowers' insurance coverage. The lender purchases physical damage coverage for loan callateral after a borrower's insurance
has lapsed. The lender then charges the premium to the borrower. The National Association of Insurance Commissioners (“NAIC") developed
a "model act” for CPI in 1996 and several states have adopted its provisions. The model act helped to clarify program parameters that are accept-
able to regulators. Qur CPI product complies with the model act. During 2006, we provided CPI coverage 10 approximately 35 Jending insttu-
tions. CPI products represented 3%, 5% and 4% of our net premiums earned during 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.




Third, guaranteed auto protection insurance ("GAP") pays the difference or “gap” between the amount owed by the customer on a lease or loan
contract and the amount of primary insurance company coverage in the event a vehicle is damaged beyond repair or stolen and never recovered.
The “gap” results from the way loans and leases amortze compared to depreciaton patterns of vehicles. Leasing, low or no down payment loans,
long-term loans (60-84 months) and low trade-in prices contribute to such “gap” amounts. GAP insurance policies insure lenders, lessors and auto
dealers who waive “gap” amounts and elect to purchase GAP insurance to cover the risk assumed by making the waiver. We offer two primary
forms of GAP insurance products. First, voluntary GAP insurance policies are sold to lenders, lessors and auto dealers who in turn sell such poli-
cies directly to the borrower when a vehicle is purchased or leased. Second, blanket GAP insurance policies are sold to lessors who typically waive
“gap” amounts on all of their leases. During 2006, we provided GAP coverage to approximately 800 lenders, lessors and auto dealers. GAP prod-
ucts represented 23%, 19% and 11% of our net premiums carned during 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Unemployment Compensation Products. Cur unemployment compensation (“UC”) products are utilized by qualified entities that elecr not to
pay the unemployment compensation taxes and instead reimburse state unemployment agencies for benefits paid by the agencies to the entites’
former employees. Through our UCassure® and excess of loss products, we indemnify the qualified entity for Hability associated with their reim-
bursing obligations. In addiion, we underwrite surety bonds that certain states require employers to post in order to obtain reimbursing status
for their unemployment compensation obligations. Qur bonded service program was discontinued at the end of 2003 and replaced by our
UCassure® program.

During 2006, we provided UC insurance coverage to approximately 100 customers. UC products represented 12%, 11% and 10% of our net pre-
miums earned during 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Waste Industry Products. Our waste industry products (“WIP") consist of certain surety bonds produced and administered by a general insurance
agent. Under this program, the Company both assumes and cedes certain waste surety bond business under two quota share reinsurance arrange-
ments. In the second quarter of 2004, the Company entered into a 50% quota share reinsurance arrangement whereby the Company assumed
50% of all waste surety bonds with liability limits up to $4.0 million from two insurance carriers. Effective January 1, 2005, the reinsurance
arrangement was amended whereby the Company’s assumed participation was reduced from 50% to 25%. Effective August 1, 2006, the reinsur-
ance arrangement was further amended whereby the Company assumed 50% of all waste surety bonds with liability limits up to $1.2 million. In
additon to assuming business, the Company also writes on a direct basis waste surety bonds with liability limits up to our Treasury limit ($3.6 mii-
lion during 2006). ‘The Company then cedes 50% of that business to an insurance carrier under a reinsurance arrangement. All surety bonds writ-
ten directly and assumed under this program are preduced and administered by a general insurance agent that is affiliated with one of the insur-
ance carriers participating in the program. The majority of the surety bonds under the program satisfy the closure/post-closure financial respon-
sibility obligations imposed on hazardous and solid waste treatment, storage and disposal facilities pursuant to Subtitles C and D of the Federal
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (*RCRA”). Closure/post-closure bonds cover future costs to close and monitor a regulated site such as
a landfill. All of the surety bonds are indemnified by the principal and collatera!l is maintained on the majerity of the bonds. The indemnificagons
and collateralization of this program reduces the risk of loss.

During 2006, we provided WIP coverage to approximately 80 customers. WIP represented 9%, 9% and 4% of our net premiums earned during
2006, 2005 and 2004, respecdvely.

The Company has certain other specialty products which consist primarily of service contracts and other surety products. Net premiums earned
for these products were $251,191, $258,798 and $159,439 during 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectvely. In addigon, from 2001 untl the end of the
second quarter of 2004, the Company participated in a bail and immigratien bond program. This program was discontinued in the second quar-
ter of 2004. For a more detailed description of this program, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condidon and Results of
Operations, Overview-Discontinued Bond Program” below and Note 16 to the Consclidated Financial Statements,

We sell our insurance products through multiple distribution channels, including three managing general agents, approximately thirty-five inde-
pendent agents and direct sales.

American Legal Publisking Corporation

On August 31, 2006, the Company sold its wholly-owned subsidiary, American Legal Publishing Corporation ("ALPC"), which codifies, publish-
es, supplements and distributes ordinances for municipalities and counties nationwide in addidon to state governments. Ordinance codification is
the process of collecting, organizing and publishing legislation for state and local governments. ALPC also provides information management serv-
ices which includes electronic publishing, document imaging and internet hosting services. ALPC represented 4%, 6% and 7% of our total rev-
enues during 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. See “General/Overview-Sale of Affiliate” below and Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for more information concerning this transaction.

Ultimate Services Agency, LLC
In July 2002, we formed Ultimate Services Agency, LLC ("USA"}, a wholly-owned subsidiary. We formed USA to act as an agency for placing and
servicing property/casualty insurance policies offered and underwritten by Ghio Indemnity and by other property/casualty insurance companies.

SALE OF AFFILIATE

On August 31, 2006, the Company entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”) with A.L.P. Acquisition Ce., Inc., an Ohio cor-
poration (the “Purchaser™), whereby the Company sold 100% of the issued and outstanding comimon shares of ALPC to the Purchaser for
$4,620,000 subject to customary post-closing adjustments (the “Sale™). The Company received cash of $4,150,000 and a promissory note in the
principal amount of $470,000 (the “Promissory Note”) from the Purchaser at the closing in connection with the Sale. On September 1, 2006, the
Purchaser made a principal payment to the Company on the Promissory Note in the amount of $345,000, bringing the remaining principal bal-




ance of the Promissory Note to $125,000 which is to be repaid in six monthly installments and bears interest at an annual rate of 8.0%. As of
December 31, 2006, the principal balance of the promissory note was $62,500.

The Purchaser was organized by Steven G. Wolf, who has served as President of ALPC since 1984 and as a director of ALPC since 2000. Mr.
Wolf and certain other employees of ALPC collectively own a significant equity interest in the Purchaser.

In conjunction with the Sale, on August 31, 2006, the Company also inade an investment (the “Investment”) in the Purchaser in the amount of
$250,000, consisting of (1) a $137,500 cash purchase of equity securities of the Purchaser and (2) a $112,500 loan to the Purchaser in the form of
a subordinated convertible promissory note (the “Convertible Note”). The Convertible Note is to be repaid on August 31, 2016 (if not previous-
ly converted), bears interest at an annual rate of 8.0% and is convertible at any time at the option of the Company into additional equity securi-
ties of the Purchaser.

In connection with the Sale and the Investment, the Company recorded a net realized gain of approximately $2.5 million ($1.7 million after tax)
for the period ended December 31, 2006.

COMPETITION

The insurance business is highly competitive with over 3,000 property/casualty insurance companies in the United States. The majority of such
property/casualty insurers are not engaged in the specialty lines of property/casualty insurance which we underwrite. Some of our competitors
may: (1) offer more diversified insurance coverage; (2) have greater financial resources; (3) offer lower premiums; (4) have more complete and com-
plex product lines; (5) have greater pricing flexibility; (6) have different marketing techniques; (7) have a higher financial rating; and/or (8) provide
berter agent compensation. Management believes that one of our competitive advantages is specializing in limited insurance lines. This special-
ization allows us to refine our underwriting and claims techniques, which in turn, provides agents and insureds with superior service.

REINSURANCE

The Company assumes and cedes reinsurance with other insurers and reinsurers. Such arrangements serve to enhance the Company’s capacity to
write business, provide greater diversification, align business partners with the Company’s interests, and/or limit the Company’s maximum loss
arising from certain risks. Although reinsurance does not discharge the original insurer from its primary liability to its policyholders, it is the prac-
tice of insurers for accounting purposes to treat reinsured risks as risks of the reinsurer. The primary insurer would reassume liabiiity in those sit-
uations where the reinsurer is unable to meet the obligations it assumed under the reinsurance agreement. The ability to collect reinsurance is sub-
ject to the solvency of the reinsurers and/or collateral provided under the contract.

Several of our lender/dealer insurance producers have formed sister reinsurance companies, commonly referred to as a producer-owned reinsur-
ance company (“PORC”). The primary reason for an insurance producer to form a PORC is to realize the underwriting profits and investment
income from the insurance premiums generated by that producer. In return for ceding business w the PORC, the Company receives a ceding
commission, which is based on a percentage of the premiums ceded. Such arrangements align business parmers with the Company’s interests
while preserving valued customer relationships. All of the Company’s lender/dealer ceded reinsurance transactions are PORC arrangements.

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company entered into a producer-owned reinsurance arrangement with a new lender/dealer producer whereby
100% of that producer’s premiums (along with the associated risk) was ceded to its PORC. This reinsurance arrangement was cancelled effective
December 31, 2003. For this reinsurance arrangement, the Company has obtained collateral in the form of a lewer of credit from the reinsurer
to secure its obligations. Under the provisions of the reinsurance agreement, the collateral must be equal to or greater than 102% of the rein-
sured reserves and the Company has immediate access to such collateral if necessary. Under this arrangement, the Company ceded premiums
earned of $67,969, $115,790 and $4,435,659 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Effective Qctaber |, 2003, the Company entered into a producer-owned reinsurance arrangement with an existing lender/dealer customer where-
by 100% of thar customer’s premiums (along with the associated risk) was ceded to its PORC. For this reinsurance arrangement, the Company
has obtained collateral in the form of a trust from the reinsurer to secure its obligations. Under the provisions of the reinsurance agreement, the
collateral must be equal to or greater than 102% of the reinsured reserves and the Company has immediate access to such collateral if necessary.
Under this arrangement, the Company ceded premiums earned of $2,266,090, $1,727,303 and 8894,717 for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2003 and 2004, respectively.

Beginning in the second quarter of 2004, the Company entered into a quota share reinsurance arrangement with certain insurance carriers where-
by the Company assumed and ceded 50% of certain waste surety bond business. Effective January 1, 2005, the reinsurance arrangement was
amended whereby the Company’s assumed participation was reduced from 50% to 25%. Effective August 1, 2006, the reinsurance arrangement
was further amended whereby the Company’s assumed participation was increased from 25% 1o 50%. Under this program, the Company assumed
premiums earned of $3,283,690, $4,302,509 and $1,980,492 during 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Also, the Company ceded premiums earned
of $1,235,624, $679,563 and $131,051 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2003, and 2004, respectively.

Effective January 1, 2005, the Company entered into a producer-owned reinsurance arrangement with a guaranteed auto protection insurance
agent whereby 100% of that agent’s premiums (along with the associated risk) were ceded to its PORC. For this reinsurance arrangement, the
Company has obtained collateral in the form of a letter of credit to secure its obligations. Under the provisions of the reinsurance agreement, the
collateral must be equal to or greater than 102% of the reinsured reserves and the Company has immediate access to such collateral if necessary.
Under this arrangement, the Company ceded premiums earned of $1,987,640, $734,433 and $0 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively.




In additon w the above, the Company has other reinsurance arrangements including two automaobile lender/dealer PORC quota share arrange-
ments, several quota share arrangements for certain contract and escrow surety bond business and a reinsurance arrangement for a vehicle service
contract program. Under these arrangements, the Company ceded premiums earned of $708,430, $927,455 and $1,113,639 for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Also, the Company assumed premiums earned of $60,535, 30 and $0 for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

From 2001 until the end of the second quarter of 2004, the Company participated in a bail and immigration bond program. This program was
discontinued in the second guarter of 2004. For a more detailed description of this program, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Conditon and Results of Operations, Overview-Discontinued Bond Program” below and Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

For more information concerning the Company's reinsurance transactions, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condidon
and Results of Operadons” and Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

REGULATION

Insurance Company Regulation
Ohio Indemnity, as an Ohio property/casualty insurance corporation, is subject to the regulatory supervision of the Ghio Department of Insurance
(the “Deparunent”). In addidon, Ohio Indemnity is subject to reguladon in each jurisdiction in which it is licensed to write insurance.

Such regulation relates to, among other matters: licensing of insurers and their agents, authorized lines of business, capital and surplus require-
ments, rate and form approvals, claims practices, mandated participadon in shared markets, reserve requirements, insurer solvency, investment cri-
teria, underwriting limitatons, affiliate transactions, dividend limitations, changes in control and a variety of other financial and non-financial com-
ponents of our business.

Al insurance companies must file annual financial statements (statutory basis) in states where they are authorized to do business and are subject to
regular and special examinations by the regulatory agencies of those states. In March and April of 2005, the Department conducted a targeted on-
site examination of Ohio Indemnity’s discontinued bond program and statutory financial condition at December 31, 2004. On September 12,
2005, the Departmment issued its targeted on-site examination report and no adjustments to the smwtory financial statements were required as a
result of the examinaton. [n Decernber 2006, the Department initiated its regular examinaton of Ohio Indemnity which is currently ongoing.

Numerous states require deposits of assets by insurance companies to protect policyholders. Such deposits must consist of securities which com-
ply with standards established by the particular state's insurance department. As of December 31, 2006, we have securites with a carrying value
of $4,538,220 deposited with eleven state insurance departments. The deposits, typically required by a state’s insurance department on admission
to do insurance business in such state, may be increased periodically as mandated by applicable statutory or regulatory requirements.

Obio Insurance Holding Company System Regulation

We are also subject to the Ohio Insurance Holding Company System Regulatory Act, as amended (the "Ohio Insurance Holding Company Act),
which requires that nodce of the proposed payment of any dividend or other distribution by Ohio Indemnity be given to the Ohio Superintendent
of Insurance within five business days of its declaradon and at least ten days prior to payment. If such dividend or disribution is paid from other
than earned surplus or the dividend or distribution, together with any other dividends or distributions made within the preceding 12 months,
exceed the greater of: {1} 10% of Ohio Indemnity’s statutory surplus as of the immediately preceding December 31, or (2) the statutory net income
of Ohio Indemnity for the immediately preceding calendar year, notice of the proposed dividend or distribudon must be given to the
Superintendent at least 30 days prior to payment, and the Superintendent may disapprove the dividend or distribution within the 30 day period
following receipt of such notice.

Pursuant to the Ghio Insurance Holding Company Act, no person may acquire, directly or indirectly, 10% or more of the outstanding voting secu-
ridies of Bancinsurance or Chio Indemnity, uniess the Ohio Superintendent of Insurance has approved such acquisidon. The determinadon of
whether to approve any such acquisition is based on a variety of factors, including an evaluation of the acquirer’s financial condition, the competence
of its management and whether compettion in Ohio would be reduced. In addidon, under the Ohio Insurance Holding Company Act, certain other
material transactions involving Ohio Indemnity and its affiliates must he disclosed to the Ohio Superintendent of Insurance not less than 30 days
prior to the effective date of the transaction. The Superintendent may elect not to approve such transacdon within such 30-day period if it does not
meet the required standards. Transactions requiring approval by the Superintendent include: sales, purchases, or exchanges of assets; loans and
extensions of credit; and investments not in compliance with statutory guidelines. Ohio Indemnity is also required under the Ohio Insurance
Holding Company Act to file periodic and updated statements reflecting the current status of its holding company system, the existence of any relat-
ed-party transactions and certain financial information relating to any person who directly or indirectly controls (presumed to exist with 10% vot-
ing controly Ohio Indemnity. We believe that we are in compliance with the Ohio Insurance Holding Company Act and the related regulations.

National Association of Insurance Commissioners

All states have adopted the financial reporting form of the Nadonal Association of Insurance Commissioners (“NAIC”), which form is typically
referred to as the NAIC “annual statement.” In addition, most states, including Ohio, generally defer to NAIC with respect to statutory account-
ing practices and procedures. In this regard, NAIC has a substantal degree of practical influence and is able to accomplish quasi-legislative ini-
datves through amendments to the NAIC annual statement and applicable smtutory accounting practces and procedures. The Department
requires that insurance companies domiciled in the State of Ohio prepare their statutory basis financial statements in accordance with the NAIC
Accounting Practices and Procedures Manual.




The NAIC applies a risk-based capital test to property/casualty insurers. Ohio also applies the NAIC risk-based capital test. The risk-based cap-
ital test serves as a benchmark of an insurance enterprise’s solvency by establishing statutory surplus targets which will require certain company
level or regulatory level actions. Ohio Indemnity’s total adjusted capital was in excess of all required action levels as of December 31, 2006.

Other Regulatory Matters

Broker Contingent Commission. In 2004, the New York attorney general began an investigation into insurance broker activities connected with
contingent commission agreements. The investigation led to lawsuits and prompted other attorney generals and state insurance departments to
conduct further investigations. We have not received any formal inquiries from any state attorney general and/or insurance department. The
NAIC has proposed a model act on these agreements for agents and brokers, and several states have indicated they will adopt the model act or
some variation of the proposed act. We continue to closely monitor all proposals.

Federal Insurance Charter. The Commerce Committee of the United States Senate has held hearings on federal involvement in the regulation of
the insurance industry. The hearings included a discussion of a proposed federal charter that would allow companies to operate under federal,
rather than state, regulation. Any proposed legislation could have a significant impact on the insurance industry, and we continue to monitor all
proposals. We anticipate there will be further legislative activity during 2007,

EMPLOYEES
As of February 7, 2007, we employed approximately 33 full-time employees and one part-time employee. None of our employees are represent-
ed by a collective hargaining agreement, and we are not aware of any efforts to unionize our employees.

SERVICE MARKS

Our service marks “ULTIMATE LOSS INSURANCE,” "UTIMATE GAP" and “UCASSURE,” are registered with the United States Patent
and Trademark Office and the State of Ohio. We have also developed commen law rights in “BI BANCINSURANCE CORPORATION" (styl-
ized letters) in each state in which Bancinsurance is operating. While these service marks are important to us, we do not believe our business is
materially dependent on any one of them.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

RISK FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

The following cautionary discussion of risks and uncertainties relevant to our business include factors we believe could cause our actual results to
differ materially from expected and historical results. Other factors beyond these listed below, including factors unknown to us and factors known
to us which we have currendy determined not to be material, could adversely affect us.

Economic Factors Impacting our Specialty Insurance Products

"The majority of our premium revenues are dependent on the demand for our customers' automobile financing programs. Increased automobile
sales generally cause increased demand for automobile financing and, in turn, our lender/dealer products. Our ULI claims experience is tmpact-
ed by the rate of loan defaults, bankruptcies and automobile repossessions among our customers. As delinquency dollars rise, our claims experi-
ence is expected to increase. In addition, the state of the used car market has a direct impact on our GAP claims. As used car prices decling, there
is a larger gap between the balance of the loan/lease and the actual cash value of the automobile, which results in higher severity of our GAP claims.
Our UC products are impacted by unemployment levels. As unemployment levels rise, we could experience an increase in the frequency of claims.
Such economic factors could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and/or operating results.

Concentration in Specialty Insurance Products

Due to our focus on insuring specialty risks, such as lender collateral protection, unemployment compensation and waste industry bonds, our oper-
ations could be more exposed than our more diversified competitors to the effects of changes in economic, competitive or regulatory conditions
affecting such specialty markets. These changes may include, but are not limited to, economic downturns, increased competition and the enact-
ment and enforcement of federal and state regulations that may adversely impact these markets. Such factors could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and/or operating results.

Geographic Concentration

We are licensed to operate in 48 states and the District of Columbia. The percentage of our direct premiums written that related to policies issued
to customers in Ohio, Rhode Island, Connecticut, Michigan, California, Massachusetts and New York were 28.2%, 11.9%, 9.5%, 7.2%, 6.7%,
6.7% and 5.6%, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2006. Therefore, a significant percentage of our revenues (75.8%) are concentrat-
ed in 2 small number of states, and our revenues and profitability are subject to prevailing regulatory, legal, economic, demographic, competitive
and other conditions in these states. Changes in any of these conditions could make it less profitable for us to do business in Ohio, Rhode Island,
Connecticut, Michigan, California, Massachusetts, New York and the other states in which we operate.

Reinsurance Risk

Historically, we have used reinsurance to increase our underwriting capacity and align the interests of our business parmers with the Company’s
interests. Qur reinsurance facilities generally are subject to annual renewal, We are subject to credit risk with respect to our reinsurers, as the ced-
ing of risk to reinsurers does not relieve us of our primary liability to our insureds. Although we place our reinsurance with reinsurers we believe
to be financially stable and/or obtain collateral on our reinsurance, a significant reinsurer’s inability or unwillingness to make payment under the
terms of a reinsurance treaty could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and/or operating results.




Possible Inadequacy of Loss Reserves

We record reserve liabilides for the estimated future payment of losses and loss adjustment expenses (“LAE”) for both reported and unreported
claims. The establishment of appropriate reserves is an inherently uncertain process, involving actuarial and stadstical projections of what we
expect to be the cost of the ultimaze settlement and administration of claims based on historical claims information, estimates of future trends in
claims severity and other variable factors such as infladon. Due to the inherent unceruainty in esdmating reserves, it has been necessary in the past,
and may continue to be necessary in the future, to revise estimated liabilities as reflected in our reserves for claims and related expenses. To the
extent our reserves are deficient and are increased, the amount of such increase is treated as a charge to earnings in the period in which the defi-
ciency is recognized.

Ability to Price the Risks We Underwrite Accurately

Our results of operations and financial condition depend on our ability to underwrite and set premium razes accurately for the risks we underwrite.
Rate adequacy is necessary to generate sufficient premiums to pay losses, LAE and underwriting expenses and to earn a profit. To set our premi-
um rates accurately, we must collect and properly analyze a substantial amount of data; develop, test and apply appropriate rating formulas; close-
ly monitor and umely recognize changes in trends; and project both severity and frequency of losses with reasonable accuracy, Qur ability to under-
take these efforts successfully, and as a result set our premium rates accurately, is subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, some of which are
outside our control, including but not limited to:

* the availability of sufficient reliable data and our ability to properly analyze available data;
* the uncertainties that inherently characterize esdmates and assumptions;

* gur selection and application of appropriate rating and pricing techniques; and

* changes in legal standards and claim settlement practices,

Consequently, we could under price risks, which would negatively affect our profic margins, or we could overprice risks, which could reduce our
sales volume and competitiveness. Such factors could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and/or operating results.

Reliance on General Agents

Approximately $15.2 million (27.4%} of our direct premiums written for 2006 were distributed amongst four general agents as follows: $5.8 mil-
lion {10.5%), $4.7 million (8.5%), $3.0 million (5.4%) and $1.7 million (3.0%). These general agents are not obligated to promote the Company’s
insurance programs and may sell competitors’ insurance programs. As a result, our business depends in part on the marketing efforts of these gen-
eral agents and on our ability to offer insurance programs and services that meet the requirements of the clients and customers of these agents. In
addition, these relatonships may be discontinued, or if they do condnue, they may not remain profitzble for us. A loss of all or substandally all
the business produced by one or more of these general agents could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condidon and/or oper-
ating results.

General Agents May Exceed Their Authority

One of our general agents underwrites policies on a binding authority basis. This agent produced $3.0 million (5.4%) of our direct premiums writ-
ten during 2006. Binding authority business poses the risk that policies may be quoted and bound by the generat agent prior to our underwritng
review. If the general agent exceeds this authority by binding us on a risk that does not comply with our underwriting guidelines, we are at risk for
claims that occur under that policy during the period from its issue date until we review the policy and cancel it. Such risks could have a materi-
al adverse effect on our business, financial condition and/or operating results.

Risk of Fraud or Negligence with our Insurance Agents

We rely, in part, on insurance agents to sell our insurance products and services. During 2006, our insurance agents produced approximately 44%
of our direct premiums written. Because we use independent insurance agents, we are at risk that the agents will engage in negligent or fraudu-
lent aces, including:

* binding Ohio Indemnity and not reporting the policies and related premium to Ohio Indemnity;

* failing to accurarely report premiums and/or claims to Ohio Indemnity;

* failing to obtain collateral and/or monitor insurance risk;

* failing to return commissions to Ohio Indemnity in situations where commissions have been advanced and should be returned to Chio
Indemnity based on the financial performance of the agents’ business; and

* financial hardship (i.e. liquidity problems, bankruptey, liquidation, etc.) of the agent which could lead to lost business and/or increased loss
exposure for Ohio Indemnicy.

Any such negligent or fraudulent acts could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and/or operating results.

Tmportance of Industry Ratings

Ohio Indemnity received an “A-" (Excellent) annual rating in December 2006 from A.M. Best. AM. Best generally assigns ratings based on an
insurance company’s ability to pay policyholder obligations {not based on protection of investors) and focuses on capital adequacy, loss and loss
expense reserve adequacy and operating performance. If our perforiance in these areas decline, A.M. Best could downgrade our ratng. A down-
grade of our rating could cause our current and future insurance agents and insureds to choose other, more highly rated competitors.  In addi-
tion, we believe that not having an “A-" rating or better could impact an agents’ or customers’ willingness to place business with Ohio Indemnity.




Importance of Treasury Listing

Ohio Indemnity is currently listed on the United States Treasury Department’s listing of approved surety companies (“Ireasury Listing”). This
listing is required for all surety companies who issue or reinsure surety bonds naming the United States government or any branch or agency of
the United States government as the obligee. The Treasury Listing also establishes a company’s maximum underwTiting amount on any one sure-
ty bond based on its capital and surplus. Many governmental entities, both federal and non-federal, that issue landfill licenses and permits will
accept surety bonds only from insurance companies that are on the Treasury Listng. If Ohio Indemnity’s Treasury Listng were revoked, or if its
surety bond limit were reduced, it would eliminate or reduce the Company’s ability to write and assume business under the waste surety bond pro-
gratn and certain other surety bond programs. This could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and/or operating
results.

Regulation

General. Ohio Indemnity is subject 1o regulation by governmental agencies in Ohio, its domiciliary state, and the 48 other states and the District
of Columbia in which Ohio Indemnity is licensed or admitted to sell insurance. Most insurance regulations are designed to protect the interests
of insurance policyholders, as opposed to the interests of shareholders. These regulations generally are administered by a department of insurance
in each state and relate to, among other things, licensing of insurers and their agents, authorized lines of business, capital and surplus requirements,
rate and form approvals, claims practices, mandated participation in shared markets, reserve requirements, insurer solvency, investment criteria,
underwriting limitations, affiliate transactions, dividend limitations, changes in control and a variety of other financial and non-financial matters.
Significant changes in these laws and regulations could adversely affect our ability to operate and/or make it more expensive to conduct our busi-
ness. State insurance departments also conduct periodic examinations of the affairs of insurance companies and require the filing of annual and
other reports relating to financial condition, holding company issues and other matters, These regulatory requirements may adversely affect our
ability to achieve some or all of our business objectives. We are unable to predict what additional laws and regulations, if any, affecting our busi-
ness may be promulgated in the future or how they might be interpreted.

Required Licensing. We operate under insurance licenses issued by various state insurance authorities. Regulatory authorities have broad discre-
tion to deny or revoke licenses for varjous reasons, including the violation of regulations. In some instances, where there is uncertainty as to the
application of a regulation, we follow practices based on our interpretations of regulations or practices that we believe generally to be followed by
the industry. These practices may turn out to be different from the interpretations of regulatory authorities. If we do not have the requisite licens-
es and approvals or do not comply with applicable regulatory requirements, insurance regutatory authorities could preclude or temporarily sus-
pend us from carrying on some or all of our activities or otherwise penalize us. This could adversely affect our ability to operate our business.
Further, changes in the level of regulation of the insurance industry or changes in laws or regulations themselves or interpretations by regulatory
authorities could adversely affect our ability to operate our business.

Premium Rate Filings. Most states have insurance laws requiring that rate schedules and other information be filed with the state’s regulatory
authority, either directly or through a rating organization with which the insurer is affiliated. “The regulatory authority may disapprove of a pre-
mium rate filing if it finds that the rates are inadequate, excessive or unfairly discriminatory. Rates vary by class of business, hazard assumed and
size of risk, and are not necessarily uniform for all insurers. Many states have recently adopted laws which limit the ability of insurance compa-
nies ro increase rates. To date, such limitations have not had a material impact on us, and we have no knowledge of any such limitations that may
materially affect our future results of operations. However, there can be no assurance that such limitadons will not have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and/or operating results in the future.

Risk-Based Capital. The NAIC has adopted a system to test the adequacy of statutory capital, known as “risk-based capital.” This system estab-
lishes the minimum amount of risk-based capital necessary for a company to support its overall business operations. It identifies property/casual-
tv insurers that may be inadequately capitalized by looking at certain inherent risks of each insurer’s assets and liabilities and its mix of net written
premiums. Failure to meet applicable risk-based capital requirements or minimum statutory capital requirements could subject Ohio Indemnity
to further examination or corrective action imposed by state regulators, including limitations on our writing of additional business, state supervi-
sion, rehabilitadon or even liquidation. Any changes in existing risk-based capital requirements or minimum staturory capital requirements may
require us to increase our statutory capital levels, which we may be unable to do, or could cause Ohio Indemnity to lose its regulatory authority
to conduct its business.

Transactions Between Qur Insurance Subsidiary_and Affiliates. We operate as an insurance holding company. “Transactions between Ohio

Indemnity and other members of our holding company system generally must be disclosed to the state regulators, and prior approval of the appli-
cable regulator generally is required before any material or extraordinary transaction may be consummated. State regulators may refuse to approve
or delay approval of such a transaction, which may impact our ability to operate efficiently.

Dependence on Our Insurance Subsidiary to Meet Our Obligations

We are a holding company and a legal entity separate and distinct from our insurance subsidiary. As a holding company without significant oper-
ations of our own, our principal sources of our funds are dividends and other payments from our subsidiaries which include, among others, Ohio
Indenmity. State insurance laws limit the ability of Ohio Indemnity to pay dividends and require Ohio Indemnity to maintain specified minimum
levels of statutory capital and surplus. In general, these restrictions limit the aggregate amount of dividends or other distributions that Ohio
Indemnity may declare or pay within any twelve-month period without advance regulatory approval. Generally, this limitation is the greater of
statutory net income for the preceding calendar year or 10% of the statutory surplus at the end of the preceding calendar year. In addition, insur-
ance regulators have broad powers to prevent reduction of statutory surplus to inadequate levels and could refuse to permit the payment of divi-
dends of the maximum amounts calculated under any applicable formula, As a result, we may not be able to receive dividends from Ohio Indemnity
at times and in amounts necessary to meet our debt service obligations or to pay dividends to our shareholders and/or corporate expenses. During
2006, the maximum amount of dividends that may be paid to Bancinsurance by Ohio Indemnity without prior approval is imited to $4,915,331.
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Severe Weather Conditions and Other Catastrophes

Our property business is exposed to the risk of severe weather conditions and other catastrophes such as severe winter weather, tornadoes, wind-
storms, earthquakes, hail and ice storms, thunderstorms and fires, and other events such as explosions, terrorist attacks and riots. The incidence and
severity of severe weather conditions and catastrophes are inherently unpredictable. Severe weather conditions and catastrophes can cause losses in
all of our property lines and generally result in an increase in the number of claims incurred as well as the amount of reimbursement sought by
claimants. During 2006, we were not materially impacted by severe weather. It is possible that a carstrophic event or muluple catastrophic events
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and/or operating results.

Adverse Securities Market Conditions Can Impact Our Investment Portfolio
Our results of operations depend, in part, on the performance of our investnents. We own fixed maturity and equity securities that are subject to:

* credit risk, which is the risk that our investunents will decrease in value due to unfavorable changes in the financial prospects andfor a down-
grade in the credit rating of an endty in which we have invested;

* equity price risk, which is the risk thar we will incur economic loss due to a decline in share prices; and

* interest rate risk, which is the risk that our investments may decrease in value due to changes in interest rates.

Fluctuations in interest rates affect our returns on and the fair value of fixed maturity securities. Unrealized gains and losses on fixed maturity secu-
rities are recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income, net of taxes, and increase or decrease our shareholders’ equity. An increase in
interest rates could reduce the fair value of our investments in fixed mawrity securities. In addition, defaults by third parties who fail to pay or per-
form obligatons could reduce our investment income and realized investment gains and could result in investment losses in our portfolio.

Our equity portfolio is subject o economic loss from the decline in preferred and common share prices. As a result, the value of these investments
will be determined by the specific financial prospects of these individual companies, as well as the equity markets in general.

Changes in Interest Rates Could Impact our Debt Securities

Our trust preferred debt and revolving line of credit are subject to interest rate risk. The interest rate on the trust preferred debt is determined
based upon three month LIBOR and the interest rate on the revolving line of credit is determined based upon the prime rate. Increases in the pre-
vailing interest rates would result in an increase to our interest expense and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condidon
and/or operating results.

Default on Debt Covenants Could Impact our Financial Condition
A default under the terms of our trust preferred debt or revolving line of credit covenants could require us to make immediate payment on our out-
standing debt. Such an event could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condidon and/or operating results.

Dependence on Key Executives

Our future success will depend, in large part, upon the efforts of our executive officers and other key personnel. We rely substantially upon our
executive officers and other key personnel. Our future success will also depend on our ability to attract and retain additional executives and key per-
sonnel as necessary. The loss of any of these officers or other key personnel or our inability to attract and retain qualified personnel could prevent
us from implementing our business strategies.

Reliance on Information Technology and Telecommunications Systems

Our business is dependent upon the successful and uninterrupted functioning of our information technology and relecommunications systems. We
rely on these systems to process new and renewal business, provide customer service, make claims payments and facilitate collecdons and cancella-
dons. These systems also enable us to perform actuarial and other modeling functions necessary for underwriting and rate development, The failure
of these systems could disrupt our operations and materially impact our ability to write and process new and renewal business, provide customer serv-
ice or pay claims in a tmely manner. These factors could have a matenial adverse effect on our business, financial condition and/or operatng results.

Controiling Interest of the Sokol Family

Si Sokol, John S. Sokol and Saul Sokol, together with their immediate family members and a trust arganized for the benefit of and controlled by
the Sokol family, beneficially own approximately 61% of our common shares as of December 31, 2006. As a result, the Sokol family is able to con-
wol the election of our direcrors, determine our corporate and management policies and determine, without the consent of our other shareholders,
the outcome of many corporate transactions or other matters submitted to our shareholders for approval. The interests of the Sokol family may dif-
fer from the interests of our other shareholders in some respects.

Ongoing SEC Investigation

As previously reported, on February 14, 2005, the Company received notification from the U.S, Securides and Exchange Commission (the "SEC")
that it was conducting an informal, non-public inquiry regarding the Company. The inquiry generally concerned the chronology, events and
announcements relating to Emst & Young LLP (“E&Y™), our former independent registered public accounting firm, withdrawing its audit reports
for the years 2001 through 2003 for the Company. On March 29, 2005, the Company was notified by the SEC that the informal, non-public inquiry
inidated in February 2005 was converted to a formal order of private investgation, The SEC stated in its notification letter that this private inves-
tigaton should not be construed as an indication by the SEC or its staff that any violation of law has occurred nior should it be considered a reflec-
tion upon any person, entity or security. ‘The investigation is ongoing and the Company continues to cooperate fully with the SEC.
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The Company cannot predict the outcome of the SEC investigation. There can be no assurance that the scope of the SEC investigation will not
expand. The outcome of and costs associated with the SEC investigation could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, finan-
cial condition and/or operating results, and the investigation could divert the efforts and attenton of management from the Company's ardinary
business operations.

Litigation

The Company is involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business, some of which involve claims for
substantial amounts. We provide accruals for these items to the extent that we deem the losses probable and reasonably estimable. The outcome
of litigation is subject to numerous uncertainties. As a result, the ultimate resolution of these legal proceedings could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and/or operating results and could divert the efforts and attention of management from the Company's ordi-
nary business operations.

Automobile Service Contract Program

During 2003, the Company began issuing insurance policies which guarantee the performance of two automobile service contract providers (the
“Providers”). The Providers are owned and managed by a common group. The Company issues insurance policies for business produced by the
Providers in five states. Our insurance policy guarantees the fulfillment of the Providers’ obligation under the service contract. Under the pro-
gram, the Providers carry the related assets and reserves and are responsible for the premiums and claims administration. The Company is obli-
gated to pay a claim only if a Provider fails to do so. Under a reinsurance arrangement, the Company cedes 100% of this business to another
insurance carrier. In addition, the Company obtained collateral in the form of a letter of credit to secure its obligations under the program. In
February 2007, the Company was notified that one of the Providers entered into an assignment for the benefit of creditors liquidation and that no
new business is being produced by that Provider. The Company, with the assistance of its outside actuary, has estimated its potential exposure
under the program to be approximately $3.0 million as of December 31, 2006. Because our estimated potential exposure is fully cellateralized by
a $4.3 million letter of credit and the loss exposure is 100% reinsured, we do not believe this event will have a material adverse impact to the
Company. However, if the Company is required to pay claims under the program and it is unable to draw on the letrer of credit and cannot col-
lect on the reinsurance, then this program could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condidon and/or operating results.

ITEM 2. PROPERITES

As of February 7, 2006, we leased 11,868 square feet in Columbus, Ohio for our headquarters pursuant to a lease that commenced on January 1,
2001 and expires on December 31, 2008. The lease provides for monthly rent of $13,230.

. LE ROCEED
See Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations-Overview-Discontinued Bond Program and Overview-Ongoing SEC Investigation” for information concerning the discontinued
bond program arbitrations and the SEC private investigation.

In October 2006, the Company commenced arbitration against E&Y, the Company’s former independent registered public accounting firm, in
accordance with the terms of the engagement letter between the Company and E&Y. In the arbitraton, the Company alleges that E&Y improp-
erly withdrew the Company’s audit reports for the 2001 through 2003 fiscal years. The Company is seeking monetary damages in excess of $21
million. E&Y has counterclaimed, seeking to recover in excess of $475,000 from the Company for unpaid invoices and additional costs. No arbi-
tration panel has yet been constituted. The Company does not believe this dispute will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition

or liquidity.

In addition, the Company is involved in various other lawsuits and legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business, some of which
involve claims for substantal amounts, We provide accruals for these items to the extent that we deem the losses probable and reasonably
estimable. The outcome of litigation is subject to numerous uncertainges. While the ultimate resolution of these legal proceedings could be mate-
tial to the Company’ results of operations in a furure quarter or annual period, in the opinion of Company’s management, none would likely have
a material adverse effect on the Company’ financial condition or liquidity.

I . SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A Vi F HOLDERS
No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.
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ITEM 5. 1 FOR REGISTRANT’S

CHASES OF FQUITY SECURTTTES
MARKET INFORMATION

PART I

HARES, REIATED SHARFHOILDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PUR-

The following table sets forth (a) the high and low closing sale prices for the Company’s common shares on the Nasdaq National Market
(“Nasdaq") for the period from January 1, 2005 untl February 22, 2005 and (b} the reported high and low bid quotations for the Company’s com-
mon shares in the “pink sheets” for (1) the period from February 22, 2005 undl April 1, 2005 and (2) each of the quarterly periods thereafter

through the fiscal years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006.

Period High Sale Low Sale
January 1, 2005 until February 22, 2005 $ 7.44 7.04
Period High Bid Low Bid
February 22, 2005 undl April 1, 2005 $ 6.00 4.50
Quarterly period ended June 30, 2005 5.25 4.75
Quarterly period ended September 30, 2005 430 4.00
Quartetly period ended December 31, 2005 4.50 425
Period High Bid Low Bid
Quarterly period ended March 31, 2006 $ 6.60 4,20
Quarterly period ended June 30, 2006 6.30 6.00
Quarterly period ended September 30, 2006 6.14 5.56
Quarterly period ended December 31, 2006 6.15 5.50

As previously reported, the Company’s common shares were delisted from Nasdagq at the opening of business on February 22, 2005 as a result of
the Company’s failure to comply with Nasdaq Marketplace Rule 4310(c}(14) which requires Nasdaq issuers to include a properly executed inde-
pendent auditor opinion in their Annual Reports on Form 10-K. To the Company’s knowledge, there has been no established trading market for
the Company’s common shares since February 22, 2005. However, since that time, the Company’s common shares have been quoted in the “pink
sheets” under the symbol “BCIS” on an unsolicited basis. On February 7, 2007, the last reported bid quotation for the Company’s common shares

in the “pink sheets” was $5.60.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The indexed graph and table below sets forth the Company’s total shareholder recurn for the five-year period ending December 31, 2006 com-
pared to the total return for the NASDAQ Composite Index and the Standard and Poor’s Property & Casualty Insurance Index during the same
period, assuming a common starting point of $100 and reinvestment of dividends. Total return indices are weighted using beginning-period mar-
ket capitalization for each of the reported dme periods.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Bancinsurance Corporation, The NASDAQ Composite index
And The S & P Property & Casualty Insurance Index
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Fiscal year ending December 31
Cumulatve Total Return
12/00  12/02  12/03  12/04  12/05  12/06

Bancinsurance Corporation 100.00 9899 15495 14788 9091 12222
Nasdaq Composite Index 100.00  71.97 107.18 117.07 120.50 137.02
S & P Property & Casualty Insurance Index 100.00 8898 11248 12420 14298 161.38
HOLDERS

The number of holders of record of the Company's common shares as of February 7, 2007 was 634.

DIVIDENDS

The Company did not declare or pay any cash dividends on its outstanding common shares during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005. Any determination to pay dividends in the furure will be at the discretion of the Company’s Board of Directors and will be dependent upon
the Company’s results of operations and financial condition, legal and regulatory restrictions, and other factors deemed relevant at the ime. For
a description of the restrictions on payment of dividends to us from Ohio Indemnity, see “Business-Regulation,” “Risk Factors That May Affect
Future Results,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and Note 12 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements,
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M 6. SEI D FINANCIAI DAT,

The selected consulidated financial data set forth below should be read together with the consolidated financial statements and the related notes to
those statements, as well as “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” appearing elsewhere in this
Anmual Report on Form 10-K. Results for past accountng periods are not necessarily indicative of the results wo be expected for any firture account-
ing periods.

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Income Statement Data
Net premiums earned ... $ 49,106,653 $ 51,716,945 $ 50,064,185 $ 50,071,966 § 42,590,321
Ner INVESTMENT INCOME. ...\ cvrerrren e sesisssaensrrnes 3,845,064 3,302,659 2,164,115 1,599,064 1,236,138
Net realized gains (losses} on investments......... 55,719 1,281,755 1,094,174 822,161 (1,220,477)
Codification and subscription fees .......ccoconueene. 2,255,558 3,474,668 4,005,413 3,819,221 3,324,037
Management fees i 830,329 713,697 33,710 114,094 749,442
Net realized gain on sale of affiliate 2,511,891 - - - -
Other INCOME ..ot 81,428 146,786 43,123 81,633 197,278
Total revenuUEs ... 58,686,642 60,636,510 57,404,722 56,508,159 46,876,739
Cumulative effect of change in accounting

PHNCIPLE oot - - - - (1,481,858)
et INCOME (L085) wverreerrrerenremresreressressesnsssesconneeses 5,474,901 6,294,074 (8,500,620 3,909,817 889,613
Balance Sheet Data at Year End
"Total cash and INVESIMENLS ....veercieiiiveecrrernens $ 93,580,824 $ 100,085,781 $ 86,580,595 $ 76929462 $ 57,293,361
TOtal ASSELS ...ooroeeereresrereeerrs oo 122,288,506 128,335,835 117,060,472 115,869,736 72,703,204
Notes payable - 27,119 540,198 53,276 2,166,355
Trust preferred debt issued to affiliates.... 15,465,000 15,465,000 15,465,000 15,465,000 8,248,000
Shareholders’ equity ........ceeviveevrenvcnnnneen 36,365,619 30,079,626 24,846,288 33,365,028 28,901,838
Common shares outstanding......c.cooccoeeecrnrennns 4,980,700 4,972,700 4,972,700 4,920,050 5,000,291
Per Common Share Data
Diluted income {loss) before cumulative :

effect of change in accounting principle......... 3 1.08 $ 1.26 $ (1.72) $ 77 08 41
Diluted net income (Joss)......oovvvrereeernisnnerneens 1.08 1.26 (1L.72) 77 16
Year-end book value ....c.ocreerieecniiicc e 7.30 6.05 5.00 6.78 5.78
GAAP Ratios
LLOSS FALO oottt cemeseernenns 53.2% 45.8% 35.1% 66.1% 67.0%
Expense ratio 44.7% 47.8% 34.6% 26.0% 24.4%
Combined ratdo 97.9% 93.6% 129.7% 92.1% 91.4%
Statutory Ratios
LOSS TAIO coveiviirrree e sneiasret b resenes 53.2% 45.8% 95.1% 66.1% 67.0%
Expense tatio ......... 43.3% 50.9% 33.3% 25.9% 25.0%
Combined ratio 96.5% 96.7% 128.4% 92.0% 92.0%
INet premiums written to statutory surplus........ 1.2x 1.5x 1.9x 1.6x 1.4x
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT"S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION.

OVERVIEW

Bancinsurance is a specialty property insurance holding company incorporated in the State of Chio in 1970. The Company has two reporuble
business segments: (1) property/casualty insurance; and (2) insurance agency. Until August 31, 2006, the Company also had a municipal code
publishing business segment. On August 31, 2006, the Company sold its municipal code publishing segment as more fully deseribed in “Overview-
Sale of Affiliate” below and in Note | to the Consolidated Financial Statements. These segments are described in more detail below.

Products and Services

Property/Casualty Insurance. Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Ohio Indemnity Company ("Ohio Indemnity™), is a specialty property/casualty insur-
ance company. Our principal sources of revenue are premiums for insurance policies and income generated from our investment portfolio. Ohio
Indemnity, an Chio corporation, is licensed in 48 states and the District of Columbia. As such, Ohio Indemnity is subject to the reguladons of The
Ohio Department of Insurance (the "Department”} and the regulations of each state in which it operates. The majority of Ohio Indemnity's pre-
miums are derived from three distinet produet lines: (1) automobile lender/denler; (2) unemployment compensation; and (3) waste industry.

Our automobile lender/dealer product line offers three wypes of produces. First, ULTIMATE LOSS INSURANCE? (*ULI™), a blanket vendor
single interest coverage, is the primary product we offer to financial institutions nationwide. This product insures banks and financial insttugons
against damage to pledged collateral in cases where the collateral is not otherwise insured. A ULI policy is generally written to cover a lender's
complete portfolio of collateralized personal property loans, typically automabile loans. Second, creditor placed insurance (“CPI"} is an alterna-
tive 1o our tradidonal blanker vendor single interest product. While both products cover the risk of damage to uninsured collateral in a lender's
automobile loan portfolio, CPI covers the portfolio through tracking individual borrowers' insurance coverage. The lender purchases physical
damage coverage for loan collateral after a borrower's insurance has lapsed. Third, our guaranteed auto protection insurance ("GAP") pays the
difference or "gap” between the amount owed by the customer on a loan or lease and the amount of primary insurance company coverage in the
event a vehicle is damaged beyond repair or stolen and never recovered. Our GAP product is sold to auto dealers, lenders and lessors and pro-
vides coverage on either an individual or portfolio basis.

Our unemployment compensaton (“UC”) products are utilized by qualified entities that elect not to pay the unemployment compensation taxes
and instead reimburse state unemployment agencies for benefits paid by the agencies to the entdes’ former employees. Through cur UCassure®
and excess of loss products, we indemnify the qualified entity for liability associated with its reimbursing obligatons. In addition, we underwrite
surety bonds that certain states require employers to post in order to obtain reimbursing status for their unemployment compensation obligations.
Our bonded service program was discontinued at the end of 2003 and replaced by our UCassure® program.

Our waste industry products (“WIP”) consist of cerrain surety bonds produced and administered by a general insurance agent. Under this pro-
gram, the Company both assumes and cedes certain waste surety bond business under two quota share reinsurance arrangements. In the second
quarter of 2004, the Company entered into a 50% quota share reinsurance arrangement whereby the Company assumed 50% of all waste surety
honds with liability limits up to $4.0 million from two insurance carriers. Effective January 1, 2008, the reinsurance arrangement was amended
whereby the Company’ assumed participation was reduced from 50% o 25%. Effective August 1, 2006, the reinsurance arrangement was fur-
ther amended whereby the Company assumed 50% of ail waste surety bonds with fiability limits up to $1.2 million. In addition to assuming busi-
ness, the Company also writes on a direct basis waste surety bonds with liability limits up to our Treasury limit ($3.6 million during 2006). The
Company then cedes 50% of that business to an insurance carrier under a reinsurance arrangement. All surety bonds written directly and assumed
under this program are produced and administered by a general insurance agent that is affiliated with one of the insurance carriers pardcipatng
in the program. The majority of the surety bonds under the program satisfy the closure/post-closure financial responsibility obligadons imposed
on hazardous and solid waste treatment, storage and disposal facilities pursuant to Subtitles C and D of the Federal Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act (“RCRA”). Closure/post-closure bonds cover future costs to close and monitor a regulated site such as a landfill. All of the surety
bonds are indemnified by the principal and collateral is mainmined on the majority of the bonds. The indemnifications and collateralizaton of
this program reduces the risk of loss.

The Company has certain other specialty products which consist primarily of service contracts and other surety products. In addition, from 2001
untl the end of the second quarter of 2004, the Company participated in a bail and immigradgon bond program. This program was discontinued
in the second quarter of 2004. For a more detailed description of this program, see “Overview-Discontnued Bond Program” below and Note 16
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company sells its insurance products through multiple distribution channels, including three managing general agents, approximately thirty
five independent agents and direct sales.

Municipal Code Publishing. On August 31, 2006, the Company sold is wholly-owned subsidiary, American Legal Publishing Corporation
("ALPC"), which codifies, publishes, supplements and distributes ordinances for municipalities and counties nationwide in addition to state gov-
ernments. Ordinance codification is the process of collecting, organizing and publishing legisladon for state and local governments. ALPC also
provides information management services which includes electronic publishing, document imaging and internet hosting services. See “Overview-
Sale of Affiliate” below and Note 1 ro the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information concerning this transaction.

Insurance Agency. In July 2002, we formed Uldmate Services Agency, LLC ("USA™), a wholly-owned subsidiary. We formed USA to act as an

agency for placing and servicing property/casualty insurance policies offered and underwritten by Ohio Indemnity and by other property/casual-
ty insurance companies.
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Sale of Affifiate

On August 31, 2006, the Company entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”} with A.L.P. Acquisition Co., Inc., an Ohio cor-
peradon (the “Purchaser™), whereby the Company sold 100% of the issued and outstanding common shares of ALPC to the Purchaser for
$4,620,000 subject to customary post-closing adjustments (the “Sale”). The Company received cash of $4,130,000 and a promissory note in the
principal amount of $470,000 (the “Promissory Note”) from the Purchaser at the closing in connection with the Sale. On September 1, 2006, the
Purchaser made a principal payment to the Company on the Promissory Note in the amount of $345,000, bringing the remaining principal bal-
ance of the Promissory Note to $125,000 which is to be repaid in six monthly installments and bears interest at an annual rate of 8.0%. As of
December 31, 2006, the principal balance of the promissory note was $62,500.

The Purchaser was organized by Steven G. Wolf, who has served as President of ALPC since 1984 and as a director of ALPC since 2000. Mr.
Wolf and certain other employees of ALPC collectively own a significant equity interest in the Purchaser.

In conjunction with the Sale, on August 31, 2006, the Company also made an investment {the “Investunent”) in the Purchaser in the amount of
$250,000, consisting of (1) a $137,500 cash purchase of equity securities of the Purchaser and (2) a $112,500 loan to the Purchaser in the form of
a subordinated convertible promissory note (the “Convertible Note™). The Convertible Note is to be repaid on August 31, 2016 (if not previous-
ly converted), bears interest at 2n annual rate of 8.0% and is converable at any time at the option of the Company into additdonal equity securi-
ties of the Purchaser.

In connecdon with the Sale and the Invesunent, the Company recorded a ner realized gain of approximately $2.5 million ($1.7 million after tax)
for the period ended December 31, 2006.

Discontinued Bond Program

Beginning in 2001 and continuing into the second quarter of 2004, the Company participated as a reinsurer in a program covering bail and immi-
gradon bonds issued by four insurance carriers and produced by a bail bond agency {colleciively, the "discontnued bond program™ or the “pro-
gram”). The liability of the insurance carriers was reinsured to a group of reinsurers, including the Company. The Company assumed 5% of the
business from 2001 through 2003 and 5% of the business during the first half of 2004, This program was discontinued in the second quarter of
2004.

Based on the design of the program, the bail bond agency was to obtain and maintain collateral and other security and to provide funding for bond
losses. The bail bond agency and its principals were responsible for all losses as part of their program administration, The insurance cartiers and,
in turn, the reinsurers were not required to pay losses unless there was a failure of the bail bond agency. As the bonds were to be 100% collater-
alized, any losses paid by the reinsurers were to be recoverable through liquidation of the collateral and collections from third party indemnitors.

In the second quarter of 2004, the Company came to believe that the discontnued bond program was not being operated as it had been repre-
sented to the Company by agents of the insurance carriers who had solicited the Company’s participation in the program, and the Company began
disputing certain issues with respect to the program, including but not limited to: 1} inaccurate/incomplete disclosures relating to the program; 2)
improper supervision by the insurance carriers of the bail bond agency in administering the program; 3) improper disclosures by the insurance car-
riers through the bail band agency and the reinsurance intermediaries during life of the program; and 4) improper premium and claims adminis-
waticn. Consequently, during the second quarter of 2004, the Company ceased paying claims on the program and retained outside legal counsel
to review and defend its rights under the program.

Pending Arbitraton. During 2004 and 2005, the Company entered into arbitradons with all four insurance carriers that pardcipated in the dis-
continued bond program. As discussed below, during 2006, arbitrations with three of the insurance carriers concluded. The following is a descrip-
tion of the last pending arbitration proceeding as of December 31, 2006:

Highlands Arbitration. Highlands Insurance Company (“Highlands™), one of the insurance carriers, was placed in receivership during 2003 {which
receivership remains pending). On August 31, 2003, Highlands’ Receiver demanded arbitration against the Company and other reinsurers, includ-
ing The Philadelphia Contributionship for the Insurance of Houses from Loss by Fire, American Healthcare Insurance Company and various
Lloyds Syndicates. In November 2005, the Company responded to this demand by seeking rescission of the reinsurance agreement, monetary
damages for claims thar were paid by the Company under the agreement and other appropriate relief. Highlands is seeking to recover certain of
its losses from the Company under the reinsurance agreement. No arbitration panel has vet been constituted.

Arbitration Developments as of December 31, 2006.

Aegis Arbitration. During 2004, the Company entered into an arbitradon proceeding with Aegis Security Insurance Company (“Aegis”}, one of
the insurance carriers. Through this arbitration, the Company was seeking rescission of the reinsurance agreements, monetary damages for the
claims that were paid by the Company under the agreements and other appropriate relief. Aegis was seeking to recover certain of its losses from
the Company under the reinsurance agreements. On January 18, 2006, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with Aegis resolving
all disputes between the Company and Aegis relating to the discontinued bond program. The settement also relieved the Company from any
potential future liabilities with respect to bonds issued by Aegis. As a result of this settlement agreement, the Company recorded reserve redun-
dancies of approximately $0.2 million during 2006.

Sirfus Arbitration. During 2004, the Company entered into an arbitration proceeding with Sirius America Insurance Company (“Sirius™), one of

the insurance carriers. Through this arbitration, the Company was seeking rescission of the reinsurance agreement, monetary damages for claims
that were paid by the Company under the agreement and other appropriate relief. Sirius was seeking to recover certain of its losses from the
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Company under the reinsurance agreement. On July 26, 2006, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with Sirius resolving all dis-
putes between the Company and Sirius relating to the discontinued bond program. The settlement also relieved the Company from any poten-
tial future liabilities with respect to bonds issued by Sirius. As a result of this settlement agreement, the Company recorded reserve deficiencies
of approximately $0.1 million during 2006.

Harco Arbitration. During 2004, the Company entered into an arbitration proceeding with Harco National Insurance Company ("Harco"), one
of the insurance carriers. Through this arbitration, the Company was secking rescission of the reinsurance agreement and other appropriate relief.
Harco was seeking to recover certain of its losses from the Company under the reinsurance agreement. The arbitration hearing concluded in July
2006. In August 2006, the arbitration panel issued its Final Decision and Order ordering each of the reinsurers participating in the arbitration,
including the Company, o pay its proportionate share of past and future claims paid by Harco, subject to certain adjustments, offsets and credits
(the "Final Order”). Based on the Final Order and the most recent loss reports provided by Harco, the Company recorded reserve deficiencies of
approximately $2.0 million and return premiums of approximately $0.3 million during 2006.

Highlands Development. During the third quarter of 2006, the Company received information indicating that Highlands and the U.S. Department
of Homeland Security (‘DHS”) reached a global settlement concerning Highlands’ immigration bond obligations, which settlement is subject to
the approval of the court in which the receivership is pending. Based on this information, the Company recorded reserve redundancies of approx-
imately $0.1 million during 2006.

Loss and LAE Reserves. As of December 31, 2006, the Company recorded its loss and LAE reserves for the discontinued bond program based
primarily on loss reports received by the Company from Harco and Highlands. The following compares our loss and LAE reserves for the dis-
continued bond program at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 (dollars in millions):

December 31, December 31,

Bail Bonds: 2006 2005

CASE FESBIVES veviuveririiissinsesissresessessrsressstssasssessssassasessssasassensecs $ 0.9 $ 12.1

Incurred but not reported (“IBINR”) reserves ..o 4.2 54

Total bail bond reserves.......oovvvevnneieneenens 5.1 17.5
Immigration Bonds: ...

CASE TESETVES ©ervvrrrvererrirsissreesesessssesestassssssesaassssanssssnistosensssesennes 0.1 0.7

TBINR FESEIVES ..iiiiiriniiiiiemssasesssnsisrrmssrressernsrsesssressessantesesesnnns 1.2 1.4

Total immigration bond reserves ....ooooeeeeieeeseeeecee 1.3 2.1

“Total loss and LAE TESEIVES ..oooieeiiiieiennireenssers s eseresssesesessereneses s 6.4 $ 19.6

The decrease in loss and LAE reserves from $19.6 million at December 31, 2005 to $6.4 million at December 31, 2006 was primarily due to loss
payments made by the Company during 2006 in connection with the Aegis and Sirius settlements and the Harco Final Order.

Discontnued bond program losses and LAE were $1.8 million, $0.4 and $20.2 million during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The 2006 loss of $1.8 million was primarily atributable to the Harco Final Order combined with our increase in Harco’s reported
losses. The $0.4 million loss recorded during 2005 was primarily attributable to an increase in reported losses from Harco which was partially off-
set by a decrease in losses for Aegis due to a favorable ruling by the Aegis arbitration panel.

We believe there is potential for the Company to mitigate its ultimate liability to Highlands through the arbitration proceeding with Highlands;
however, because of the subjective nature inherent in assessing the final outcome of this arbitration, management cannot estimate the probability
of an adverse or favorable outcome as of December 31, 2006. In addidon, while outside counsel believes we have legal defenses under the rein-
surance agreement, they are unable to assess whether an adverse outcome is probable or remote in the arbitration as of December 31, 2006. In
accordance with SFAS No. § “Accounting for Contngencies,” the Company is reserving to its best estimate of the ultimate liability on the pro-
gram at December 31, 2006 without any adjustment for positive arbitration outcome or a potential settlernent amount with Highlands. If the
Company obtains information to determine an estimate of a final arbitration value or estimate a sertlement value, the Company will record changes
in its reserves, if any, in the period that an estimate is made in accordance with SFAS No. 60. The Company does nor intend to pay for any of the
Highlands losses unless and undl the arbitration is settled on a mutually agreeable basis and/or a final binding judgment is made as to the
Company’s ultimate liability.

Given the uncerminties of the outcome of the Highlands arbitration, uncertaindes in the future loss information provided by Harco and
Highlands, and the inherent volatility in assumed reinsurance, actual losses incurred for the discontinued bond program could be materially dif-
ferent from our estimated reserves. As a result, future loss development on the discontinued bond program could have a material effect on the
Company’s results of operations and/or financial condition.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 48 ("FIN 48"), “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes,” which prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of
a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. In accordance with FIN 48, the Company must adjust its financial statements to reflect
only those tax positions that are more-likely-than-not to be sustained as of the adoption date. The effective date of FIN 48 for the Company is
January 1, 2007. The adoption of FIN 48 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.
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In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” This
Statement defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. The Statement clarifies the rule that fair value be based on the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing an
asset or liability, and establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the framework and information used to develop those assumptions. ‘The
Company is required to adopt the provisions of SFAS No. 157 for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 13, 2007,
The adoption of SFAS No. 157 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s Conselidated Financial Statements,

Reinsurance Transactions

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company entered into a producer-owned reinsurance arrangement with a new lender/dealer producer whereby
100% of that producer’ premiums (along with the associated risk) was ceded to its PORC. This reinsurance arrangement was cancelled effective
December 31, 2003. For this reinsurance arrangement, the Company has obtained collateral in the form of a letter of credit from the reinsurer
to secure its obligations. Under the provisions of the reinsurance agreement, the collateral must be equal to or greater than 102% of the rein-
sured reserves and the Company has immediate access to such collateral if necessary. Under this arrangement, the Company ceded premiums
earned of $67,969, $115,790 and $4,435,639 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 20035 and 2004, respectively,

Effective October 1, 2003, the Company entered into a producer-owned reinsurance arrangement with an existing lender/dealer customer where-
by 100% of that customer’s premiums (along with the associated risk) was ceded to its PORC. For this reinsurance arrangement, the Company
has obtained collateral in the form of a trust from the reinsurer to secure its obligations. Under the provistons of the reinsurance agreement, the
collateral must be equal to or greater than 102% of the reinsured reserves and the Company has immediate access to such collateral if necessary.
Under this arrangement, the Company ceded premiums earned of $2,266,090, $1,727,303 and $894,717 for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively.

Beginning in the second quarter of 2004, the Company entered into a quota share reinsurance arrangement with certain insurance carriers where-
by the Company assumed and ceded 50% of certain waste surety bond business. Effective January 1, 2005, the reinsurance arrangement was
amended whereby the Company’s assumed participadon was reduced from 50% to 25%. Effective August 1, 2006, the reinsurance arrangement
was further amended whereby the Company’s assumed participation was increased from 25% to 50%. Under this program, the Company assumed
premiums eaened of $3,283,690, $4,302,509 and $1,980,492 during 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Also, the Company ceded premiums earned
of $1,235,624, $679,563 and $131,031 for the vears ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

Effective January 1, 2005, the Company entered into a producer-owned reinsurance arrangement with a guaranteed auto protection insurance
agent whereby 100% of that agent’s premiums (along with the associated risk) were ceded to its PORC. For this reinsurance arrangement, the
Company has obtained collateral in the form of a letter of credit to secure its obligations. Under the provisions of the reinsurance agreement, the
collateral must be egual to or greater than 102% of the reinsured reserves and the Company has itunediate access to such collateral if necessary.
Under this arrangement, the Company ceded premiums earned of $1,987,640, $734,435 and 80 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectvely.

In addition to the above, the Company has other reinsurance arrangements including two automobtle lender/dealer PORC quota share arrange-
ments, several quota share arrangements for certain contract and escrow surety bond business and a reinsurance arrangement for a vehicle service
contract program. Under these arrangements, the Company ceded premiums earned of §708,430, $927 455 and §1,113,639 for the vears ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Also, the Company assumed premiums earned of $60,535, $0 and $0 for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

See “Overview-Discontinued Bond Program” above and Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a descripdon of the Company's
discontinued bond program.

See Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additonal information regarding the Company’s reinsurance.

SUMMARY RESULTS
The following table sets forth period-to-period changes in selected financial dara:
Period-to-Period Increase (Decrease)
Years ended December 31,

2005-2006 2004-2005
Amount % Change Amount % Change
INEL Premiums earned. ... eerreenmmeniommessmiesseencmnees $(2,610,292) (5.00% $ 1,652,760 3.3%
Net realized gains (losses) on investments (1,226,036) (95.7)% 187,581 17.1%
Net realized gain on sale of affiliate .o 2,511,891 100.0% - -
TOUA] FEVENUES oo eere e esssrass e (1,949,868) (3.2)% 3,231,788 5.6%
Lossts and LAE ..o snees e tseeearrserrasesessssnaisessssssenens 2,238,623 9.6% (23,901,695) {50.6)%
Commissions, other insurance expenses, and general and
administrative EXPENSe ..o e crmeeeererrmessrssnrseerenens teeernerenes (2,245,089 (8.9% 6,932,467 18.0%

Income (loss) before federal income taxes (1,346,809) (16.5)% 21,438,697 161.6%
NELINCOMIE .o irirsiree e cvvrensrcimeees s srasssseserens (819,173) (13.0)% 14,794,694 174.0%
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Net income for 2006 was $5,474,901, or $1.08 per diluted share, compared to 56,294,074, or $1.26 per diluted share, in 2005. The decrease was
primarily attributable to an increase in losses and LAE for the discontinued bond program and an increase in losses and LAE due to favorable loss
development in 2005. These losses were partially offset by the $2.5 millien net realized gain on the sale of ALPC during 2006. See “Overview —
Discontinued Bond Program” above 2nd Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional informadon concerning the discontin-
ued band program. See “Overview-Sale of Affiliate” above and Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information con-
cerning the sale of ALPC.

Net income (loss) for 2005 was $6,294,074, or $1.26 per diluted share, compared to $(8,500,620), or $(1.72) per diluted share, in 2004. The most
significant factor contributing to the increase in net income was a decrease in losses and LAE of approximately $19.7 million for the discontinued
bond program. In addition, the Company benefited from an increase in profitability for its CPI, GAF, UC and WIP product lines and an increase
in investment income when compared to 2004. These positive factors were partially offset by an increase in legal, auditing and federal income wax
expenses incurred during 2005 when compared ro 2004.

The combined ratio, which is the sum of the loss rado and the expense ratio, is the traditional measure of underwriting experience for
property/casualty insurance companies. 'T"he Company’s specialey insurance products are underwritten by Ohio Indemnity, whose results repre-
sent the Company’s combined rato. The statutory combined ratio is the sum of the ratio of losses to premiums earned plus the ratio of statuto-
ry underwriting expenses less management fees to premiums written after reducing both premium amounts by dividends to policyholders.
Stawutory accounting principles differ in certain respects from GAAE. Under statutory accounting principles, policy acquisiton costs and other
underwriting expenses are recognized immediately, not at the same time premiums are earned. To convert underwriting expenses to a GAAP basis,
policy acquisition costs are deferred and recognized over the period in which the related premiums are earned. Therefore, the GAAP combined
ratio is the sum of the ratio of losses to premiums earned plus the ratio of underwriting expenses less management fees to premiums earned. The
following table reflects Ohio Indemnity’s loss, expense and combined ratios on both a statutory and a GAAP basis for the years ended:

2006 20035 2004
GAAP:
| 0e I L L OO 53.2% 45.8% 95.1%
Expense rato......covvernn. 44.7% 47.8% 34.6%
Combined rato 97.9% 93.6% 129.7%
Statutory:
LLOSS FAEIO e reeee e e cmeee s eesee e st e sans s aes s eesssbessranssresmerttsrebbssbanbobsssssabesson 53.2% 45.8% 95.1%
EXPENSE TALO o cereeeececereescrmees et rmeenr e serens e s mas st ssesasssarsnssssssasssnssnses 43.3% 50.9% 33.3%
CombINed TAHO. i e b ss s s b abn s 96.5% 96.7% 128.4%
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

2006 Compared to 2005

Net Premiums Earned. Net premiums earned decreased 5.0%, or $2,610,292, to $49,106,633 in 2006 from $51,716,943 the prior year due to a decline
in premiums for ULIL, CPI, WIP and the discontinued bond program which were partially offset by growth in our GAP and UC product lines.

ULI net premiums eared decreased 10.5%, or $3,056,573, vo $26,017,984 in 2006 from $29,074,557 in 2005. ULI premiums decreased due prima-
rily to a general agent transferring half of its production to other insurance carriers in the second half of 2005 (the “Transferred Business”), combined
with lower lending volumes for certain financtal institution customers and the cancellaton of a ULI customer at the end of second quarter 2006.

Net premiums earned for CPI decreased 29.6%, or $683,650, to $1,623,494 in 2006 from 82,307,144 in 2005 primarily due to a decline in vol-
ume for certain financial insdtudon customers.

Nert premiums earned for GAP grew 15.3%, or $1,488,113, to §11,240,520 in 2006 from $9,752,407 in 2005. This growth was primarily due to
rate and volume increases with existing customers.

Net premiums earned for UC products increased 2.3%, or 128,739, to $5,697,627 in 2006 from $35,568,888 in 2005 primarily due to an increase
in volume for our excess of loss product.

Net premiums earned for WIP declined 6.9%, or $333,998, 1o $4,505,250 in 2006 from $4,839,248 in 2005, due primarily to the general insur-
ance agent changing its distribution of business with the insurance carriers participating in this program.

Discontinued bond program net premiums earned declined $145,317 in 2006 compared to a year ago due to the discontinuation of this program
in the second quarter of 2004. See “Overview-Discontinued Bond Program” above and Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional information concerning the discontinued bond program,

[nvestment Income. We seek to invest in investment-grade obligations of states and political subdivisions because the majority of the interest
income from such investments is tax-exempt and such investments have generally resulted in more favorable net vields. Net invesunent income
increased 16.4%, or $542,405, to $3,845,064 in 2006 from $3,302,659 a year ago. This improvement was primarily due to growth in average invest-
ments in 2006 compared to 2005 combined with higher yields.
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Net realized gains on investments decreased 95.7%, or $1,226,036, to $55,719 in 2006 from $1,281,755 a year ago due to the dming of sales of
equity securities. We generally decide whether to sell securities based upon investment opportunities and tax consequences. We regularly evalu-
ate the quality of our investment portfolio. When we believe that a specific security has suffered an other-than-temporary decline in value, the dif-
ference between cost and estimated fair value is charged to income as a realized loss on investments. Impairment charges included in net realized
gains on investments were $7,310 in 2006 compared to zero a year ago. For more information concerning impairment charges, see "Critical
Accoundng Policies-Other-Than-Temporary Impairment of Investments” below.

Codification and Subscription Fees. ALPC's codification and subscripdon fees decreased 35.1%, or $1,219,110, to $2,255,558 in 2006 from
$3,474,668 in 2005. The decrease was primarily due to the sale of ALPC on August 31, 2006 (8 months in 2006 compared to 12 months in 2005).
See Overview-Sale of Affiliate” above and Note | to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information concerning this transaction.

Management Fees. Pursuant to the terms of certain surety bonds issued by the Company that guarantee the payment of reimbursable unemploy-
ment compensation benefits, certain monies are held by the Company in contract funds on deposit and are used for the payment of benefit charges.
The Company has agreements with cost containment service firms designed to control the unemployment compensation costs of the employers
enrolled in the program. Any remaining funds after the payment of all benefit charges are shared between the Company and the cost contain-
ment firms as management fees. Management fees are recognized when earned based on the development of benefit charges. Our management
fees increased 16.3%, or $116,632, to $830,329 in 2006 from $713,697 a year ago as a result of favorable unemployment experience and pricing
actions. We expect management fees to vary from period to period depending on unemployment levels and benefit charges.

Net Realized Gain on Sale of Affiliate. In connection with the sale of ALPC, the Company recorded a net realized gain of approximately $2.5
million ($1.7 million after tax or $0.33 per diluted share} during 2006. See “Overview-Sale of Affiliate” above and Note 1 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for more information concerning this transaction.

Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses. Losses and LAE represent claims associated with insured loss events and expenses associated with adjust-
ing and recording policy claims, respectively. Losses and LAE increased 9.6%, or $2,238,623, to $25,574,243 in 2006 from $23,335,620 a year
ago primarily due to an increase in losses and LAE of $1,344,763 for the discontinued bond program. See “Overview-Discontnued Bond
Program” above and Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional informaton concerning the discontinued bond program.
Excluding the discontinued bond program, losses and LAE increased 3.9%, or $893,860, to $23,806,747 in 2006 from $22,912,887 a year ago pri-
marily due to an increase in losses and LAE for our ULI and GAP business, which was partally offset by a decrease in losses and LAE for our
CPI, UC and WIP business.

ULI losses and LAE increased 7.6%, or §1,189,422, to $16,874,524 in 2006 from $15,685,102 a year ago. The increase was due primarily to favor-
able loss development during 2005 as a result of fewer loan defaults, bankruptcies and automabile repossessions among our ULT customers.

CP1 losses and LAE decreased 32.8%, or $262,098, to $536,367 in 2006 from $798,465 a year ago which is consistent with the decline in busi-
ness.

GAP losses and LAE increased 5.8%, or $294,848, to $5,383,325 in 2006 from $5,088,477 a year ago principally due to growth in the business.

Lasses and LAE for our UC products decreased 35.9%, or $305,110, to $545,295 in 2006 from $850,405 a year ago primarily due to a decrease
in losses for the bonded service program which was cancelled at the end of 2003,

WIP losses and LAE decreased 7.0%, or $34,028, o $449,897 in 2006 from $483,925 a year ago. This decrease is consistent with the decrease in
net premiwms earned as the Company records loss and LAE reserves for WIP using an expected loss ratio reserving method, which is based on a
certain percentage of net premiums earned. '

For more information concerning losses and LAE, see "Critical Accounting Polictes-Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves” below.

mmissigns, Other Insurance QOperatng Fxpenses and General and Administratve enses. Commission expense decreased 12.4%, or
$1,709,942, to $12,041,054 in 2006 from $13,750,996 in 2005 primarily due to the decline in ULI commissions associated with the Transferred
Business, Other insurance operating expenses and general and administrative expenses combined decreased 4.7%, or $535,147, to $10,882,039 in
2006 from $11,417,186 a year ago primarily due to a decrease in audit and legal expenses associated with the withdrawal by the Company’s for-
mer independent registered public accountng firm in 2005 combined with a decrease in legal expenses associated with the discontinued bond pro-
gram arbitrations. These decreases were partially offset by an increase in compensaton expense and an increase in reserves for contingent liabil-
ities.

Codification and Subscription Expenses. Codification and subscription expenses incurred by ALPC decreased 31.1%, or $873,316, 10 $1,936,384
in 2006 from $2,809,700 a year ago, as the Company sold APLC on August 31, 2006 (8 months in 2006 compared to 12 months in 2005). See
“Oiverview—Sale of Affiliate” above and Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial statements for more information concerning this transaction.

Interest Expense, Interest expense increased 24.0%, or $276,723, to $1,429,086 in 2006 from $1,152,363 a vear ago as a result of rising interest
rates. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources” for discussion of the Company’ trust preferred debt issued to affiliates, which makes up the major-
ity of the Company's interest expense.

Federal Income Taxes. The Company’s effective income tax rate was 19.8% and 23.0% for 2006 and 2005, respectvely. This improvement is
attributable o the ratio of tax-exempt income when compared to income from operations for each year.
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GAAP Combined Ratio. For 2006, the combined ratio increased to 97.9% from 93.6% a year ago. The loss rado increased to 53.2% in 2006
from 45.8% a year ago partly due to an increase in losses and LAE for the discontinued bond program. Excluding the discontinued bond pro-
gram, the Company’s loss ratio was 49.6% in 2006 compared to 45.0% a year ago. This increase was primarily attributable to prior year favorable
loss development for our ULI product line. The expense ratio improved to 44.7% in 2006 from 47.8% a year ago primarily due to the decrease
in ULI commisstons associated with the Transferred Business.

2005 Compared to 2004

Net Premiums Earned. Net premiums earned increased 3.3%, or $1,652,760, to §51,716,945 in 2005 from $50,064,185 in 2004, Net premiums
earned benefited from growth in our CPIL, GAP, UC and WIP product lines, which was partially offset by premium decreases in ULI and the dis-
contnued bond program.

ULI net premiums earned decreased 15.6%, or $5,373,145, to $29,074,557 in 2005 from $34,447,702 in 2004. The decline was due to decreased
lending volume for certain of our financial insttution customers, a decrease from the Transferred Busingss and an increase in experience rating
adjustments. The experience rating adjustment is primarily influenced by ULI policy experience-to-date and premium growth. A decrease in
experience rating adjustments results in a positive impact to net premiums earned whereas an increase in experience rating adjustments results in
a decrease to net premiums earned. Experience rating adjustments increased for 2005 when compared to 2004 primarily due to favorable loss
experience for the ULI product line. Management anticipates that experience rating adjustments will fluctuate in future periods based upon loss
experience and premium growth. These decreases in ULI net premiums earned were partially offset by an increase in lending volume by several
of our other financial institution customers.

Net premiums earned for CPI increased 11.8%, or $243,304, to $2,307,144 in 2005 from $2,063,840 in 2004 principally due to new customers
added.

Net premiums earned for GAP grew 70.7%, or $4,038,540, to $9,752,407 in 2005 from $5,713,867 in 2004. This growth was due to purchases
of GAP coverage by new customers, as well as rate and volume increases with existing customers,

Net premiums earned for UC products increased 11.8%, or 589,895, to $5,568,888 in 2005 from $4,978,993 in 2004 due to growth in the
Company’s UCassure® product and rate increases.

Net premiums earned for WIP increased 129.2%, or $2,727,705, to $4,839,248 in 2005 from $2,111,543 in 2004, as we participated in this pro-
gram for a full year in 2005 compared to a partial year in 2004

Discontinued bond program net premiums earned declined $672,897 in 2005 compared 1o 2004 due to the discontinuation of this program in the
second quarter of 2004.  See “Overview-Discontinued Bond Program” above and Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for addition-
al informadon concerning the discontinued bond program.

Invesunent Income. Net investment income increased 52.6%, or $1,138,544, to $3,302,659 in 2005 from $2,164,115 a year ago. This improve-
ment was due to growth in fixed income investments combined with a higher after-tax vield. Higher yields resulted from the Company’ reallo-
cation of a portion of its portfolio from short-term investments to fixed maturities during 2004, which provided a better matching of the
Company’s invested assets to its product liability duration and enhanced the Company’s investment return.

Net realized gains on investinents increased 17.1%, or $187,581, to $1,281,755 in 2005 from $1,094,174 a year ago. This increase was a combi-
nation of the timing of sales of individual securities and other-than-temporary impairments on investments. There were no impairment charges
included in net realized gains on investments in 2005 compared to $535,487 in 2004. Included in impairment charges for 2004 is a write down of
$334,136 related to a private equity investment due to its financial uncertainty. For more information concerning impairment charges, see
"Critical Accounting Policies-Other-Than-Temporary Impairment of Invesunents” below.

Codification_and Subscription Fees. ALPC's codification and subseription fees decreased 13.3%, or $530,747, to $3,474,668 in 2003 from
$4,005,415 in 2004. In 2004, ALPC engaged in a one-time project which generated additional fees that were not received in 2005.

Management Fees. Our management fees increased to $713,697 in 2005 from $33,710 in 2004 as a result of pricing actions, favorable unemploy-
ment experience during 2005 and cancellation of a poor perforning account at the end of 2004. We expect management fees to vary from period
to period depending on unemployment levels and benefic charges.

Losses and Loss Adjustrnent Expenses. Losses and LAE decreased 50.6%, or $23,901,695, to $23,335,620 in 2005 from §47,237,315 in 2004.
This decline was mostly due to a decrease in losses and LAE of $19,738,370 for the discontinued bond program. See “Overview-Discontinued
Bond Program” above and Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the discontinued bond program. Excluding the
discontnued bond program, losses and LLAE declined 15.4%, or $4,163,325, to $22,912,887 in 2003 from $27,076,212 in 2004 primarily due to a
decrease in UTLI losses and LAE which was partially offset by an increase in losses and LAE for our CPI, GAP, UC and WIP business.

UL losses and LAE decreased 27.3%, or $5,883,793, to $15,685,102 in 2005 from $21,568,897 in 2004, The decrease was due pritnarily to favor-

able loss development during 2005 as a result of fewer loan defaults, bankruptcies and automobile repossessions among our ULl customers com-
bined with a decrease in business.
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CPI losses and LAE increased 14.0%, or $98,070, to $798,465 in 2005 from $700,395 in 2004 which is consistent with the growth in the business.
GAP losses and LAE increased 22.7%, or $941,850, to $5,088,477 in 2005 from $4,146,627 in 2004 principally due to growth in the business.

Losses and LAE for our UC products increased 98.6%, or $422,214, to $850,405 in 2005 compared to $428,191 in 2004 due to favorable loss
development in 2004 on an excess of loss policy that was cancelled at the end of 2003 as well as unfavorable loss development on our bonded serv-
ice program during 2005.

WIP losses and LAE increased 129.2%, or $272,771, to $483,925 in 2005 from $211,154 in 2004. This increase is consistent with the growth in
WIP net premiums earned as the Company records loss and LAE reserves for WIP using an expected loss ratio reserving method, which is based
on a certain percentage of net premiums earned.

For more information concerning losses and LAE, see "Critical Accounting Policies-Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves” below.

miggions, Other In C erag enses and_General and Administrative enses. Commission expense increased 21.9%, or
$2,465,946, o $13,750,996 in 2005 from $11,285,05(+in 2004 principally due to the growth in GAP and WIP premiums combined with improved
loss performance for one of our ULI general agents, which resulted in an increase to contingent commissions. Other insurance operating expens-
es and general and administrative expenses combined rose 64.3%, or $4,466,521, to $11,417,186 in 2005 from $6,950,665 in 2004 primarily due
to legal fees related to the Audit Committee’s independent investigation of E& Y’ withdrawal of its audit reports, the SEC private investigation
and the discontinued bond program arbitrations, as well as an increase in audic fees. We believe a significant portion of this increzse represents
one-time expenses.

Codification and Subscription Expenses. Codification and subscription expenses incurred by ALPC decreased 20.9%, or $741,844, to $2,809,700
in 2005 from $3,551,544 a year ago. This decrease was consistent with the decline in codification and subscription revenues and was primarily
ateributable to the completion of a one-time project during 2004 that generated additional expenses for last year as well as an impairment write-
down of a database in the second quarter of 2004,

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased 28.8%, or $257,900, to $1,152,363 in 2005 from $894,463 a year ago as a result of rising interest rates,
See “Liquidity and Capital Resources” for discussion of the Company’s trust preferred debt issued to affiliates, which makes up the majority of the
Company’s interest expense.

Federal Income Taxes. Federal income tax expense was $1,876,571 in 2005 compared to federal income tax (benefit) of $(4,767,432) in 2004, The
benefit in 2004 was primanly caused by tax losses arising from the discontinued bond program losses.

GAAP Combined Ratig. For 2003, the combined ratio decreased to 93.6% from 129.7% a year ago. The loss ratio improved to 45.8% in 2005
from 95.1% in 2004 due principally 1o the decrease in losses and LAE for the discontinued bond program. Excluding the discontinued bond pro-
gram losses and LAE, the Company's loss ratio was 45.0% in 2005 compared to 54.8% in 2004. This improvement was attributable to the per-
formance of our ULL, CPI, GAP and WIP product lines. The expense ratio increased to 47.8% in 2005 from 34.6% in 2004 primarily due to an
increase in commission expense and other insurance operating expenses as described above.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Lender/Dealer Products

We believe the nadonal economy remains unstable. National automobile sale volumes were down tn 2006 compared to 2005 which resulted in a
decline in lending volumes for many our automobile lender/dealer customers. As a result, our premium volume was down in 2006 compared to
2005. If this trend condnues, we could experience a premium decline in 2007 as well.

During the third quarter of 2005, one of our managing general agents moved 2 portion of its ULI and GAP premium in an effort to more even-
ly disuribute its business with existing insurance carriers. As a result, the Company expects a decline in premiums earned of $1.6 million and a
decline in losses, commissions and premium taxes incurred of approximately $1.3 million for this managing general agent for fiscal year 2007 when
compared to fiscal year 2006, In addition, 2 ULI financial institution customer cancelled its policy at the end of second quarter 2006. As a result,
the Company expects a decline in premiums earned of $1.9 million and 2 decline in losses, commission and premium taxes incurred of approxi-
mately $1.8 million for this customer for fiscal year 2007 when compared to fiscal year 2006.

If the rate of loan defaults, bankruptcies and automobile repossessicns increase for our ULI customers, we would anticipate an increase in the fre-
quency of osses for this product line. Incentives being offered on new cars by dealers and manufacturers have depressed the value of the used car
market. [n addition, the higher level of gas prices could lower the marker value of less fuel-efficient vehicles. If used car prices continue to decline,
the “gap” between the value of the vehicle and the outstanding loan balance would increase and thus the severity of our GAP losses would increase.
The Company has taken pricing actions to help mitigate the effect of these trends.

Effective January I, 2007, the Company entered into a producer-owned reinsurance arrangement with a new CPI customer whereby 100% of that
customer’s premiums (along with the associated risk) were ceded to its PORC. For this program, the CPI coverage is voluntary and is primarily
for tractors and residential/commercial mowers as opposed to automobiles. The Company receives a ceding commission based on a percentage
of the premiums ceded. For this reinsurance arrangement, the Company obtains collateral in the form of funds held and a letter of credit to secure
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its obligations. Under the provisions of the reinsurance agreement, the collateral must be equal to or grearer than 102% of the reinsured reserves
and the Company has immediare access to such collateral if necessary. If the customer’s premium projections for 2007 are accurate, this program
should reduce our commission expense by approximately $0.2 million to $0.3 million during 2007.

Unemployment Compensation and Other Specialty Products

The Company believes that there has been a stabilizatdon of benefit charge levels in our UC product customer base; however, if unemployment
levels rise, we could experience lower management fees and/or increased losses for our UC products. Furthermore, any developments on the dis-
continued bond program and related Highlands arbitration could have a material impact on our results of operations and/or financtal condition.

Since the Company began participating in the waste surety bond program in 2004 there have not been any claims to date. If the Company were
to have claims experience on this program during 2007, such claims experience could have an impact to our financial performance if our reserves
prove to be deficient.

As discussed above in “Risk Factors - Automobile Service Contract Program,” this program could have an impact to our 2007 financial perform-
ance if the Company is required to pay claims under the program and it is unable to draw on the letter of credit and cannot collect on the rein-
surance.

Sale of Affiliate

During 2006, 2005 and 2004, ALPC had pretax income of approximately $0.3 million, $0.7 million and $0.5 millien, respectively, which is includ-
ed in our results of operatons. As the Company sold ALPC on August 31, 2006, the operadons of ALPC are no longer included in our consol-
idated financial statements, other than our equity investment in the Purchaser. As a result of this wransaction, we do not expect our 2007 opera-
dons to include the same level of profit that was contributed by ALPC in previous years.

Expenses and Investments

During 2006, the Company experienced a high level of legal expenses associated with the discontinued bond program arbitrations. The Company
andcipates it will condnue to incur legal costs during 2007 for the Highlands arbitradon; however, the Company believes its totl bond program
arbitradon costs will be significanty reduced in 2007 when compared to 2006.

If interest rates continue to rise during 2007, it would increase the level of interest expense on the Company’s trust preferred debt and any bor-
rowings under its revolving line of credit. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources” below for more informatden concerning our trust preferred debt
and revolving line of credit. In addition, a rise in interest rates could decrease the fair value of the Company’ fixed income investment portfolio.

Based on the above, our outlook for 2007 remains cautious.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Liquidity and capital resources demonstrate the Company's ability to generate sufficient cash flows from its operadons and borrow funds at com-
petitive rates to meet operating and growth needs. As of December 31, 2006, the Company’s capital structure consists of trust preferred debrissued
to affiliates and sharcholders’ equity and is summarized in the following table:

2006 2005 2004
Trust preferred debt issued to BIC Statutory Trust L.....oovvvecenncrnnncranne $ 8,248,000 $ 8,248,000 $ 8,248,000
Trust preferred debt issued to BIC Statutory Trust I...... 7,217,000 7,217,000 7,217,000
Bank note payable ... e - - 500,000
Total debt blgAtONS ..o e raanae 15,465,000 15,465,000 15,965,000
‘Total shareholders’ eqUItY ....ccoiccsiiminise s seens 36,365,619 30,079,626 24,846,288
Total capitalization ... $51,830,619 $ 45,544,626 $ 40,811,288
Ratio of total debt obligadons to total capitalization 29.8% 34.0% 39.1%

In December 2002, we organized BIC Statutory Trust I ("BIC Trust I'), a Connecticut special purpose business trust, which issued $8,000,000 of
floating rate trust preferred capiral securides in an exempt private placement transaction, BIC Trust I also issued $248,000 of floating rate com-
mon securities to Bancinsurance. In September 2003, we organized BIC Statutory Trust II ("BIC Trust I1"), a Delaware special purpose business
trust, which issued $7,000,000 of floating rate trust preferred capital securities in an exempt private placement transaction. BIC Trust Il also issued
$217,000 of floating rate common securites to Bancinsurance. BIC Trust I and BIC Trust II {collectively, the “Trusts”) were formed for the sole
purpose of issuing and selling the floating rate trust preferred capital securities and investing the proceeds from such securities in junior subordi-
nated debentures of the Company. In connection with the issuance of the trust preferred capital securities, the Company issued junior subordi-
nated debentures of $8,248,000 and $7,217,000 to BIC Trust I and BIC Trust II, respectively. The floating rate trust preferred capital securities
and the junior subordinated debentures have substantally the same terms and condidons. The Company has fully and uncondidonally guaran-
teed the obligadons of the Trusts with respect to the floating rate trust preferred capital securities. The Trusts distribute the interest received from
the Company on the junior subordinated debentures to the holders of their floating rate trust preferred capital securities to fulfill their dividend
obligations with respect to such trust preferred securities. BIC Trust I's floating rate trust preferred capital securities, and the junior subordinat-
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ed debentures issued in connection therewith, pay dividends and interest, as applicable, on a quarterly basis at a rate equal to three month LIBOR
plus four hundred basis points (9.37% and 8.44% at December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectvely), are redeemable at par on or after December 4,
2007 and mature on December 4, 2032. BIC Trust IT's floating rate wrust preferred capital securities, and the junior subordinated debentures issued
in connection therewith, pay dividends and interest, as applicable, on a quarterly basis at a rate equal to three month LIBOR plus four hundred
and five basis points (9.41% and 8.58% at December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectvely), are redeemable at par on or after September 30, 2008 and
mature on September 30, 2033. The proceeds from the junior subordinated debentures were used for general corporate purposes and provided
addidonal financial flexibility to the Company. The terms of the junior subordinated debentures conmin various restrictive covenants. As of
December 31, 2006, the Company was in compliance with all such covenants.

We also have a $10,000,000 unsecured revolving line of credit with a matwrity date of June 30, 2009 with no outstanding balance at December 31,
2006 and December 31, 2005. The revolving line of credit provides for interest payable quarterly at an annual rate equal to the prime rate less 73
basis points. The Company utilizes the line of credit from time to time based on short-term cash flow needs. The terms of the revolving credit
agreement comain various restrictive covenants. As of December 31, 2006, the Company was in compliance with all such covenants.

The short-term cash requirements of our property/casualty business primarily consist of paying losses and LAE, reinsurance premiums and day-
to-day operating expenses. Historically, we have met those requirements through short-term investments and cash receipts from operations, which
consist primarily of insurance premiums collected, reinsurance recoveries and investment income. Qur investment portfolio is a source of addi-
tonal liquidity through the sale of readily marketable fixed maturides, equity securities and short-term investments. After satisfying our cash
requirements, excess cash flows from our underwriting and investment activides are used to build the investment portfolio and thereby increase
future investment income.

Because of the nature of the risks we insure on a direct basis, losses and LAE emanating from the insurance policies that we issue are generally
characterized by relatively short settlement periods and quick development of ultimate losses compared to claims emanating from other types of
insurance products. Therefore, we believe we can estimate our cash needs to meet our policy obligations and utilize cash flows from operadons
and cash and short-term investments to meet these obligations. The Company considers the relationship between the duration of ocur policy obli-
gations and our expected cash flows from operations in determining our cash and short-term investment position. We maintain a level of cash and
liquid short-term investments which we believe will be adequate to meet our andeipated cash needs without being required to liquidate interme-
diate-term and long-term investments. At December 31, 2006, total cash and short-term invesnments were approximately $10.1 million and gross
logs and LAE reserves, excluding the discontinued bond program, were approximately $7.5 miliion.

As discussed in “Overview-Discontinued Bond Program” above and in Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, discontinued bond pro-
gram loss and LAE reserves were $6.4 million at December 31, 2006. Ultimate payment on the discontinued bond program may result in an
increase in cash outflows from operations and may impact our financial condition by reducing our invested assets, We consider the discontinued
bond program liabilities and related Highlands arbitration as we manage our assets and liabilides. In selecting the maturity of securites in which
we invest, we consider the relationship between the duradon of our fixed-income investments with the expected payout of our liabilides for the
discontinued bond program. There are no significant vaniations between the maturity of our investments and the expected payout of our Yoss and
LAE reserves for the discontinued bond program.

We believe that both liquidity and interest rate risk can be minimized by such asset/liability management described above. With this strategy, man-
agement believes we can pay our policy liabilites as they be¢ome due without being required to use our credit facilities or liquidate intermediate-
term and long-term investients; however, in the event that such action is required, it is not anticipated to have a material impact on our results
of operations, financial condition and/or future liquidity.

USA derives its funds principally from commissions and fees which are currently sufficient to meet its operating expenses.

Cash flows (used in) provided by operating activities totaled $(11,014,388), $14,813,168 and $8,657,804 for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The
increase in cash used in 2006 {as compared to 2003) was primarily the result of an increase in paid losses for the discontinued bond program, ceded
reinsurance pavinents and management fee payments to our cost containment service firins, which were partally offset by a decrease in commis-
sions paid as well as a decrease in audit and legal expenses related to the withdrawal by the Company’s former independent registered public
accounting firm in 2005. The increase in paid losses for the discontinued bond program was primarily due to the Aegis and Sirius settlements and
the Harco Final Order (see “Overview-Discontinued Bond Program” and Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for addidonal infor-
mation concerning these arbitrations). The increase in cash provided in 2005 (as compared to 2004) was primarily the result of an increase in
invesament income collected, an increase in net cash flows from contract funds on deposit and funds held under reinsurance arrangements, a
decrease in paid losses and LAE and federal income taxes recovered during 2005 compared to federal income taxes paid during 2004, These
increases in cash flows in 2005 were partially offset by an increase in commissions and other expenses paid and 2 decrease in net premiums col-
tected compared to 2004,

Ohio Indemnity is restricted by the insurance laws of the State of Ohio as to amounts that can be transferred to Bancinsurance in the form of div-
idends without the approval of the Department. During 2007, the maximum amount of dividends that may be paid to Bancinsurance by Ohio
Indemnity without prior approval is limited to $4,915,331.

Ohio Indemnity is subject to a risk based capital test applicable to property/casualty insurers, The risk based capital rest serves as a benchmark of

an insurance enterprise’s solvency by state insurance regulators by establishing statutory surplus targets which will require certain company level
or regulatory level actions. Ohio Indemnity’s total adjusted capital was in excess of all required action levels as of December 31, 20006.
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Given the Company’s historic cash flows and current financial condition, management believes that the cash flows from operating and investing
activities over the next year will provide sufficient liquidity for the operations of the Company. Qur line of credit provides us with additional lig-
uidity that could be used for short-term cash requirements if cash from operations and investments is not sufficient.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
The following table sets forth the Company’s contractual obligations at December 31, 2006:

Payments Due By Period

Less than 1-3 3.5 More than
Total 1 year years years 3 years
Contractual Obligatons:
Trust preferred debt issued to affiliates’..... $ 15,465,000 ) - $ - $ - $ 15,465,000
Operating 1eases ..o 453952 224,009 229943 - -
Loss and LAE 1eServes’ ...........oremmsssimsons 13,823,240 9,838,781 3,984,459 - -
TOEA ettt $ 29,742,192 510,062,790 § 4214402 § - $ 15,463,000

® In accordance with the provisions of the debt agreements, the BIC Trust I and BIC Trust I1 debt obligations are redeemable at par
on December 4, 2007 and September 30, 2008, respectively. The table above assumes payout at maturity date rather than redemption date.

@ Qur loss and LAE reserves do not have contractual marurity dates; however, based on historical payment patterns, we have included an

] ’ payment p »
estimate of when we expect our loss and LLAE reserves to be paid in the above table. The exact timing of the payment of claims cannot be
predicted with certainty. The actual payment amounts and the related timing of those payments could differ significantly from these estmates.

INFLATION
We do not consider the impact of inflation to be material in the analysis of our overall operations.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements requires us to make estimates, assumptions and judgments that affect the reported
amounts of assets, revenues, liabilities and expenses and related disclosures of contingent assets and abilities. We regularly evaluate these esti-
mates, assumptions and judgments. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various assumptions that we believe to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual results may differ materially from these estimates, assumptions and judgments under different assumptions or
conditions. Set forth below are the critcal accounting policies that we believe require significant estimates, assumptions and judgments and are
critical to an understanding of our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment of Investments

We continually monitor the difference berween the cost and the estimated fair value of our investments, which involves uncerrainty as to whether
declines in value are temporary in nature. If we believe a decline in the value of a particular available for sale investment is temporary, we record
the decline as an unrealized loss in our shareholders' equity. 1f we believe the decline in any investment is "other-than-temporarily impaired,” we
write down the carrying value of the investment and record a realized loss. Our assessment of a decline in value includes our current judgment as
to the financial position and future prospects of the entity that issued the investment security. If that judgment changes in the future, we may uld-
mately record a realized loss after having originally concluded that the decline in value was temporary.

The following discussion summarizes our process of reviewing our investments for possible impairment.

Fixed Maturities. On a monthly basis, we review our fixed maturity securities for impairment. We consider the following factors when evaluat-
ing potential impairment:

»  the length of time and extent to which the estimated fair value has been less than book value;

*  the degree to which any appearance of impairment is attributable to an overall change in market conditions (e.g., interest rates)

*  the degree to which an issuer is current or in arrears in making principal and interest/dividend payments on the securities in question;

* the financial condition and future prospects of the issuer, including any specific events that may influence the issuer's operations and its

ability to make future scheduled principal and interest payments on a tmely basis;

e the independent auditor's report on the issuer's most recent financial statements;

*  buy/hold/sell recommendations of investment advisors and analysts;

*  relevant rating history, analysis and guidance provided by rating agencies and analysts; and

*  our ability and intent to hold the sceurity for a period of time sufficient to allow for recovery in the estimated fair value.

Equity Securities. On a monthly basis, we review our equity securities for impairment. We consider the following factors when evaluating poten-
tial impairment:

*  the length of time and extent to which the estimated fair value has been less than book value;

»  whether the decline appears to be related to general market or industry conditions or is issuer-specific;

*  the financial condition and future prospects of the issuer, including any specific events that may influence the issuer’s operations;

*  the recent income or loss of the issuer;
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»  the independent auditor's report on the issuer's most recent financial statements;

*  buy/hold/sell recommendatdions of investment advisors and anaiysts;

*  relevant rating history, analysis and guidance provided by rating agencies and analysts; and

*  our ability and intent to held the security for 2 period of ime sufficient to allow for recovery in the estimated fair value,

In addition to the monthly valuation procedures described above, we continually monitor developments affectng our invested assets, paying par-
ticular attendon to events that might give rise to impairment write-downs. There were $7,310, $0 and $535,487 in impairment charges included
in ner realized gains on investments for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Included in impairment charges for
2004 is a write down of $334,136 related to a private equity investment due to its financial uncerrainty. Impairments within the portfolio during
2007 are possible if current economic and financial conditdons worsen. See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional infor-
maton with respect to securitdes in an unrealized loss posidon at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves

The Company utlizes its internal staff, reports from ceding insurers under assumed reinsurance and an independent consulting actuary in estab-
lishing its loss and LAE reserves. The Company’s independent consulting actuary reviews the Company’s reserve for losses and LAE on a quar-
terly basis. The Company considers this review in establishing the amount of its reserves for losses and LAE.

Our projecton of ulumate loss and LAE reserves are esumates of future events, the outcomes of which are unknown to us at the time the projec-
ton is made. Considerable uncertainty and variability are inherent in the esimation of loss and LAE reserves. As a result, it is possible that actu-
al experience may be materially different than the esumates reported. The Company continually refines reserve estimates as experience develops
and further claims are reported and resolved. The Company reflects adjustments to reserves in the results of the periods in which such adjustments
are made.

Assumed Business. Assumed reinsurance is a line of business with inherent volatility. Since the length of dme required for the losses to be report-
ed through the reinsurance process can be quite long, unexpected events are more difficult to predict. Uldmate loss reserve estimates for assumed
reinsurance are dependent upon and based primarily on reports received by the Company from the underlying ceding insurers. These reports are
the primary basis for the Company’s reserving estimates. ‘

As discussed in “Overview-Discontinued Bond Program” above and in Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements , discontinued bond pro-
gram loss and LAE reserves were $6.4 million at December 31, 2006. Given the uncertaindes of the outcotne of the Highlands arbitration, uncer-
tainties in the future loss information provided by Harco and Highlands, and the inherent volatlity in assumed reinsurance, actual losses incurred
for the discontinued bond program could be materially different from our estimated reserves. As a result, future loss development on the discon-
tinued bond program could have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations and/or financial condition.

For the Company’ assumed WIP program, the Company is recording loss and LAE reserves using a loss ratio reserving methodology. The loss
ratic method calculates a reserve based on expected lasses in reladon to premiums earned. The expected loss ratio for the program was selected
using expected loss information provided by the ceding insurer,

Direct Business. For our direct business, estimates of ultimate loss and LAE reserves are based on our historical loss development experience. In
using this historical informarion, we assume that past loss development is predictive of future development. Qur assumptions allow for changes
in claims and underwriting operations, as now known or andcipated, which may impact the level of required reserves or the emergence of losses.
However, we do not anticipate any extraordinary changes in the legal, social or economic environments that could affect the ulimate outcome of
claims or the emergence of claims from causes not currently recognized in our historical data. Such extraordinary changes or claims emergence
may impact the level of required reserves in ways that are not presently quantifiable. Thus, while we believe our reserve estimates are reasonable
given the informaton currently available, actual emergence of losses could deviate materially from our estimates and from amounts recorded by
us.

We conducted a reserve study using historical losses and LAE by product line or coverage within product line. We prepared our estimates of the
gross and net loss and LAE reserves using annual accident year loss development wiangles for the following products:

¢ ULI -limited liability (“ULIL")

e ULI - non-limited lability (“ULIN")
» CPI

*  GAP

Historical "age-to-age” loss development factors ("LDF") were calculated to measure the relatve development for each accident year from one
maturity point to the next. Based on the historical LDF, we selected age-to-age LDF that we believe are appropriate to estimate the remaining
future development for each accident year. These selected factors are used to project the uldmate expected losses for each accident year. The valid-
ity of the results from using a loss development approach can be affected by many conditdons, such as claim department processing changes, a shift
between single and multdple payments per claim, legal changes or variations in our mix of business from year to year. Also, because the percent-
age of losses paid for immature years is often low, development factors are volatile. A small variation in the number of claims paid can have a lever-
aging effect that can lead to significant changes in estimated ultimate losses. Therefore, ultimate values for immature accident years may be based
on alternative estimation techniques, such as expected loss ratio method, or some combination of acceptable actwarial methods.
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For our UC, WIP and other specialty product lines, the Company prepared estimates of loss and LAE reserves based on certain actuarial and other
assumptions related to the uldimate cost expected to settle such claims.

We record reserves on an undiscounted basis. Our reserves reflect anticipated salvage and subrogation included as a reduction to foss and LAE
reserves. We do not provide coverage that could reasonably be expected to produce asbestos and/or environmental liability claims activity or mate-
ria} levels of exposure to claims-made extended reporting options,

In establishing our reserves, we tested our data for reasonableness, such as ensuring there are no outstanding case reserves on closed claims, and
consistency with data used in our previous estimates. We found no material discrepancies or inconsistencies in our data. We did not expenience
any significant change in the number of claims paid that was inconsistent with our business (other than claims related to the discontinued bond
program), average claim paid or average claim reserve that would be inconsistent with the types of risks we insured in the respective years.

t Year End. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, gross loss and LAE reserves by product line were split between incurred
but not reported (“IBNR”) and case reserves as follows:

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005

IBNR Case IBNR Case
ULI - limited Lability (‘ULIL")..ccoonmccniicnnn $ 1,451,145 S 77,358 $ 1,655.241 $ 245,840
ULI - non-limited Liability (“ULIN").............. 267,542 558,024 206,567 1,146,213
CP1 241,706 42,131 233,212 33,879
GAP 2,515,611 40,000 2,110,875 184,766

ucC 847,259 - 1,057,716 -

WIP 1,358,717 - 778,445 -
Discontinued bond program ...........ceovmmemimenes 5,483,867 882,310 6,827.179 12,798,950
Odher specialty products ..., 57,570 - 21,840 3,500
"TOT] v eereseoeesees e $12,223 417 S 1599823  § 12891075  $ 14,413,148

‘T'he Company calculates a reserve range for its lender/dealer product lines (ULL, CPI and GAP) and calculates point estimates for UC, WIP and
other specialty product lines. As of December 31, 2006, our indicated gross loss and LAE reserve range for lender/dealer products was $3.6 mil-
lion to $5.8 million and our recorded loss and LAE reserves were §5.2 million.

During 2006, reserves for incurred losses and LAE attributable to insured events of prior years increased by approximately $0.1 million as a result
of re-estimarion of unpaid losses and LAE principally on the Company’s discontinued bond program. An analysis of this increase is provided below.

For the discontinued bond program, the Company recorded reserve deficiencies of approximately $1.8 million during 2006. The reserve deficiencies
were primarily atrributable to the Harco Final Order combined with an increase in reported losses from Harco. See “Overview-Discontinued Bond
Program” and Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information concerning the discontinued bond program losses.

The discontinued bond program deficiencies were partally offset by reserve redundancies in our automobile lender/dealer, UC and WIP product
lines. Our automobile lender/dealer line experienced the largest redundancy ( $1.1 million) which was primarily auributable to the GAP and ULIN
product lines as discussed below.

GAP experienced reserve redundancies of approximately $0.6 million during 2006. The improvement in loss experience primarily related to the
2005 accident year. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company’s ultimate selected loss ratio for the 2005 accident year was 58.2% and 62.3%,
respectively. Changes in this key assumption occurred primarily during the first half of 2006 as the majority of our GAP losses are settled within
six months from the date of loss. When estimating the ultimate loss ratio at December 31, 2005, the Company selected an ultimate loss ratio for
the 2005 accident year that was comparable to previous accident years’ ultimate loss ratios. During the first half of 2006, our 2005 accident year
loss experience was more favorable than previously estimated at December 31, 2005. In accordance with SFAS No. 60, the Company recorded
this change in reserves as a change in esumate during 2006,

ULIN experienced reserve redundancies of approximately $0.3 million during 2006. The improvement in loss experience primarily related to the
2005 accident year. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company's ultimate selected loss ratio for the 2005 accident year was 48.2% and 48.5%,
respectively. Changes in this key assumption occurred primarily during the first half of 2006 as the majority of our ULIN losses are settled with-
in four months from the date of loss. When estimating the ultimate loss ratio at December 31, 2005, the Company selected an ultimate loss ratio
for the 2005 accident year that was comparable to previous accident years’ ultimate loss ratios. During the first half of 2006, our 2005 accident year
loss experience was more favorable than previously estimated at December 31, 2005. In accordance with SFAS No. 60, the Company recorded
this change in reserves as a change in estimate during 2006.

For our direct business, the majority of our losses are short-tail in nature and adjustments to reserve amounts occur rather quickly. Conditions that

affected the above redundancies in reserves may not necessarily occur in the future. Accordingly, it may not be appropriate to extrapolate this
redundancy to future periods.
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Codification and Subscription Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue from municipal code contracts is recognized on the percentage-of-compledon method: completion is measured based on the percentage
of direct labor costs incurred to date compared to estimated direct labor costs for each contract. While we use available information to estimate
total direct labor costs on each contract, actual experience may vary from estimated amounts. Under this methed, the costs incurred and the relat-
ed revenues are included in the income statement as work progresses. Adjustments to contract cost estimates are made in the periods in which the
facts which require such revisions become known. If a revised estmate indicates 2 loss, such loss is provided for in its entirety. "The amount by
which revenues are earned in advance of contractual collection dates is an unbilled receivable and the amounr by which contractual billings exceed
earned revenues is deferred revenue which is carried as a liability. As the Company sold ALLPC on August 31, 2006, this is a critical accounting pol-
icy through that date only. See “Overview-Sale of Affiliate” above and Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information concern-
ing this wransaction.

Equity-Based Compensation Expense

The fair value of options granted by the Company are estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes opton pricing model (“Black-Scholes
model”). The Black-Scholes model is utilized by the Company to calculate equity-based compensation expense and it uses various assumptions
such as risk-free rate, expected life, expected volatlity and dividend yield. The risk-free rate is based on the United States Treasury strip curve at
the time of the grant with a term approximating that of the expected option life. The Company analyzes historical data regarding option exercise
behaviors, expirations and cancelladons to calculate the expected life of the options granted, which represents the length of ume in years that the
options granted are expected to be outstanding. Expected volatlides are based on historical voladlity over a period of time using the expected term
of the option grant and using weekly stock prices of the Company; however for options granted after February 4, 2005, the Company excludes the
period from February 4, 2005 through January 25, 2006 (the period in which shareholders could not obtain current financial information for the
Company and could not rely on the Company’s 2003, 2002 and 2001 financial statements) as the Company believes that its stock price during that
peniad is not relevant in evaluating expected volatility of its common shares in the future. Dividend yield is based on historical dividends. See Note
11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information concerning the Company’s equity-based compensation expense.

Legal Marters

The Company is involved in various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business, some of which involve claims for substantial
amounts. An estimate is made to accrue for a loss contingency relating to any of these legal proceedings if management believes it is probable that
a liability was incurred as of the date of the financial statements and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. Because of the subjectve
nature inherent in assessing the outcome of lirigation and because of the potential that an adverse outcome in a legal proceeding could have a mate-
rial impact on the Company’s financial position and/or results of operations, such estimates are considered to be critical accounting esimates.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that either have, or are reasonably likely to have, a current or future effect on our financial con-
dition, changes in financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures and/or capital resources that are considered material.

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are forward-looking and are made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the
Private Securities Lidgation Reform Act of 1995, In addition, we may make other written or oral communications from tme to time that contain
forward-looking statements. Forward-locking statements convey our current expectations or forecast future events. All statements contained in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, other than statements of historical fact, are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements include state-
ments regarding our future financial position, results of cperations, business strategy, budgets, projected costs and plans and objectives of manage-
ment for future operations. The words “may,” “continue,” “estimate,” “intend,” “plan,” “will,” “believe,” “project,” “expect,” “anticipate” and sim-
ilar expressions generally identify forward-looking statements but the absence of these words does not necessarily mean that a starement is not for-
ward-looking. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performanee and involve risks and uncertainties that may cavse actual
results to differ materially from those statements. Risk factors that might cause actual results to differ from those statements include, without lim-
itation, changes in underwriting results affected by adverse econormic conditions, fluctuations in the investment markets, changes in the rewil mar-
ketplace, changes in the laws or regulations affecting the operations of the Company, changes in the business tactics or strategies of the Company,
the financial condition of the Company’s business partners, changes in market forces, litigation, developments in the discontinued bond program
and related Highlands arbitradon, the ongoing SEC private investigation and the concentratons of ownership of the Company'’s common shares
by members of the Sokol family, and other risk factors identified in our filings with the SEC, any one of which might materially affect our finan-
cial condition and/or results of operations. Any forward-looking statements speak only as of the date made. We undertake no obligation to update
any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances arising after the date on which they are made.

I'TEM 7A. QU TATIVE UALITATTVE DISCLOS ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that we will incur losses due to adverse changes in market rates and prices. The major components of market risk affecting
the Company are interest rate risk, credit risk and equity risk. We have no foreign exchange risk or direct commodity risk. Our market risk sen-
sitive instruments are entered into for purposes other than trading. During 2006, there were no material changes in our primary market risk expo-
sures or in how these exposures were managed compared to 2005, The following is a discussion of our primary market risk exposures and how we
manage those exposures. The discussion is limited to financial instruments subject to marker risks and is not intended to be a complete discussion
of all the risks the Company is exposed to in the ordinary course of business. For more information concerning the risks the Company is exposed
to in the ordinary course of business, see “Risk Factors That May Affect Future Results” above.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that we will incur losses due to adverse changes in interest rates. Qur exposure to interest rate changes primarily results
from our holdings of fixed maturity invesunents and from our debt obligations.
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Inzvestments. Interest rate risk is the risk that interest rates will change and cause a decrease in the value of the Company’s investments. We miti-
gate this risk by attempting to ladder the maturity schedule of our investments. At December 31, 2006, our fixed maturity portfolio had an aver-
age duration of 3.96 years (3.57 years at December 31, 2005). At December 31, 2006, we did not own any material non-invesanent grade securi-
ties. We believe that a high quality investunent portfolio is more likely to generate stable and predictable investment returns.

The following table summarizes the projected cash flows and estimated fair values of our fixed maturity investments at December 31, 2006, which

are sensitive to changes in interest rates. We have excluded short-term investments from the amounts shown below because we have determined
the interest rate risk related to those instruments to be immaterial. The table also presents the average interest rate for each period presented.

Projected Cash Flows

December 31, 2006

There- Estimated
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 after Total Fair Value
Assers
Fixed maturity securities:
Held to mawrity ............... $§ 755000 $ 1,250,000 § - § 1,250,000 § 775000 $ 690,000 § 4,720,000 $ 4,850,986
Awailable for sale................ $ 5,900,000 $ 6,710,000 § 10,530,000 $12,845,000 § 5,745,000 $26,620,000 $68,440,000 § 68,547,886
Weighted-average interest rate:
Fixed maturity securides... 4.08% 4.58% 4.30% 4.66% 4.80% 4.82% 4.62%

Debr. The market risk for our outstanding long-term debt is interest rate risk. Because our outstanding long-term debt has a floating interest rate,
we are exposed to the effects of changes in prevailing interest rates. At December 31, 2006, we had $15.5 million of debt outstanding under our
trust preferred debt issued to affiliates. A 2.0% change in the prevailing interest rate on all of our floating rate debt would result in a correspon-
ding interest expense flucruation of approximately $300,000 on an annual basis, assuming that all of such debt is outstanding for the entire year.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the potential loss arising from adverse changes in the financial condition of a specific debt issuer. We address this risk by investing
in fixed maturity securities that are investment grade, which are those bonds rated “BBB” or higher by Standard & Poor’s. We also independent-
ly and through our outside independent investment manager monitor the financial condition of all of the issuers of fixed maturity securities in our
portfolio. In addition, we employ diversification rules that limit our credit exposure to any single issuer.

Equity Risk

Equity risk is the potential loss in market value of our equity investments resulting from an adverse change in price. We manage this risk by focus-
ing on a long-term, value oriented investment philosophy for our equity portfolio. Our strategy remains one of value investing, with security selec-
tion taking precedence over market timing. We also mitigate equity risk by diversifying our portfolio across industries and concentrations in any
one company are limited by parameters established by senior management, as well as by regulatory requirements. As of December 31, 2006,
approximately 10.2% of our investinent portfolio was invested in equity securities.
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TED AN TA UP Y DATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Bancinsurance Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Bancinsurance Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December
31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the three years then ended. Our
audits also included the financial statement schedules listed in the index at Item 15(a). These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtin reasonable assurance abour whether the financial statements are free of material misstate-
ment. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Bancinsurance
Corporation and subsidiaries at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the three years then ended
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement
schedules, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly in all marerial respects the
informaton set forth therein.

/3/Daszkal Bolton LLP
Boca Raton, Florida

February 23, 2007
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BANCINSURANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years ended December 31,

2006 2003 2004
Revenues:
INEL Premitms EarNed. ..o st st s s st SR $ 49,106,653 § 51,716,945 § 50,064,185
Net investment iNCOME .....ivrrvierrerrenss 3,845,064 3,302,659 2,164,115
Net realized gains on investments 55,719 1,281,755 1,094,174
Codification and subscripdon fees 2,255,558 3,474,668 4,005,415
Management fees.......viinisnisinennne. 830,329 713,697 33,710
Net realized gain on sale of affiliate 2,511,891 - -
D TRET TIICOMMIE .. eeeeevecestevesisserersesssrensssssessarsensassmsssonsenensssesaneestsssrassnssasssbesssiebsstonsassitsnsssasssssnntassnenn 81,428 146,786 43,123
TOtAl CEVETIUES ....cvvveeeriioreensirnressieesmasssssesesesssmssatesasesssse sessossesanessssssnsssansnsssseasnessssmsasassssners 58,686,642 60,636,510 57,404,722
Expenses:
Losses and 10ss adjustnent EXPENSES ....owcrieerivisersmiisisrssssrisamsss s ssessssssisssssmssssssssssssssnssasssanes 23,806,747 22912 887 27,076,212
Discontinued bond program losses and loss adjustment expenses ..o cccecinsinniesensinesas 1,767,496 422,733 20,161,103
COIMUIMISSION EXPENSE -.ocrveeereaerecsieeemissmessiass st s s b sssa s rR e ssssenR S A e b 12,041,054 13,750,996 11,285,050
Other insurance operating eXpenses...oocv v 9,923,782 9,989,798 6,030,136
Codification and subscription expenses 1,936,384 2,809,700 3,551,544
General and administrative expenses.....o...oceevveane 958,257 1,427,388 920,529
Interest eXpense ... 1,429,086 1,152,363 894,463
GoodWill IMPAIITIENT ...t b bt b ren s sr R st 200 - - 753,737
TOTAl EXPEISES ...ou.cevvitritiiss i ss b s s e eSS s RS 51,862,806 52,465,865 70,672,774
Income (loss) before federal INCOME TAXES ......covveeriirriisiis s s ennnaeas 6,823,836 8,170,645 (13,268,052)
Federal income tax expense (DENEAIt) ... st st 1,348,935 1,876,571 (4,767.432)
Net inCOME (LOSSEY ...oovicectcrieiiiriccs e sanecas e ass s ssia s asr s asea b ssasn s s eran s ersasaens 5 5474901 § 6,294,074 $ (8,500,620)
Net income (loss) per share:
BASIC 1vvvvveiviveeresreeosseresressesesseeessseems seseesassssssensserssessas sesaneseaseeas s esse s b et A sbe A bR et $ 1.10 § 1.27 § (1.72)
IDHIIEEA. oottt et bbb bbb bbb s s b Res b e e a b na st b ennen e s reRnenas S 1.08 § 1.26 § (1.72)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,
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BANCINSURANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,
2006 2005
Assets
Investments:
Held to maturiry:
Fixed matyrities, at amortized cost (fair value $4,850,986 in 2006 and $4,856,624 in 2005) oo cooreeecrecvenecans $ 4,793,584 § 4,821629
Available for sale:
Fixed maturities, at fair value (amoruzed cost $67,934,779 in 2006 and $72,562,204 in 2005) ..o 68,547,886 73,012,240
Equity securides, at fair value (cost $8,277,307 in 2006 and $7.597,066 in 2005) .....ccrevermecmrreccrecerccreccnsrsnissineens 9,400,247 8,043,299
Short-term investments, at cost which approximates fair valug. ... 8,263,980 8,964,738
OhEr INVESIEA AS801S.couvvrerirrreserrerneeeseseerecmsrrcrressrsessseeressassssesescesscssrsesarosseressserasess sescessssormscesssseascacssssaseussosassbitsecsscses 751,936 715,000
TTOLA] IMVESTIIENLS «.cvrerureetrrecreassstsessie s iemerssesemeesteaesree e arbssa b bR e dbes s s aemnteshee s e bt es LA SRR R ARL R L Sasbeme s fe s tm et ae et masan s s 91,757,633 95,556,906
51 1t et S EA ek bR £ e eanEa S s R R SRR e oA nE e st et st R et ea et en 1,823,191 4,528,875
Premiums reCeivABIe. ... e et e b bbb e st e st 4,534,856 5,403,960
ACCOUNTS TECEIVADIE, MOt ..ot e b bt et e e se e s s e eE s R e SRS b b b st rmnn msnns st s anasas s - 674,357
ReINSUrance reCOVETRDIES .........cooeee ettt i e e beds b b e sann e ae R4 e Rs s bbbk bbb bemsnses s resens 1,420,410 £,235,043
Prepaid reinsurance PremMILITIS .o eteerssens e sas s rsrasasea b eas e s a s s bbb cansr o bes 9,278,559 6,011,496
Deferred poliCy GCQUISIION COSES cuurierirrmrrrrieriersessermseaeseeresssers et sees s ssss e s seaes s 418 e s e esase b a1 9,454,410 9,678,821
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted codification cONtracts.......cvsnermneciserieneenss - 248,035
L0818 10 AfIHATES ..ot et o e rea bbb bbb en et E b EeR 963,389 892,523
INANEIBIE ASSELS, METui.ooiiormececeerarecet et sesis ettt bbbt rers e neR s RS SRR 844 b b SRR SRR SRR AR 4 bbb e e reneareR o6 - 771,013
ACCTUE INVESTTIENE IIICOIMIE cucutuivivcvearsererressesinsesesenasssssiassssesessssss s sessatssssssenas sabesabesesssesstsestaessesssassssbessanssssbesesetonersnsass 1,133,757 1,128,104
INEE QEfEITEA TAX ASSEL c.reoirierr it sttt crreee et seeeaemsespaesare s s b em b e nee s es s oaee e anaseseases 4B L et e e nt et eaesmnarraptbb st bes 254,713 485,461
BT ASSELS tveviveereeieeesieceeseeceeseas et stesbo b b st as e e s s s sesemssee s sarsaE s PeR bt 4o EShebm b eben st eesnea s AEA SRR RAA SRS bebed o4 b bnnn s erann s s ese s reas s 1,667,588 1,721,241
TOEAL ASSELS o.vveriesresrirssessienaserereaststsmresesnstesse s s sss bt aberess s serrats s eR e e e e s ae R TAs s S bed s smeraa s sesereasse R e RnA e R e b essia s on s $122,288.506 $ 128,335.835

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BANCINSURANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets, Continued

December 31,

2006 2005
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Reserve for unpaid losses and loss adjustment €XPENSES v e rernrieersssmsas s st st srvsss $ 7457063 § 7,678,094
Discontinued bond program reserve for unpaid losses and loss adjustment eXpenses......ovw e cvissssisssseness 6,366,177 19,626,129
TTDEATIEA PICIMLLITIS covvveveraerssrsonessrasreese oo cesbib4 s8R E 1L e eSS SRR b LSRR LB SS R s 0e 37,248,196 35,579,349
Ceded reinsurance premiums PAYADIE ... .o s 1,779,022 3,605,394
Experience rating adjustments Payable st s s s 2,251,171 2,302,850
Retrospective premium adjustments payable . i s 3,550,981 2,201,706
TFunds held under reinSUEANCE TEAUES ... .. .cecvsiicensearsesras e esssesesescasassessmees e erasbob s st r s s aas b b sae b b an e e babaEd 435,558 735,341
CONITACT FUNAS O AEPOSIL..c.cvieririisisiiiainsssissisiss st e samss s e bk SRR RS8R E s SEE1 3,741,508 3,201,124
Taxes, licenses and fees Payable e e b e 427,928 386,936
CUTTENTE FEAETAL INCOIME LAXES coeneeeeeeeeeeetctreessaseseessssrererressessasesasssssssatesssbrssentsssasnsestnsssrameststonsatssessasmnsssessrmetastsbsbasnssensssnn 266,791 570,078
DeferTed COAEd COMITUSSIONS verevveeeeeerr e eetinesbiseiiesssbsrasnssess s rasssaraesssesssensuneseamsedsbeshRRsa e b e e RRTaFab e Pr AR e bE oS sbvasasnenenmnandsbaLbRRs 1,752,278 1,337,098
COMMISSIONS PAVADIE covuvvereereiirimeemi e s s skt as s sens s AL RSS20 2,081,825 2,710,582
Billings in excess of esimated earnings on uncompleted codification CONMACTS s - 75,108
INOTES PAVADIE . cevuvveeracrisermceeecarec s teces s ers et E R P R AR LB FP RS Ren - 27,119
e TADTHEIES wveeeeeeeercistrereiceiersseretsesesrsaes b s asee b es s nesa s seserese 4 s s asb b eE s e AT S H O PeRER S msna s s s b neemara A E b EE RS ae L nmee s se bR 3,099,389 2,754,301
“Trust preferred debt issued t0 aFlAES v e s 15,465,000 15,465,000
TLORAT TEABALIEES ... ooeeeveeseesreceeeeeasee e eeeestsresorstsessesseassssesesess4e b bes s et b e e e At oo e ass b e nEae s et bbb AR LSRR Rn A nE e e s e 85,922,887 98,256,209
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ equity:
Non-voting preferred shares:
Class A Serial Preference shares without par value; authorized 100,000 shares; no shares issued
OF OUESEANIAINE - -vxrvertecvasnsisanssens i rass s sassrss s as s 44844 EEE 88081428 8 b L AR TSRS - -
Class B Serial Preference shares without par value; authorized 98,646 shares; no shares issued
OF OUESEANIEIIE +vvveeverecmsrcmseessseeinasssstsees bt onERs 444 P804 5242 R4 R4S b AR AR08 - -
Common shares without par value; authorized 20,000,000 shares; 6,170,341 shares issued at December 31,
2006 and 2005, 4,980,700 shares outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 4,972,700 shares outstanding
DeCembBEr 31, 2005 ..o eeenere et errce etk e aE RSSO LRSS bRt s 1,794,141 1,794,141
AddiTonal Paid=in CAPIEAL veuc e e et b e e R S 1,554,355 1,336,073
Accurmnulated other cOmMPrehensive INCOME ... e st s 1,142,957 588,703
REUANEA CALTIIES .. vvcceeeeveemesecreecsstasssssbss e sssme st sra st srasse s sss 1oL R R0 S s 37,607,687 32,132,786
42,099,140 35,851,703
Less: Treasury shares, at cost (1,189,641 common shares at December 31, 2006
and 1,197,641 common shares at December 31, 2005) ... s (5,733,521) (5,772,077)
Total shareholders’ EQUILY ... s 36,365,619 30,079,626
Total liabilities and shareholders’ @qQUILY ... e $122,288,506 $128,335,835

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BANCINSURANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Accumulated
Additional other Total
Preferred Shares  Commeon  paid-in comprehensive Retained Treasury shareholders’
Class A Class B shares capital income earnings shares equity
Balance at December 31, 2003........ - - $1,794,141 § 1337138 $1,920265 $34,339.332 $(6,025,848) §33,365,028
Comprehensive loss:
NEL 1085t ser s - - - - - (8,500,620) - (8,500,620}
Unrealized losses, net of tax and
reclassification adjustment.......... - - - - (270,826) - - {270,826)
Total comprehensive loss.............. (8.771,446)
56,250 shares issued in connecticn
with the exercise of stock options,
net of tax benefit .c.oooveerierecnecns - - - (1,065) - - 253,771 252,706
Balance at December 31, 2004........ - - 1,794,141 _ 1,336,073 1,649,439 25838712 (5,772,077) 24,846,288
Comprehensive income:
Net income ........coomeeninnnerieccnenss - - - - - 6,294,074 - 6,294,074
Unrealized losses, net of tax and
reclassification adjusument.......... - - - - {1,060,736) - - (1,060,736)
Total comprehensive income ....... 5,233,338
Balance at December 31, 2005........ - - 1,794,141 1,336,073 588,703 32,132,786 (5,772,077 30,079,626
Comprehensive income:
Net INCOmE.....oovsereersrersessansne - - - - - 5,474,901 - 5,474,901
Unrealized losses, net of tax and
reclassification adjustment ..... - - - - 554,254 - - 554,254
Total comprehensive income... 6,029,155
Equity-based compensation
CXPENSE wrrvrrrreeanns P, - - - 217,958 - - - 217,958
8,000 shares issued in connection
with the exercise of stock options,
net of tax benefit.............. - - - 324 - - 38,556 38,880

Balance at December 31, 2006 ..

$1,794,141% 1,554,355

§1,142,957 §37,607,687 $(5,733,521) $36,365,619

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BANCINSURANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Cash flows from operating activides:
NEL INCOME (I055)...rvcervrrarecasesssesssssesessrerasssssssssarsssressesmseceseessesssmmsessessssese seassemesssstsisssssnssisssassas 5474901 § 6,294074  $(8,500,620)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
GoOdWill IMPAUIMIENT w...cvvrcices vttt e bt mnn st st basens - - 753,737
Net realized gains on iNVESHMENLS ... e s e st s ssss (55,719)  (1,281,755) (1,094,174}
Net realized gain on sale of affiliate ..., (2,511,891) - -
Net realized (gains) losses on disposal of property and equipment - 658 (183)
Depreciation and amortization ............... . 620,546 621,282 712,002
Equity-based compensation expense 217,958 - -
Deferred federal income tax (benefit) expense 54,777) 1,697,332 (2,350,920}
Change in assets and liabilities:
Premuums TCEIVABLE ..ot et 869,104 2,507,419 2,750,387
Accounts receivable, net........cc.ocenee.... 138,209 36,168 282,568
Reinsurance recoverables.....ccvanien (185,367) 708,559 2,982,844
Prepaid reinsurance premiums............. (3,267,063)  (3,151,786) 9,384,878
Deferred policy acquisition costs ......... 224,411 (2,454,826) (2,261,845)
Other 255618, MEL wuraiiciceiriaresssseseereserressereseeressssssnsrssraresaenss (338,709) 3,304,895 (3,070,832)
Reserve for unpaid losses and loss adjustment eXpenses........oeremisimisnsrsnsesssesseees (13,480,983)  (3,462,244) 16,380,548
UNEArNed PreIUUINIS «.cuvruerurarrmecessirinsssssiseesermsssiesssessssssensasssessesasssebtsbassbandabssssessssssseonssasassen 1,668,847 7,860,201 2,595,011
Ceded reinsurance premiums payable ..... (1,826,372) 3,111,431 (1,228,000)
Experience rating adjustments payable (51,679) 846,447 (5,541,381)
Rewrospective premium adjustments payable .............. 1,349,275 (5,074,519} 1,905,952
Funds held under reinsurance weaties (299,783) (518,455) (1,392,897)
Contract funds on deposit ......coovvreveeees 540,384 2,389,766 (1,096,826}
Deferred ceded COMMUSSIONS.......c.ciiiiiaiiesesisinsssisseannsssse s ssessssesssesssensassassseasasossesenss 415,180 302,167 (190,007}
COmMMIsSIons PaYablE ...t s bt s s rrass s (628,757)  (1,312,229) 1,361,832
Other liabilides, net 167,897 2,388,583 (3,724,270}
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ... (11,014,388) 14,813,168 8,657,804
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of affiliate, Met. s ress e srers e nnes 4,306,901 - -
Proceeds from available for sale fixed maturities due to redemption or matrnity........c....... 1,788,000 170,000 695,000
Proceeds from available for sale fixed maturities sold, redeemed or matured..................... 26,169,278 25,194,401 16,143,330
Proceeds from available for sale equity securities SOId ..o 17,434,831 22,441,671 12,112,580
Cost of investrnents purchased:
Held to maturity fixed maturites..... (1,257,369) {(98,699) (750,820)
Available for sale fixed mawrites..... (22,472,683) (#4,709,564)  (41,041,113)
Available for sale equity securities (18,048,268) (20,211,925) (11,859,943)
Net change in ShOTt-LEIM iMVESINENTS 1o.mviuiiismssssissmsmsriss s sss st srsg s sssessess s sasssssssssasaceass 700,758 3,747,839 16,192,103
OMRET ovieeveirerieessceresensrrnreaess s ssseastases bt aba s s besses A Sbs S ERt R e 418 e e mrenr e bR A b sas (351,624) (109,283) (60,006)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ..., 8,269,824  (13,575,560) (8,568,869)
Cash flows from financing activides:
Proceeds from note payable to bank - - 3,500,000
Repayments of note payable to bank - {500,000} (3,000,000)
Proceeds from stock optons exercised 38,880 - 252,703
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ...........cooveciisniisienrssnssesssen 38,880 (500,000) 752,705
Net increase {(decrease) in cash (2,705,684) 737,608 841,640
Cash at beginning of year ................ 4,528,875 3,791,267 2,949.627
Cash 2t €N OF YT oo s er s eb s s 1,823,191 § 4,528,875 $ 3,791,267

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash paid (received) during the year for:
TIEBIESE - ocvtitoiisiiiissesssrissssersanssssarresresresessretesreanessessersentessessonsnss ntiane s smeanstdshbssbs RS s e E s ma b s s
Federal INCOMmME TaKES . veoieeicreeeee et eemcee st sees et e s ess st s sb et e s b e e ne s e e anen s e asra g pesiashssansnonbeseraten

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BANCINSURANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Organization

Bancinsurance Corporation ("Bancinsurance") is a specialty property insurance holding company incorporated in the State of Chio in
1970. Bancinsurance and its subsidiaries {collectively, the "Company") have two reportable business sepments: (1) property/casualty
insurance; and (2) insurance agency. Undl August 31, 2006, the Company also had a municipal code publishing business segment. On
August 31, 2006, the Company sold its municipal code publishing segment as more fully described in “Sale of Affiliate” below, These
segments are described in more detail below.

Property/Casualty Insurance. OQur wholly-owned subsidiary, Ohio Indemnity Company ("Ohto Indemnity”), is a specialty property/casu-
alty insurance company. Our principal sources of revenue are premiums for insurance policies and income generated from our invest-
ment portfolio. Ohio Indemnity, an Ohio corporation, is licensed in 48 states and the District of Columbia. As such, Ohio Indemnity is
subject to the regulations of The Ohio Department of Insurance (the "Department”) and the regulations of each state in which it oper-
ares. 'The majority of Ohio Indemnity’s premiums are derived from three distinet product lines: (1) automobile lender/dealer; (2} unem-
ployment compensation; and (3) waste industry.

Our automobile lender/dealer product line offers three types of products. First, ULTIMATE LOSS INSURANCE® (“ULI™), a blan-
ket vendor single interest coverage, is the primary product we offer to financial institutions nadonwide. This product insures banks and
financial institutions against damage to pledged collateral in cases where the collateral is not otherwise insured. A ULI policy is gener-
ally written to cover a lender's complete portfolio of collateralized personal property loans, typically automobile loans. Second, creditor
placed insurance (“CPI") is an alternative to our traditional blanket vendor single interest product. While both products cover the risk
of damage to uninsured collateral in a lender's automobile loan portfolio, CPI covers the portfolio through tracking individual borrow-
ers’ insurance coverage. The lender purchases physical damage coverage for loan collateral after a borrower's insurance has lapsed.
Third, our guaranteed auto protection insurance ("GAP") pays the difference or "gap” between the amount owed by the customer on a
loan or lease and the amount of primary insurance company coverage in the event a vehicle is damaged beyond repair or stolen and never
recovered. Our GAP product is sold to auto dealers, lenders and lessors and provides coverage on either an individual or portfolio basis.

Our unemployment compensation (“UC”) products are utilized by qualified entities that elect not to pay the unemployment compensa-
tion taxes and instead reimburse state unemployment agencies for benefits paid by the agencies to the entties’ former employees.
Through our UCassure® and excess of loss products, we indemnify the qualifted entity for liability associated with its reimbursing obli-
gations. In addidon, we underwrite surety bonds that certain states require employers to post in order to obtain reimbursing status for
their unemployment compensation obligations. Our bonded service program was discontinued at the end of 2003 and replaced by our
UCassure® program.

Our waste industry products (“WIP”) consist of certain surety bonds produced and administered by a general insurance agent. Under
this program, the Company both assumes and cedes certain waste surety bond business under two quota share reinsurance arrangements.
In the second quarter of 2004, the Company entered into a 50% quota share reinsurance arrangement whereby the Company assumed
50% of all waste surety bonds with liability limits up to $4.0 million from two insurance carriers, Effective January 1, 2005, the reinsur-
ance arrangement was amended whereby the Company’s assumed participation was reduced from 50% to 25%. Effective August 1, 2006,
the reinsurance arrangement was further amended whereby the Company assumed $0% of all waste surety bonds with liability limits up
to $1.2 million. In addition to assuming business, the Company also writes on a direct basis waste surety bonds with liability limits up
to our Treasury limit ($3.6 million during 2006). The Company then cedes 50% of that business to an insurance carrier under a rein-
surance arrangement. All surety bonds written directy and assumed under this program are produced and administered by 3 general
insurance agent that is affiliated with one of the insurance carriers participating in the program. The majority of the surety bonds under
the program satisfy the closure/post-closure financial responsibility obligations imposed on hazardous and solid waste teatment, stor-
age and disposal facilides pursuant to Subtitles C and D of the Federal Resource Conservadon and Recovery Act (“RCRA”).
Closure/post-closure bonds cover future costs to close and monitor a regulated site such as a landfill. All of the surety bonds are indem-
nified by the principal and collateral is maintained on the majority of the bonds. The indemnificadons and collateralization of this pro-
gram reduces the risk of loss,

The Company has certain other specialty products which consist primarily of service contracts and other surety products, Tn addition,
from 2001 vntil the end of the second quarter of 2004, the Company participated in a bail and immigration bond program. This pro-
gram was discontinued in the second quarter of 2004. For a more detailed description of this program, see Note 16 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements,

The Company sells its insurance products through muldple distribution channels, including three managing general agents, approxi-
mately thirty-five independent agents and direct sales.

Municipal Code Publishing. On August 31, 2006, the Company sold its wholly-owned subsidiary, American Legal Publishing
Corporation ("ALPC"), which codifies, publishes, supplements and distributes ordinances for municipalities and counties nationwide in
addition to state governments. Ordinance codificaton is the process of collecting, organizing and publishing legislation for state and loeal
governments. ALP( also provides information management services which include electronic publishing, document imaging and inter-
net hosting services. See “Sale of Affiliate” below for more information concerning this transaction.
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(b)

©

(d)

(e)

Insurance Agency. In July 2002, we formed Ultimate Services Agency, LLC ("USA"), a wholly-owned subsidiary. We formed USA to
act as an agency for placing and servicing property/casualty insurance policies offered and underwritten by Ohio Indemnity and by other
property/casualty insurance companies.

Sale of Affiliate

On August 31, 2006, the Company entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”) with A.L.P. Acquisition Co., Inc., an
Ohio corporation (the “Purchaser”), whereby the Company sold 100% of the issued and outstanding common shares of ALPC to the
Purchaser for $4,620,000 subject to customary post-closing adjustnents (the “Sale”). The Company received cash of $4,150,000 and a
promissory note in the principal amount of $470,000 (the “Promissory Note”) from the Purchaser at the closing in connection with the
Sale. On September 1, 2006, the Purchaser made a principal payment to the Company on the Promissory Note in the amount of
$345,000, bringing the remaining principal balance of the Promissory Note to $125,000 which is to be repaid in six monthly installments
and bears interest at an annual rate of 8.0%. As of December 31, 2006, the principal balance of the promissory note was $62,500.

The Purchaser was organized by Steven G. Wolf, who has served as President of ALPC since 1984 and as a director of ALPC since 2000.
Mr. Wolf and certain other employees of ALPC collectively own a significant equity interest in the Purchaser.

In conjunction with the Sale, on August 31, 2006, the Company also made an investment (the “Investment”) in the Purchaser in the
amount of $250,000, consisting of (1) a $137,500 cash purchase of equity securities of the Purchaser and (2) a $112,500 loan to the
Purchaser in the form of a subordinated convertible promissory note (the “Convertible Note”). The Convertible Note is to be repaid on
August 31, 2016 (if not previously converted), bears interest at an annual rate of 8.0% and is convertible at any time at the option of the
Company into additonal equity securities of the Purchaser.

In connection with the Sale and the Investment, the Company recorded a net realized gain of approximately $2.5 million ($1.7 million
after tax) for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Basis of Financial Statement Presentation

Qur accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (“GAAP™) which vary in certain respects from accounting practices prescribed or permitted by the
Deparanent.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ marerially from those esdmates.

New Accounting Standards

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 48 ("FIN 48"), “Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes,” which prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and meas-
urement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. In accordance with FIN 48, the Company must adjust its finan-
cial statements to reflect only those tax positions that are more-likely-than-not to be sustained as of the adoption date. The effective
date of FIN 48 for the Company is January 1, 2007. The adoption of FIN 48 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” This
Statement defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with GAAP, and expands disclosures about
fair value measurements. The Statement clarifies the rule that fair value be based on the assumpdons that market participants would use
when pricing an asset or liability, and establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the framework and information used to develop
those assumptions. The Company is required to adopt the provisions of SFAS No. 157 for financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007. The adoption of SFAS No. 157 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Consolidation Policy

The accompanying financial statements include the Company’ accounts and our wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompa-
ny transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Investments

Investments in held to maturity fixed maturities where we have the ability and intent to hold to maturity, are carried at amortized cost.
Investments in fixed maturities held as available for sale, which include debt securities and redeemable preferred stock, are carried at fair
value. The unrealized holding gain or loss, net of applicable deferred taxes and reclassification adjustment, is reflected in other compre-
hensive income.

Available for sale equity securities, which include common stock, non-redeemable preferred stock and murual funds, are reported at fair
value with unrealized gains or losses, net of applicable deferred taxes and reclassification adjustment, reflected in other comprehensive
income, Short-term investments are reported at cost which approximates fair value. Other invested assets are reported at cost or using

the equity method.
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Realized gains and losses on disposal of investments are determined by the specific identificaion method. The carrying value of an
investment is revised and the amount of revision is charged to net realized losses on investments when management determines that a
decline in the value of an investment is other-than-temporary.

For fixed marurity securities purchased at a premium or discount, amortization is calculated using the scientific (constant yield) interest
method mking into consideration specified interest and principal provisions over the life of the security. Fixed marurity securities con-
taining call provisions (where the security can be called away from the reporting entity at the issuer’s discreton) are amortized to the call
or maturity value/date which produces the lowest asset value (yield to worst).

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable was comprised of ALPC's municipal code contract billings. We estimated our allowance for doubtful accounts and
bad debts based upon our assessment of the collectibility of receivables and prior experience. On August 31, 2006, the Company sold
its municipal code publishing segment as more fully described above in “Sale of Affiliate.”

Goodwill

As part of its annual goodwill impairment testing in the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company concluded that an impairment of goodwill
existed at its property/casualty insurance segment. The Company, with the assistance of an independent appraisal firm, determined that
the carrying value of the reporting segment exceeded the fair value of the reporting segment, resulting in a non-cash impairment charge.
The fair value of the reporting segment was esdmated using the expected present value of future cash flows. As a result of this impair-
ment, the Company a recorded non-cash impairment charge in the fourth quarter of 2004 in the aggregate amount of $753,737.

Intangible Asset

Intangible assets represented databases acquired by ALPC and a non-compete agreement. The databases were comprised of municipal
code data and related files, which were amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated economic useful lives of twenty years. The
nion-compete agreement was amortized on a straight-line basis over the contractual life of five years, which ended August 31, 2006. On
August 31, 2006, the Company sold its municipal code publishing segment 25 more fully described above in “Sale of Affiliate.”

Recogniton of Revenue

Ohio Indemnity's insurance premiums and ceded commissions are earned over the terms of the related insurance policies and reinsur-
ance contracts. For our ULI and GAP products, premiums are earned over the contract period in proportion to the amount of insur-
ance protection provided as the amount of insurance protection declines according te a predetermined schedule, For all other products,
premiums are earned pro rara over the contract period. The portion of premiums written applicable to the unexpired pordon of insur-
ance policies is recorded in the balance sheet as unearned premiums.

Revenue from ALPC municipal code contracts was recognized on the percentage-of-completdon method. Completion was measured
based on the percentage of direct labor costs incurred-to-date compared to estimated direct labor costs for each contract. While we used
available information to estimate total direct labor costs on each contract, actual experience may vary from estimated amounts. Revenue
from code supplements was recognized on the completed-contract method because the typical supplement is completed in a few months.
On August 31, 2006, the Company sold its municipal code publishing segment as more fully described above in “Sale of Affiliate.”

Commission and fee revenues for USA are recognized when earned based on contractual rates and services provided.
Deferred Policy Acquisidon Costs

Acquisition expenses, mainly commissions and premium taxes, related to unearned premiums are deferred and amortized over the peri-
od the coverage is provided. Anticipated losses and other expenses related to those premiumns are considered in determining the recov-
erability of deferred acquisition costs.

Reserve for Unpaid Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

Loss and loss adjustment expense (“LAE”) reserves represent our best estimate of the ultimate net cost of all reported and unreported
losses incurred through December 31. We do not discount loss and LAE reserves. The reserves for unpaid losses and LAE are estumat-
ed using individual case-hasis valuations, statistical analyses and reports received from ceding insurers under assumed reinsurance. Those
estimates are subject to the effects of trends in loss severity and frequency. Although considerable variability is inherent in such esd-
mates, we believe the reserves for losses and LAFE are adequate. The estimates are regularly reviewed and adjusted as necessary as expe-
rience develops or new information becomes known, Such adjustments are included in results of operatons in the period such adjust-
ments are made.

Reinsurance

In the ordinary course of business, we cede and assume reinsurance with other insurers and reinsurers. We report balances pertaining
to reinsurance transactions “gross” on the balance sheet, meaning that reinsurance recoverables on unpaid losses and LAE and ceded
unearned premiums are not deducted from insurance reserves but are recorded as assets. Ceded reinsurance transactions for the
Company include quota share arrangements for certain lender/dealer producers. The Company also participates in a waste surety bond
program and certain other surety bond programs under several quota share arrangements in which the Company assumes and cedes busi-
ness. In addition, the Company cedes certain service contract business under a reinsurance arrangement. Lastly, the Company assumed
bail and immigration bond business through the second quarter of 2004 after which the program was discontinued. See Note 16 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for more information concerning the Company’s reinsurance transactions,
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Cerrain ULI policies are eligible for premium adjustments based on loss experience. For certain policies, return premiums are caleulat-
ed and settled on an annual basis. These balances are presented in the accompanying balance sheets as retrospective premium adjust-
ments payable. Cerrain other policies are eligible for an experience rating adjustment that is calculated and adjusted from period to peri-
od and settled upon cancelladon of the policy. These balances are presented in the accompanying balance sheets as experience rating
adjustments payable. These adjustments are included in the calculation of net premiums earned.

Contract Funds on Deposit

Pursuant to the terms of certain surety bonds issued by the Company that guarantee the payment of reimbursable unemployment com-
pensation benefits, certain monies are held by the Company in contract funds on deposit and are vsed for the payment of benefit charges.
The Company has agreements with cost containment service firms designed to control the unemployment compensation costs of the
employers enrolled in the program. Any remaining funds after the payment of all benefit charges are shared between the Company and
the cost containment firms as management fees. Management fees are recognized when earned based on the development of benefit
charges. Management fees of $830,329, $713,697 and $33,710 were recognized in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, as a result of this
arrangement.

Depreciation and Amortization

Real estate is stated at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over thirty-nine years, Property, equipment and internally-
developed computer software are stated at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life, ranging
from three to five years. Leasehold improvements are capinlized and amortized over the remaining office lease term. Maintenance and
repairs are charged directly to expense as incurred. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, property, equipment, computer software and
leasehold improvements, net of accumulated depreciation, was $636,966 and $484,525, respectively. These balances are presented in the
accompanying balance sheets as other assets.

Federal Income Taxes

We file a consolidated federal income tax return with our subsidiaries. Accordingly, deferred tax liabilities and assets have been recog-
nized for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements or tax returns. Deferred
income taxes are recognized at prevailing income tax rates for temporary differences between financial statement and income tax basis
of assets and liabilittes for which income tax benefits will be realized in future years.

{gQ) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances and highly liquid investments with an inidal maturity of three months or less. Cash
equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. The Company places its cash investments with high credit guality financial
institutions.

(r} Equity-Based Compensation
Prior to the first quarter of 2006, the Company accounted for equity-based awards under the intrinsic value method, which followed the
recognition and measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and related interprettions. Therefore, no compensation expense was recognized in net income, as all opdons granted had
an exercise price equal to the fair value of the underlying stock on the date of grant. The following able illustrates the effect on net
income and income per share if the Company had adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based
Payment,” for 2005 and 2004:

December 31, December 31,
2005 2004
Net income (loss), as reported $ 6,294,074 $ (8,500,620)
Deduct: Total equity-based compensation expense
determined under "fair value” based method for all awards,
net of related tax effects (84,641) (88,662)

Pro forma net income (loss) $ 6,209,433 $ (8,589,282)

Net income (loss) per common share:

Basic, as reported $ 1.27 5 (1.72)

Basic, pro forma 5 1.25 5 (1.74)

Diluted, as reported 5 1.26 5 (1.72)

Diluted, pro forma h] 1.24 ) (1.74)

s

See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information concerning equity-based compensation.
Reclassification

Ceruain prior year amounts have been reclassified in order to conform to the 2006 presentation.
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(2) INVESTMENTS
The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses and estimated fair value of investments in held to maturity and available for sale

securities were as follows:

December 31, 2006
Gross Gross Estimated
Amortzed unrealized unrealized fair
cost gains losses value
Held to maturity:
Fixed maturities:
US Treasury securides and obligations of
US Government corporations and agencies.... $ 1,356,518 $ - $ 1,049  $ 1,355,469
Obligations of states and political
SUbAIVISIONS ..vvcveecveviriininorsoreneas 3,437,066 74,614 16,163 3,495,517
Total held to mamrity 4,793,584 74,614 17,212 4,850,986
Available for sale:
Fixed marurides:
Obligations of states and political
SUBIVISIONS 1..ovviaviiinniassersneesassecsssosercssensressnernne 63,871,649 825,611 70,349 64,626,911
Corporate Securities ............ et 4,063,130 4,981 147,136 3,920,975
Total fixed maturides ..... rrrereeesersarnnien 67,934,779 830,592 217,485 68,547,886
Equity securities......ceenimininns 8,277,307 1,244,046 121,106 9,400,247
Total available for sale..... et 76,212,086 2,074,638 338,591 77,948,133
TOAL s e e e $81,005,670 $ 2,149,252 $ 355803 $82,799,119
December 31, 2005
Gross Gross Estmated
Amortized unrealized unrealized fair
cost gains losses value
Held to mavurigy:
Fixed maturities:
US Treasury securides and obligatons of
US Government corporations and agencies.... § 1,149,676 $ - $ 16,348 § 1,133,328
Obligatdons of states and political
SUDAIVISIONS «..coo e en et 3,671,953 69,590 18,247 3,723,296
Total held to Maturity ..ocevvcovceecrecioenas 4,821,629 69,590 34,595 4,856,624
Available for sale: '
Fixed maturities:
US Treasury securities and obligations of
US Government corporations and agencies.... 4,126,893 - 32,627 4,094,266
Obligations of states and political
SUDAIVISIONS ..o vvvvenseirisereee e sessrms s aemreeseaeens 64,245,160 681,930 124,876 64,802,214
Corporate Securities ... 4,190,151 - 74,391 4,115,760
Total fixed maturities 72,562,204 681,930 231,894 73,012,240
Equity securites..........coceeicommnnnnees 7,597,066 889,141 442,908 8,043,299
Total available for sale 80,159,270 1,571,071 674,802 81,055,539
TOURL ot $ 84,980,899 $ 1,640,661 $ 709397 3 85912163

The amortzed cost and estimated fair value of fixed maturity investiments in held to maturity and available for sale securities at December
31, 2006, by contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have
the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.
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Due in one year or ess ...coerveecreeriiesnneenss
Due after one year but less than five years.......
Due after five years but less than ten years ......
Due after ten years ..o cevrmminsisrmsrenies

Total

December 31, 2006

Held to Manurity

Available for Sale

Amortized Estgmated Amortized Esdmated
cOst fair value cost fair value
5 582,006 5 577,386 3 879,397 $ 884,546
2,625,791 2,645,385 3,154,123 3,158,397
378,798 369,701 10,491,782 10,461,312
1,206,989 1,258,514 53.409.477 54,043,631

$ 4,793,584

$ 4,850,986

$ 67,934,779

$ 68,547,886

Net investment income for the year ended December 31 is summarized below:

2006 2005 2004
Fixed MATUTIEES cuvievieeie s ersesesteeres e sorsto s sssmresssssssssesasssesssesasssnsesans $3,251,113 § 2,732,635 $ 1,826,432
EqQUity SECUIIHES...vceiricirnriicrsrsrisermsserrsssisiesesssssresssrsanemsassessensssees 577,851 555,414 236,528
ShOTt-term INVESIMENTS. ... oo crsa s s srnrane 302,620 239,643 225,190
42,914 34,531 25,926
EXPEISES oot s (329.434) (259.56%) (149.961)
Net INVESHMENT INCOIME 1..vvvvvvereenreriersossrmenssseserecusracsseserssoosas $3,845,064 $ 3,302,659 $ 2,164,115

The proceeds from sales of available for sale securities were $43,604,109, $47,636,072 and $28,255,910 for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Pre-tax net realized gains (losses) on investments and changes in unrealized gains (losses) on available for sale investments were as follows for
cach of the years ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004
Gross realized gains:
FIXed MATUIIEES ....covirrereerensriieninsresessriesnsssstesessessesserassssssssins $ 86,955 $ 157,808 S 55,923
76,801 1,388,129 1,781,330
- - 083
163,756 1,545,937 1,838,236
Gross realized losses:
Fixed mMAamurities....occoivreiniirsiesisimsssiesisiessesssssesessesesesesssssosassons 97,945 157,109 69,659
Equity securities 2,687 107,073 138,916
Other.....oii i s 95 - -
Other-than-temporary impairments........... 7,310 - 535,487
Total LOSSES .....ovveeiiirceirien e receserecenenaens 108,037 264,182 744,062
Net realized ZaINS . ..o s S 55,719 $ 1,281,755 $ 1,094,174
Changes in unrealized gains (losses) on available for sale
invesuments:
Fixed Maturities. o emrerimeeseeeeeereaesemrmeees e smene s srsssesnssens $ 163,072 $ (282487) $ 437,009
EqQUIty SECUMTES c..evcvrreticmmceniciniernssssrvessmssssssasrae s sneassneassas 676,707 (1,324,689} (847,352)
Net change in unrealized gains (losses)....cocoveiveesrinciinnernsennns $ 839,779 $ (1,607,176} $ (410,343

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value and gross unrealized losses (pre-tax) for all securities in an unrealized loss position at
December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2003, distinguishing between those securities which have been continuously inan unrealized loss posi-
tion for less than twelve months and greater than twelve months.
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Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total

Estimated Gross Estimated Gross Estimated Gross
fair unrealized fair unrealized fair unrealized
At December 31, 2006 value loss value loss value loss
Fixed maturities:
1J.5. Treasury securities and obligatons of
U.S. Government corporations and agencies $ 1,255,719 § 975 § 99,750 $ 74 8 1,355469 §$ 1,049
Obligations of states and politcal subdivisions 11,102,504 52,735 4,562,504 33,777 15,665,008 86,512
Corporate securities 883,640 1,360 2,017,955 145,776 2,901,595 147,136
Total fixed marurities 13,241,863 55,070 6,680,209 179,627 19,922,072 234,697
Equity securities 1,109,875 15,558 2,947,643 105548 4,057,518 121,106
Total $14351,738 § 70,628 & 9,627,852 § 285175 $23,979590 $ 355,803
Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Toral
Estimated Gross Estimated Gross Estimated Gross
fair unrealized fair unrealized fair unrealized
At December 31, 2005 value loss value loss value loss

Fixed maturites:
U.S. Treasury securities and obligatons of
U.S. Government corporations and agencies $ 4,193,047 § 32627 % 1,034547 $§ 16348 § 5227594 § 48,975

Obligations of states and political subdivisions 17,398,953 112,464 1,709,875 30,659 19,108,828 143,123
Corporate securities 3,865,760 74,391 - - 3,865,760 74,391
Total fixed maturities 25,457,760 219,482 2,744,422 47,007 28,202,182 266,489
Equity securides 4,793.807 403,593 708,780 39,315 5,502,587 442 908
Total $ 30,251,567 $ 623075 § 3453202 $§ 86,322 § 33,704,769 $ 709397

The Company continually monitors developments affecting our invested agsets, paying pardcular awention to events that might give rise to
impairment write-downs, including but not limited to: (1} the length of time and extent to which the estimared fair value has been less than book
value; (2) whether the decline appears to be related to general marker or industry conditions or is issuer-specific; and (3) our ability and intent
to hold the security for a period of time sufficient to allow for recovery in the estimated fair value. There were $7,310, $0 and $535,487 in
impairment charges included in net realized gains on investments for the years ended Decemnber 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Included
in impairment charges for 2004 is a write down of $334,136 related to a private equity investment due to its financial uncerinty, As part of the
Company’ normal assessment of other-than-temporary impairments of investments, the securities listed above were evaluated and no further
impairments were deemed necessary as of December 31, 2006.

At December 31, 2006, investments having a carrying value of $4,538,220 were on deposit with various state insurance departrments to meet
their respective regulatory requirements.

DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS
Changes in deferred policy acquisition costs for the year ended December 31 are summarized as follows:

2006 2005 2004

Deferred, January ...t eessisssssensans $ 9,678,821 $ 7,223,995 $ 4,962,150
Addidons:

COITUTUSSIONS 11everavssireresnissisessesmerssrnrsseresnsrasssansseisssassassssarereansrnssesseses 8,893,883 10,215,611 7,124,437

Premium BhX ..o cneceiie s resmsssesessssisseessa e seennesssvesmssssssesnessass 587,637 604,559 397,168

Total addiHONS ..cvvveisecssiieeree st eee e rans s nees e srenaes 9,481,520 10,820,170 7,521,605

AMOrtization 10 EXPEIISE ...ooveeeecsiiiisssasesssssssmsscneeosssonesesissamssssesssasss 9,705,931 8,365,344 5,259,760

Deferred, DecembBer 31 ...t eessssessssssssssssesss $ 9,454,410 $ 9,678,821 $ 7,223,995

UNCOMPLETED CONTRACTS

Revenues earned on uncompleted codification contracts by ALPC were $0 and $1,452,739 and billings to date on those contracts were $0 and
$1,279,812 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The excess of costs and estimated earnings over billings were $0 and $248,035 at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. On August 31, 2006, the Company sold its municipal code publishing segment as more fully
described above in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As part of its annual goodwill impairment testing in the fourth quarter of 2004, the Cormpany concluded that an impairment of goodwill existed at
its property/casualty insurance segment. The Company performed impairment testing in accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assers,” The Company, with the assistance of an independent appraisal firm, determined that the carrying value of the reporting segment
exceeded the fair value of the reporring segment, resulting in a non-cash impairment charge. The fair value of the reporting segment was estimated
using the expected present value of future cash flows. As a result of this impairment, the Company recorded a non-cash impairment charge in the

fourth quarter of 2004 in the aggregate amount of $753,737. 42
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Intangible assets as of December 31 were as follows:

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Accumulated  Sale of Accumulated
Cost amortizadon  affiliate Net Cost amortzation Net
Amortzing intangibles:
Databases ..oovvrrernemreririeneerninne $1,008,773 $(287,505) $(721,268) $ - $ 1,008,773 % (253,879) § 754,894
Noncompete agreement............ 120,394 {120,328) (66) - 120,394 (104,275) 16,119
Total intangible assets ................... $1,129,167 $(407,833) $(721,334) § - $ 1,129,167 § (358,154 § 771,013

Amortization expense related to amortizable intangible assets was $49,679, $74,518 and $74,517 during 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. On
August 31, 2006, the Company sold its municipal code publishing segment as more fully described above in Note 1 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

NOTES PAYABLE

We have a $10,000,000 unsecured revolving line of credit with a marurity date of June 30, 2009 with no outstanding balance at December 31,
2006 and December 31, 2005. The revolving line of credit provides for interest payable quarterly at an annual rate equal to the prime rate
less 75 basis points. The Company wtilizes the line of credit from time to time based on short-term cash flow needs. The terms of the revolv-
ing credit agreement contain various restrictive covenants. As of December 31, 2006, the Company was in compliance with all such covenants.
The bank that provides the line of eredit is also a policyholder of the Company.

LEASE EXPENSES

We routinely lease premises for use as administrative offices, vehicles and office equipment under operatng leases for varying periods.
Management expects that in the normal course of business, leases will be renewed or replaced by other leases. Effective January 2001, we
entered into a new lease for our Columbus, Ohio office space. Under its provisions, no cash payments were due untl April 1, 2002. Rent
expense is recognized evenly aver the lease term ending December 31, 2008. Rental expenses under operating leases were $251,768, $265,852
and $274,300 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The furure minimum lease payments required under operating leases for the next five fiscal years are as follows:

2007 $ 224,009
2008 229,943
2009 -
2010 -
2011 -

§ 453952

TRUST PREFERRED DEBT ISSUED TO AFFILIATES

In December 2002, we organized BIC Statutory Trust I ("BIC Trust ['), a Connecticut special purpose business trust, which issued $8,000,000
of floating rate trust preferred capital securides in an exempt private placement transaction. BIC Trust I also issued $248,000 of floating rate
common securities to Bancinsurance. In September 2003, we organized BIC Statutory Truse IT (“BIC Trust I17), a Delaware special purpose
business trust, which issued $7,000,000 of floating rate trust preferred capital securities in an exempt private placement transaction. BIC Trust
IT also issued $217,000 of floating rate common securites to Bancinsurance. BIC Trust I and BIC Trust I were formed for the sole purpose
of issuing and selling the floating rate trust preferred capital securides and investing the proceeds from such securities in junior subordinated
debentures of the Company. In connection with the issuance of the trust preferred capital securities, the Company issued junior subordinat-
ed debentures of $8,248,000 and $7,217,000 to BIC Trust [ and BIC Trust II, respectively. The floadng rate tust preferred capital securides
and the junior subordinated debentures have substandally the same terms and condidons. The Company has fully and uncondidenally guar-
anteed the obligations of BIC Trust I and BIC Trust II with respect to the floating rate trust preferred capital securities. BIC Trust [ and BIC
Trust II distribute the interest received from the Company on the junior subordinated debentures to the holders of their floating rate trust
preferred capital securities to fulfill their dividend obligations with respect to such trust preferred securides. BIC Trust I's floating rate trust
preferred capital securities, and the junior subordinated debentures issued in connection therewith, pay dividends and interest, as applicable,
on a quarterly basis at a rate equal to three month LIBOR plus four hundred basis points (9.37% and 8.44% at December 31, 2006 and 2003,
respectively), are redeemable at par on or after December 4, 2007 and mature on December 4, 2032. BIC Trust II's floating rate trust pre-
ferred capital securides, and the junior subordinated debentures issued in connecdon therewith, pay dividends and interest, as applicable, on
a quarterly basis at a rate equal to three month LIBOR plus four hundred and five basis points (9.41% and 8.58% at December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively), are redeemable at par on or after September 30, 2008 and mature on September 30, 2033, Interest on the junior subor-
dinated debentures is charged to income as it zccrues. Interest expense related to the junior subordinated debentures for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was §1,427,241, $1,148,43 Land $862,256, respectively. The terms of the junior subordinated debentures
contain various restrictive covenants. As of December 31, 2006, the Company was in compliance with all such covenants.
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In January 2003, the FASE issued Interpretation No. 46 ("FIN 46™), "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” which requires the consol-
idation of certain entities considered to be variable interest entties ("VIEs"). An entty is considered to be a VIE when it has equity investors
who lack the characteristics of having a conuwolling financial interest, or its capital is insufficient to permit it to finance its activities without
additional subordinated financial support. Consolidadon of a VIE by an investor is required when it is determined that the investor will absorb
a majority of the VIE's expected losses if they occur, receive a majority of the VIE's expected residual remurns if they occur, or both. In accor-
dance with FIN 46, BIC Trust I and BIC Trust II are not included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. If they were included
in the Company’s consolidated financial statements, there would be no change to net income, only changes in the presentation of the finan-
cial statements.

FEDERAL INCOME TAXES

Deferred income taxes at December 31 reflect the impact of “temporary differences” between amounts of assets and labilities for financial
reporting purposes and such amounts as measured on an income tax basis. Temporary differences which give rise to the net deferred tax asset
at December 31 are as foilows:

2006 2005
Deferred tax assets:
Unpaid loss and LAE reserves .o eeecore et eetceeses s essssseseeressremsssannss 5 216,931 § 417,169
Unearned premium reserves .........c...... 1,901,935 2,010,614
Net operating loss carryforward - 733,158
AlETNATVE IMINIITIUIT TAX 1evrverrerrrierermsssessrrsassisiomessseassasmsssesssssssassssssmsesssessissas 868,235 508,562
Other-than-temporary impairtment of iNVeSIMents ..o e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeercnecens 5,872 3,386
Deferred ceded COMMISSIONS worvvvririirieniverneesesessesscsnssessensssseesssesssesssmasans 595,774 454,613
Contingent HabilIHes ....ucciienreesmie e rreeeree st eees e rens e sreas s eesens 437,308 -
ORET e rcr s e e e stsrr et s eas e aa s s e s 312,494 256,579
Tota] deferred FAX GS5ELS ...oieeeeiece e s visresessssenresesseresssssasseseraeresessensann 4,338,549 4,384,081
Deferred tax liabilides:
Net unrealized gains on available for sale securities.. ..o, (590,257) (304,732)
Deferred policy acquisidon costs (3,214,499 (3,290,799)
Accrued dividends receivable ... 27,142) (10,321)

OB (o bt (251,938) (292,768)
Total deferred tax Habiliges ... s (4,083,836) (3,898,620)

INet deferred AX A5SEL et eee et et eseneeas s eneasressnenas S 254,713 $ 485,461

Net deferred tax assets and liahilities and federal income tax expense in future years can be materially affected by changes in enacted tax rates
ot by unexpected adverse events.

The provision for federal income taxes for the period ended December 31 consists of the following:

2006 2005 2004
Current expense (Benefit) oo $ 1,403,712 S 179239 $ (2,416,512)
Deferred expense (Denefit).c...owerommcrnmeereeeeseeessees (54,777) 1,697,332 (2,350,920)
Federal income tax expense (benefit)......cocevinnecerisineceersinecnanns $ 1,348,935 $ 1,876,571 $ (4,767,432)

The difference between income taxes provided at our effective tax rate and the 34% federal smtutory rate for the petiod ended December 31
is as follows: “

2006 2005 2004
Federal income tax at STAMITOIY TaEe ... crccriiesecsersctsmsassissnsense $ 2,320,104 $ 2,778,019 § (4,511,138)
Dividends received deducton and tax exempt interest.......ovene. (927,798) (842,952) (566,581}
Business meals and entertainiment.........coevveeeeee e ceeeee e seee e 21,330 21,914 35,042
Goodwill impairment - - 256,271
OHNET ettt e st s s et e bbb sasas b abesssnsstnrens (64,701} (80,410h 18,974
Federal income tax expense (benefit) . ...coooreenrerconcecnrenns $ 1,348,935 $ 1,876,571 5 (4,767432)

As of December 31, 2006, the Company does not have any uncertain tax positions under FIN 48. As a result, there are no unrecognized
tax benefits as of December 31, 2006. The Company’s 1999 through 2005 federal tax returns sdll remain subject to examination by the
Internal Revenue Service.
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BENEFIT PLANS

The Ohio Indemnity Company Employee 401(k) and Profit Sharing Plan (the “401(k) Plan") is available to full-time employees who meet
the 401(k) Plan’s eligibility requirements. Under the 401(k) Ptan, we match 100% of the qualified employee’s contribution up to 3% of
salary and 50% of the qualified employee’s contribution between 3% and 5% of salary. The total cost of the matching contribution was
$130,075, $126,640 and $224,548 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectvely.

EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company maintains two equity compensation plans (collectively, the “Plans”) for the benefic of certain of its officers, directors, employ-
ees, consultants and advisors. During the first quarter of 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” applying
the modified prospective method. SFAS No. 123(R) requires all equity-based payments to employees and directors, including grants of stock
options, to be recognized in net income based on the grant date fair value of the award. Under the modified prospective method, the
Company is required to record equity-based compensation expense for all awards granted after the date of adoption and for the nonvested
portion of previously granted awards outstanding as of the date of adoption. The results for prior periods have not been restated.

The Company has stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2006 under two equity compensation plans, each of which has
been approved by our shareholders.

The 1994 Stock Option Plan (the "1994 Stock Option Plan”) provided for the grants of options, covering up to an aggregate of 500,000
common shares, with a 100,000 common share maximum for any one participant. Key employees, officers and directors of, and consultants
and advisors to, the Company were eligible to participate in the 1994 Stock Option Plan. The 1994 Stock Option Plan is administered by
the Company's Compensation Committee which determined to whom and when options were granted along with the terms and conditons
of the options. Under the 1994 Stock Option Plan, options for 266,500 common shares were outstanding at December 31, 2006 and expire
at various dates from 2007 to 2013 and range in option price per share from $3.88 to $6.25. Of the options for 266,500 common shares out-
standing, 32,000 have been granted to our non-employee directors and 234,500 have been granted to employees. All of the opuons out-
standing were granted to employees and directors for compensatory purposes. No new options can be granted under the 1994 Stock Option
Plan and the plan remains in effect only with respect to the outstanding options.

The 2002 Stock Incentive Plan (the "2002 Plan") provides for awards, including grants of options, covering up to an aggregate of 600,000
common shares. Key employees, officers and directors of, and consultants and advisors to, the Company are eligible to participate in the
2002 Plan. The 2002 Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee which determines to whom and when awards will be granted
as well as the terms and conditions of the awards. Under the 2002 Plan, options for 561,000 common shares were outstanding at December
31, 2006 and expire at various dates from 2012 to 2016 and range in option price per share from $4.50 to $8.00. Of the opdons for 561,000
common shares outstanding, 12,000 have been granted to our non-employee directors and 549,000 have been granted to employees. All of
the options outstanding were granted to employees and directors for compensatory purposes. As of December 31, 2006, there were 35,000
shares available for furure grant under the 2002 Plan.

All stock options (1) are granted with an exercise price equal to the market price of the Company’s common shares on the date of grant; (2)
have a 10-year contractual term; (3} with respect to officers and employees, vest and become exercisable at the rate of 20% per year over a
five-year period; and (4) with respect to non-employee directors, vest and become exercisable after one full year of continuous service.

The fair value of options granted by the Company during 2006 was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model (“Black-Scholes model™). The Black-Scholes model incorporates ranges of assumptions such as risk-free rate, expected life, expect-
ed volatility and dividend yield. The risk-free rate was based on the United States Treasury strip curve at the time of the grant with a term
approximating that of the expected option life. The Company analyzed historical data regarding option exercise behaviors, expirations and
cancellations to calculate the expected life of the options granted, which represents the length of time in years that the options granted are
expected 1o be outstanding. Expected volatilities were based on historical volatility over a period of time using the expected term of the
option grant (6 years) and using weekly stock prices of the Company; however, the Company excluded from its historical volatility the peri-
od from February 4, 2005 through January 23, 2006 (the period in which shareholders could not obtain current financial information for the
Company and could not rely on the Company’s 2003, 2002, and 2001 financial statements) as the Company believes that its stock price dur-
ing that period is not relevant in evaluating the expected volatility of its common shares in the future. A 0% dividend yield was used in the
Black-Scholes model based on historical dividends. The following table provides the range of assumptions used for options valued during
the years ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004
Risk-free interestrate. . ........oiiiiiiininainne.. 4.94% - 5.01% - 3.88% - 4.26%
Expectedlife .. ..o 6 years - 6 years
Expected voladlity ... 32.01% - 32.10% - 27.10% - 27.42%
Dividend yleld. . ... 0% - 0%

“There were no options granted during 2005.

The compensation expense recognized for all equity-based awards is net of forfeitures and is recognized over the awards’ service period. In
accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 107, the Company recorded equity-based compensation expense for the year ended
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December 31, 2006 in the amount of $217,958 ($143,852 net of tax), which is classified within other insurance operatng expenses to corre-
spond with the same line item as cash compensation paid to employees. During 2006, the Company received cash of $38,880 from the exer-
cise of stock options and realized a tax benefit of $3,101 from such option exercises.

The following table summarizes all stock option activity for the Company under the Plans from January 1, 2006 through December 31, 2006:

Weighted-average

exercise price Weighted-average Aggregate
Shares  per common share contractual life (years) intrinsic value
QOustanding at January 1, 2006........ccoeeenene 613,500 § 533
Granted 232,000 6.00
EXErCiSed ... ...oooeveeeiersccnreenniecrenee e evneanns (8,000) 4.86
EXPIred ...t nscesscensesnons {2,000 3.38
Canceled ... (8,000) 5.33
Outstanding at December 31, 2006............... 827,500 5.52 6.25 $438,575
Vested and exercisable at December 31, 2006 443,100 5 509 431 $425,376

The aggregate intrinsic value represents the total pretax intrinsic value, based on the Company’ last reported bid quotation for the common
shares in the “Pink Sheets” as of December 31, 2006 ($6.05), which would have been received by the option holders had all option holders
exercised their options as of that date,

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of eptions granted during the years ended December 11, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was §2.48, §0 and
$2.50, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $9,120, $0
and $172,857, respectvely.

The following table summarizes nonvested stock option activity for the Company under the Plans from January 1, 2006 through December
31, 2006:

Weighted-average
grant date fair value

Shares per common share
Nonvested at January 1, 2006........ccovrneeeenn 236,600 $ 2.05
Granted .......coovveiricreererecre s e s 232,000 248
Vested {82,200) 1.96
Expired - -
Canceled (2,000) .70
Nonvested at December 31, 2006.........cccon.. 384,400 $ 2.33

As of December 31, 2006, the total compensation cost related to nonvested stock options not yet recognized was $771,528. The weighted-
average period over which this cost is expected to be recognized is approximately 3.4 years.

The following rable summarizes weighted-average information by range of exercise prices for stock options outstanding and exercisable at
December 31, 2006:

Optons Outstanding Options Exercisable

Number  Weighted-average Weighted-average  Number ~ Weighted-average

outstanding remaining exercise exercisable exercise

Range of Exercise Prices at 12/31/06 contractual life (years) price at 12/31/06 price
25,000 0.00 § 188 25,000 $ 3.8

236,000 3.72 4.57 213,400 4.58

193,500 5.30 5.23 141,100 525

244,000 9.20 6.00 12,000 6.08

129,000 7.93 7.11 51,600 7.11

Total ($3.375 - $8.00). .. 827,500 6.25 § 5.52 443,100 § 5.09

STATUTORY RESTRICTIONS

Generally, Ohio Indemnity is restricted by the insurance laws of the State of Ohio as to amounts that can be transferred to its parent in the
form of dividends, loans, or advances withouc the approval of the Department, Under these restrictions, during 2007, dividends, loans or
advances in excess of $4,915,331 will require the approval of the Department.
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Ohio Indemnity is subject to a risk-based capital test applicable to property/casualty insurers, The risk-based capital test serves as a benchmark of
an insurance enterprise's solvency by state insurance regulators by establishing statutory surplus targets which will require certain company level
or regulatory level actions, Ohio Indemnity’s total adjusted capital was in excess of all required action levels at December 31, 2006.

(13) STATUTORY SURPLUS AND NET INCOME
Ohio Indemnity is statutorily required to file financial statements with state and other regulatery authorides. ‘The accountng principles used
to prepare such statutory financial statements follow prescribed or permitted accounting practices as defined in the National Association of
Insurance Commissioners Accounting Practices and Procedures Manual, which principles may differ from GAAP. Permirted statutory account-
ing practces encompass all accounting practices not so prescribed, but allowed by the Department. Ohio Indemnity has no permitted statute-
Iy accounting practices.

As of and for the period ended December 31, Ohio Indemnity’s statutory surplus and net income determined in accordance with statutory
accounting practices differed from shareholder's equity and net income determined in accordance with GAAP by the following:

Shareholder’s Equity/Surplus Net Income (Loss)
2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004

SEATULOTY oot $40,458,732 § 34,782,737 § 30,879,673 § 4,915,331 $5,780,803 $(11,300,632)
Reconciling items:

Non-admitted asSets..cmmnrirreveererereinecenaannns 103,002 744,219 586,668 - - -

Deferred policy acquisition costs........cooe..... 9,454,410 9,678,821 7,223,995 {224,411) 2,454,826 2,261,845

Deferred ceded commissions ... (1,579,168) (994,459) (465,457)  (584,709)  (529,002) (94,134)

Deferred taxes.....ccevemcrrncoreemnennns (2,886,036) (3,105,697)  (2,539,073)  (108,099) (1,570,402 2,004,269

Unrealized gain on available for sale fixed

MATULIHES oeovrivarseriimsecaerensconieassssenasanees 613,108 450,037 709,323 - - -

Provision for reinsurance .......oooeovceeeeeennns 3,000 10,000 - - - -

Subsequent capital contribution from parent - - (4,200,000 - - -
GAAP ..o $ 46,167,048 § 41,565,658 § 32,195,129 $ 3,998,112 $6,136,225 § (7,128,652)

(14) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The components of other comprehensive income (loss) and the related federal income tax effects for the years ended December 31, are as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2006

Pre-tax Income tax Net-of-tax
amount expense (benefit) amount
Net unrealized holding gains on securides:
Unrealized holding gains arising during 2006.......cccccoocoriinnneen. S 895,498 $ 304,469 $ 591,029
Less: reclassification adjustments for gains realized in net income.... 55,719 18,944 36,775
Net unrealized holding gains.........ooic e 839,779 285,525 554,254
Other comprehensive INCOME ..o eerneens S 839,779 $ 285,525 S 554,254

Year ended December 31, 2005

Pre-tax Income tax Net-of-tax
amount expense {benefit) amount
Net unrealized holding gains (losses) on securides:
Unrealized holding losses arising during 2005 .......ooreercrerncnnnes $ (325,421) $  (110,643) 5 (214,778)
Less: reclassification adjustments for gains realized in net income.... 1,281,755 435,797 845,958
Net unrealized holding 10855 ..o (1,607,176) (546, 440) (1,060,736)
Other comprehensive 1088 ... .ot $__(1,607,176) $  (546,440) $  (1,060,736)

Year ended December 31, 2004

Pre-tax Income tax Net-of-tax
amount expense (benefit) amount
Net unrealized holding gains (fosses) on securities:
Unrealized holding gains arising during 2004h.......ccccninnnninininn. $ 1,017,968 $ 346,109 $ 671,859
Less: reclassification adjusuments for gains realized in net income.... 1,428,311 485,626 942,685
Nert unrealized holding 10855 .. {410,343) (139,517) (270,826)
Other compPrehensive 1088 ... oo eeeee e eeas s eneeeseeenseennee $ {410,343) $ (139,517) $ (270,826)
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RESERVE FOR UNPAID LOSSES AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES

Activity in the reserve for unpaid losses and LAEs is swmarized as folfows (dollars in thousands):

2006 2005 2004

Balance at JAnUary 1ot ncssessessecsesnesssssaesrssessacrens $ 27,304 § 30,766 $ 14,386

Less reinsurance recoverables 1,235 1,944 4,926
Net Balance at January 1 .. 26,069 28,822 9,460
Incurred related to:

CUITEIE VAT ... rvrrevrreeereeeneressareressaesesessnssemsnsasssrsssasssesestsntstnsssrsienssssensesens 25,438 27,033 52,620

Prior vears....... 136 (3,697) (5,383)
Total incurred 25,574 23,336 47,237
Paid related to:

Current vear ... 20,730 20,678 23690

Prior vears....... 18,510 5,411 4,185
Total PAId oot s 39,240 26,089 27,875
Net Balance at December 31.....ivvncinineceiieenns Crtererrer s e 12,403 26,069 28,822

Plus reinsurance recoverables 1,420 1,235 1,944
Balance at December 31 .o nscsnsmoseersnseniensscessrsserssasens $ 13,823 $ 27,304 S 30,766
Reserve for unpaid losses and LAE .....oveinrercnmessncossrescensnens $ 7457 $ 7678 $ 11,563
Discontinued bond program reserve for unpaid losses and LAE ........... 6,366 19,626 19,203

Total reserve for unpaid losses and LAE ..., $ 13,823 $ 27304 $ 30,766

As a result of changes in estimates of insured events in prior vears, the provision for unpaid loss and LAE increased (decreased) by approx-
imately $136,000, 8(3,697,000) and $(5,383,000) for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The increase in 2006
was due to unfavorable loss development for the discontinued bond program which was partially offset by favorable loss development in our
automohbile lender/dealer and waste industry product lines. The decrease in 2005 and 2004 was attributed primarily to favorable Joss devel-
opment in the Company's ULI product line.

For more informaton concerning loss and LAE reserves for the discondnued bond program, see Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. '

REINSURANCE

The Company assumes and cedes reinsurance with other insurers and reinsurers. Such arrangements serve to enhance the Company’s capac-
ity to write business, provide greater diversification, align business partners with the Company’s interests, and/or limit the Company’s max-
imum loss arising from certain risks, Although reinsurance does not discharge the ariginal insurer from its primary liability wo its policy-
holders, it is the practice of insurers for accounting purposes to treat reinsured risks as risks of the reinsurer. The primary insurer would
reassume liability in those situations where the reinsurer is unable to meet the obligations it assumed under the reinsurance agreement. The
ability to collect reinsurance is subject to the solvency of the reinsurers and/or collateral provided under the contrac.

Several of aur lender/dealer insurance producers have formed sister reinsurance companies, commonly referred to as a producer-owned rein-
surance company (“PORC”). The primary reason for an insurance producer to form a PORC is to realize the underwriting profits and
investiment income from the insurance premiums generated by that producer. In return for ceding business to the PORC, the Company
receives a ceding commission, which is based on a percenmge of the premiums ceded.  Such arrangements align business partners with the
Company’s interests while preserving valued customer relationships. All of the Company’s lender/dealer ceded reinsurance wansacdons are
PORC arrangements,

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company entered into a producer-owned reinsurance arrangement with a new lender/dealer producer where-
by 100% of that producer’s premiums (along with the associated risk) was ceded to its PORC. This reinsurance arrangement was cancelled
effective December 31, 2003, For this reinsurance arrangement, the Company has abtained collateral in the form of a letter of credit from
the reinsurer to secure its obligadons. Under the provisions of the reinsurance agreement, the collateral must be equal to or greater than
102% of the reinsured reserves and the Company has immediate access to such collateral if necessary. Under this arrangement, the Company
ceded premiums earned of $67,969, $115,790 and $4,435,659 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respecuvely.

Effective October 1, 2003, the Company entered into a producer-owned reinsurance arrangement with an existing lender/deater customer
whereby 100% of that customer’s premiums (2long with the associated risk) was ceded 1o is PORC. For this reinsurance arrangement, the
Company has obtained collateral in the form of a trust from the reinsurer to secure its obligations. Under the provisions of the reinsurance
agreement, the collateral must be equal to or greater than 102% of the reinsured reserves and the Company has immediate access to such
collateral if necessary. Under this arrangement, the Company ceded premiums earned of $2,266,090, $1,727,303 and $894,717 for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Beginning in the second quarter of 2004, the Company entered into a quota share reinsurance arrangement with certain insurance carriers
whereby the Company assumed and ceded 50% of certain waste surcty bond business. Effective January 1, 2005, the reinsurance arrange-
ment was amended whereby the Company’s assumed participation was reduced from 50% to 25%. Effective August 1, 2006, the reinsur-
ance arrangement was further amended whereby the Company’s assumed participation was increased from 25% to 50%. Under this pro-
gram, the Company assumed premiums earned of $3,283,690, 54,302,509 and $1,980,492 during 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Also,
the Company ceded premiums earned of $1,235,624, $679,563 and $131,051 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

Effective January 1, 2005, the Company entered into a producer-owned reinsurance arrangement with a guaranteed auto protecton insur-
ance agent whereby 100% of that agent’s premiums (along with the associated risk) were ceded to its PORC. For this reinsurance arrange-
ment, the Company has obtained collateral in the form of a letter of credit to secure its obligations. Under the provisions of the reinsur-
ance agreement, the collateral must be equal to or greater than 102% of the reinsured reserves and the Company has immediate access to
such collateral if necessary. Under this arrangement, the Company ceded premiums earned of $1,987,640, $734,435 and 30 for the vears
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

In addition to the above, the Company has other reinsurance arrangements including two automobile lender/dealer PORC quota share
arrangements, several quota share arrangements for certain contract and escrow surety bond business and a reinsurance arrangement for a
vehicle service contract program. Under these arrangements, the Company ceded premiums earned of $708,430, $927,455 and $1,113,639
for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Also, the Company assumed premiums earned of $60,535, $0 and $0
for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

From 2001 until the end of the second quarter of 2004, the Company participated in a bail and immigration bond program. This program
was discontinued in the second quarter of 2004. For a more detailed description of this program, see “Discontinued Bond Program” helow.

A reconciliation of direct to net premiums, on both a written and earned basis, for the year ended December 31 is as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Premiums Premiums Premiums Premiums Premiums Premiums
written earned written earned written earned
Direct...ccecvnerereene $ 55,542,460 $ 52,583,987 $ 56,013,503 § 51,743,182 $ 56,234,221 § 54,069,958
Assumed 3,122,782 3,114,813 3,580,422 4,218,416 4,301,004 2,569,293
Ceded.....ooenecee. (9,859,208) (6,592,147) (7,396,438) (4,244,653) (2,126,535) (6,575,066)
$ 48,806,034 $ 49,106,653 $ 52197487 § 51,716,945 $ 58,408,670 § 50,064,183

The amounts of recoveries pertaining to reinsurance that were deducted from losses and LAE incurred for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004 were $3,390,786, $1,789,439 and $2,465,643, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
ceded reinsurance decreased commission expense incurred by $1,494,873, $1,054,259 and $597,927, respectively.

Discontinued Bond Program

Beginning in 200! and continuing into the second quarter of 2004, the Company participated as a reinsurer in a program covering bail and
immigration honds issued by four insurance carriers and produced by a bail bond agency (collectively, the “discontinued bond program” or
the “program”). The liability of the insurance carriers was reinsured to a group of reinsurers, including the Company. The Company
assumed 15% of the business from 2001 through 2003 and 5% of the business during the first half of 2004, This program was discontin-
ued in the second quarter of 2004.

Based on the design of the program, the bail bond agency was to obtain and maintain collateral and other security and to provide funding
for bond losses. The bail bond agency and its principals were responsible for all losses as part of their program administration. The insur-
ance carriers and, in turn, the reinsurers were not required to pay losses unless there was a failure of the bail bond agency. As the bonds
were to be 100% collateralized, any losses paid by the reinsurers were to be recoverable through liquidation of the collateral and collections
trom third party indemnitors,

In the second quarter of 2004, the Company came to believe that the discontinued bond program was not being operated as it had been rep-
resented to the Company by agents of the insurance carriers who had solicited the Company’s participation in the program, and the
Company began disputing certain issues with respect to the program, including but not limited to: 1) inaccurate/incomplete disclosures
relating to the program; 2) improper supervision by the insurance carriers of the bail bond agency in administering the program; 3} improp-
er disclosures by the insurance carriers through the bail bond agency and the reinsurance intermediaries during life of the program; and 4)
improper premium and claims administration. Consequently, during the second quarter of 2004, the Company ceased paying claims on the
program and retained outside legal counsel o review and defend its rights under the program.

Pending Arbitradion. During 2004 and 2005, the Company entered into arbitrations with all four insurance carriers that participated in the

discontinued bond program. As discussed below, during 2006, arbitrations with three of the insurance carriers concluded. The following is
a description of the last pending arbiration proceeding as of December 31, 2006:
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Highlands Avbitratien. Highlands Insurance Company (“Highlands”), one of the insurance carriers, was placed in receivership during 2003
(which receivership remains pending). On August 31, 2005, Highlands’ Receiver demanded arbitraton against the Company and other rein-
surers, including The Philadelphia Contributionship for the Insurance of Houses from Loss by Fire, American Healtheare Insurance
Company and various Lloyds Syndicates. In November 2003, the Company responded to this demand by secking rescission of the reinsur-
ance agreement, monerary damages for claims that were paid by the Company under the agreement and other appropriate relief. Highlands
is seeking to recover certain of its losses from the Company under the reinsurance agreement. No arbitration panel has yet been constiuted.

Arbitradon Developments ag of December 31, 2006.

Aegis Arbirration. During 2004, the Company entered into an arbitration proceeding with Aegis Security Insurance Company (“Aegis”), one
of the insurance carriers. Through this arbitradon, the Company was seeking rescission of the reinsurance agreements, monetary damages
for the claims that were paid by the Company under the agreements and other appropriate relief. Aegis was seeking to recover certain of
its losses from the Company under the reinsurance agreements. On January 18, 2006, the Company entered into a settlement agreement
with Aegis resolving all disputes between the Company and Aegis relating to the discontinued bond program. The sertlement also relieved
the Company from any potential future liabilities with respect to bonds issued by Aegis. As a result of this settlement agreement, the
Company recorded reserve redundancies of approximately $0.2 million during 2006.

Sirtus Arbitration. During 2004, the Company entered into an arbitration proceeding with Sirius America Insurance Company (*Sirius”),
one of the insurance carriers. Through this arbitradon, the Company was seeking rescission of the reinsurance agreement, monetary dam-
ages for claims that were paid by the Company under the agreement and other appropriate relief. Sirius was seeking to recover certain of
its losses from the Company under the reinsurance agreement. On July 26, 2006, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with
Sirius resolving all disputes between the Company and Sirius relating to the discontinued bond program. The settlement also relieved the
Company from any potential future liabilities with respect to honds issued by Sirius. As a result of this settlement agreement, the Company
recorded reserve deficiencies of approximately $0.1 million during 2006.

Harco Arbitration. During 2004, the Company entered into an arbitradon proceeding with Harco National Insurance Company ("Harco"),
one of the insurance carriers. Through this arbitraton, the Company was seeking rescission of the reinsurance agreement and other appro-
priate relief. Harco was seeking to recover certain of its losses from the Company under the reinsurance agreement. The arbitradon hear-
ing concluded in july 2006. In August 2006, the arbitration panel issued its Final Decision and Order ordering each of the reinsurers par-
ticipating in the arbitration, including the Company, to pay its proportionate share of past and future claims paid by Harco, subject to cer-
tain adjusuments, offsets and credits (the “Final Order™). Based on the Final Order and the most recent loss reports provided by Harco, the
Company recorded reserve deficiencies of approximately $2.0 miilion and return premiums of approximately $0.3 million during 2006,

Highlands Development. During the third quarter of 2006, the Company received information indicating that Highlands and the U.S.
Department of Homeland Security (“DHS”) reached a global seulement concerning Highlands’ immigraton bond ebligations, which set-
dement is subject to the approval of the court in which the receivership is pending. Based on this informadon, the Company recorded
reserve redundancies of approximately $0.1 million during 2006.

Loss and LAE Reserves. As of December 31, 2006, the Company recorded its loss and LAE reserves for the discontinued bond program
based primarily on loss reports received by the Company from Harco and Highlands. The following compares our loss and LAE reserves
for the discontinued bond program at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 (dollars in millions):

December 31, December 31,
Bail Bonds: 2006 2005
(CA5€ TESEIVES e evuemeeeeurcasisnssiesssessassssresseseeanems st stuseasss s sssrsssessnessseas $ 0.9 $ 121
Incurred but not reported (“IBINR™) reserves 4.2 5.4
Total bail bond reserves .............ccevvceeveiiierecneeeceeee e 5.1 17.5
Immigration Bonds:
a5 TESEIVES uuvvveureetsiecnasiesessiisessassssetsrans et sness b pasba s bsabsant sbessnnnsat 0.1 0.7
IBNR reserves 1.2 1.4
Total immigration bond reserves........oeeemcnessencnes 1.3 2.1
Total loss and LAE reserves.....ocecnsee s sesssssssssssessonee 8 6.4 § 19.6

The decrease in loss and LAE reserves from $19.6 million at December 31, 2005 to $6.4 million at December 31, 2006 was primarily due
to loss pavments made by the Company during 2006 in connection with the Aegis and Sirius settlements and the Harco Final Order.

Discontinued bond program losses and LAE were §1.8 million, $0.4 and $20.2 million during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively. The 2006 loss of $1.8 million was primarily auributable to the Harco Final Order combined with our increase in
Harco's reported losses. The $0.4 million loss recorded during 2005 was primarily attributable to an increase in reported losses from Harco
which was partially offset by a decrease in losses for Aegis due to a favorable ruling by the Aegis arbitration panel.

We believe there is potential for the Company to mitigate its wltmate liability to Highlands through the arbitration proceeding with

Highlands; however, because of the subjective nature inherent in assessing the final outcome of this arbitradon, management cannot est-
mate the probability of an adverse or favorable outcome as of December 31, 2006. In addidon, while outside counsel believes we have legal
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defenses under the reinsurance agreement, they are unable to assess whether an adverse outcome is probable or remote in the arbitration as
of December 31, 2006. In accordance with SFAS No. § “Accounting for Contingencies,” the Company is reserving to its best estimate of
the ultimate liability on the program at December 31, 2006 without any adjustment for positive arbitration outcome or a potential settle-
ment amount with Highlands. If the Company obtains information to determine an estimate of a final arbitration value or estimate a set-
tlement value, the Company will record changes in its reserves, if any, in the period that an estimate is made in accordance with SFAS No.
60. The Company does not intend to pay for any of the Highlands losses unless and untl the arbitration is settled on a murally agreeable
basis and/or a final binding judgment is made as to the Company’s ultimate liability.

Given the uncertainties of the outcome of the Highlands arbitration, uncertainties in the future loss information provided by Harco and
Highlands, and the inherent volatility in assumed reinsurance, acual losses incurred for the discontinued bond program could be material-
ly different from our estimated reserves. As 2 result, future loss development on the discontinued bond program could have a material effect
on the Company's results of operadons and/or financial conditon.

(17) RELATED PARTIES
In 1994, we entered into a Split-Dollar Insurance Agreement with a bank, as trustee, for the benefit of an officer and his spouse. The bank
has acquired a second-to-die policy on the lives of the insureds, in the aggregate face amount of $2,700,000. At December 31, 2006 and
2005, we had loaned the trustee $932,653 and $860,934, respectively, under this agreement for payment of insurance premiums, which is
included in loans to affiliates in the accompanying balance sheet. Amounts loaned by the Company to the trustee are to be repaid, in full,
without interest, from any of the following sources: (1) cash surrender value of the underlying insurance policies; (2) death benefits; and/or
(3) the sale of 15,750 common shares of the Company contributed by the officer to the wrust.

In February 2000, we entered into a Split-Dollar Insurance Agreement for the benefit of another officer in the face amount of $1,300,000.
All premiums paid by the Company in accordance with this agreement are to be repaid, in full, without interest, upon the death, retirement
or termination of the officer. The Company had paid premiums of $30,000 relating to this agreement; however, the Company is no longer
paying premiums under the agreement. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, $30,000 was included in loans to affiliates in the accompanying
balance sheet for payment of insurance premiums in accordance with this agreement,

We share Bancinsurance’s executive offices with certain of our consolidated subsidiaries. Certain expenses are allocated among them pur-
suant to cost sharing agreements.

(18) CONCENTRATIONS
The Company has the following concentrations of net premiums earned with one managing general agent within our property/casualty
insurance business segment for the years ended December 3 1:

2006 2005 2004

Product - Customer Type
Lender/Dealer-Managing General Agent ..., $ 7474823 $ 10,078,546 $ 11,081,680

(19) FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for which it is practica-
ble to estimate fair value:

Cash and short-term investments: The carrying amounts are reasonable estimates of fair value.

Fixed marurities and equity securities: Fair values are based upon quoted market prices or dealer quotes for comparable securities.

Trust preferved debt issued to affiliates: Fair value is estimated using discounted cash flow calculations based on interest rates currently being
offered for similar obligations with maturities consistent with the obligation being valued. As the interest rate adjusts regularly, the carry-
ing amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.
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The carrying amount and estimated fair value of financial instruments subject to disclosure requirements were as follows at December 31:

2006 2005
Carrying Estimated Carrying Esdmated
amount fair value amount fair value
Assets:
Held to maturity fixed maturities......oveiniiene. $ 4,793,584 $ 4,850,986 $ 4821629 § 4856624
Available for sale fixed maturities 68,547,886 68,547,886 73,012,240 73,012,240
Available for sale equity securities.......cceviine. 9,400,247 9,400,247 8,043,299 8,043,299
Short-term Investments ... eeeecoeeoeserreeereens 8,263,980 8,263,980 8,964,738 8,964,738
CaSheeiiecriceerrerrivvsrraeivverres s ceasnesse st erne s anne e e nes 1,823,191 1,823,191 4,528,875 4,528,875
Liabilites:
Trust preferred debr issued to affiliates............. 15,465,000 15,465,000 15,465,000 15,465,000

(20) QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

Our results of operations have varied, and in the future may vary, from quarter to quarter, principally because of fluctuations in our under-
writing results and/or realized gain (toss) activity. Consequenty, quarterly results are not necessarily indicative of full year results, nor are
they comparable to the results of other quarters. The following table sets forth certain unaudited quarterly consolidated financial and oper-
ating data:

2006
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Total TEVENUES .......veeeveivcrereisetrenensersn s ennaanne $13,088,556 $15,030,251 $16,294,028 $14,273,807
Income before federal income taxes.....ocooeenne. 2,059,882 1,851,635 2,832,145 80,174
NELINCOME ..ot erses st enssan s renrees 1,493,383 1,440,606 2,104,531 436,381
Net income per common share:
BasiC uuuccirirernieirsirresesnissnssssesrnnnesessssseesnrassenses 30 29 42 .09
Diluted ..o .30 .28 42 .08
2005
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
TOtal TEVENUES c.covvverreerr e rssansorens $ 14,556,205 § 15,953,712 $ 15,719,332 $ 14,407,261
Income (loss) before federal income taxes ......... (934,721) 2,966,904 1,960,225 4,178,237
Net Ineome {loS8). e srereeerireens (461,383) 2,140,092 1,501,631 3,113,734
Net income (loss) per commen share:
BaSIC ouereeereesereerree e ermese e rene et eit e (.09 43 30 .63
Diluted (09 43 30 .62

(21) LITIGATION

As discussed in Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company is a party to the Highlands arbitradon proceeding arising
from claims made under a reinsurance contract relating to the discontinued bond program. In addidon, the Aegis, Sirius and Harco arbi-
trations were resolved during 2006. See Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information concerning the dis-
continued bond program arbitrations.

In October 2006, the Company commenced arbitradon against Ernst & Young LLP (“E&Y™), the Company’s former independent regis-
tered public accounting firm, in accordance with the terms of the engagement letter between the Company and E&Y. In the arbitration, the
Company alleges that E&Y improperly withdrew the Company’s audit reports for the 2001 through 2003 fiscal years. The Company is seek-
ing monetary damages in excess of $21 million. E&Y has counterclaimed, seeking to recover in excess of $475,000 from the Company for
unpaid invoices and additional costs. No arbitration panel has yet been constituted. The Company does not believe this dispute will have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition or liquidity.

In addition, the Company is involved in various other lawsuits and legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business, some of which
involve claims for substantial amounts. We provide accruals for these items to the extent that we deemn the losses probable and reasonably
estimable. The outcome of litigation is subject to numerous uncertaintes. While the uldmate resolution of these legal proceedings could
be material to the Company’s results of operations in a future quarter or annual period, in the opinion of Company’s management, none
would likely have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condidon or liquidity.
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(22) SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE FOR EARNINGS PER SHARE

2006 2005 2004

INEt iNCOME {l088)..ccuriinimiincmminiriserrerssisess st senss st messss s s st sesass s e $ 5,474,901 $ 6,294.074 $(8,500,620)
Income (loss) available to common shareholders,

ASSUMING IUIHON. et caresi $ 5,474,901 $ 6294074  $(8,500,620)
Weighted-average common shares outstanding 4,976,010 4,972,700 4,950,437

Dilutive effect of outstanding options.......eviire . 87,394 34,638 -
Diluted COmMIMON SHATES ..eoveriivereremrrireeseeeeeeeeereseessssstsassessanenersessrassesssamssasesan 5,063,404 5,007,338 4,950,437
Basic net income (loss) per common share.................. $ 1.10 $ 1.27 h (1.72)
Diluted net income (loss) per commeon share $ 1.08 5 1.26 § (1.72)

(23) SEGMENT INFORMATION
As described in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company has three reportable business segments: (1) property/casual-
ty insurance; (2) municipal code publishing (through August 31, 2006); and (3) insurance agency. There are intersegment management and
commission fees. The allocations of certain general expenses within segments are based on a nunber of assumptions, and the reported oper-
ating results would change if different assumptions were applied. Depreciation and capital expenditures are not considered material. Segment
results for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

December 31, 2006
Municipal Reportable
Property/Casualty Code Insurance Segment
Insurance Publishing® Agency Total

Revenues from external customers  $ 49,787,642 $ 2,255,558 $ - $ 52,043,200
Intersegment revenues............... - - 1,349,987 1,349,987
Interest revenue .......ccvcoeneereenn 3,942,687 - 2,202 3,944,889
Interest exXpense .....oeeereeeeriennes 559 1,286 - 1,845
Depreciation and amortization .. 417,254 68,13¢ - 485,384
Segment profit........coiiiiinnne 4,805,033 317,366 1,344,110 6,466,509
Federal income tax expense........ 806,676 114,251 456,998 1,377,925
SeEMENE as5etS .urnirincrnrsnecrecans 118,717,764 - 254,064 118,971,828

® As discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements , the Company sold ALPC, its municipal code publishing segment,
on August 31, 2006, The municipal code publishing segment in the above table includes results through August 31, 2006.

December 31, 2005

Municipal Reportable
Property/Casualty Code Insurance Segment
Insurance Publishing Agency Total

Revenues from external customers  § 53,618,930 $ 3474917 $ 22387 $ 57,116,234
Intersegment revenues 4,410 - 1,188,678 1,193,088
[nterest revenue. .....verveerercomreecns 3,257,818 - 3,847 3,261,665
[nterest expense......omemernennnes 126 1,921 - 2,047
Depreciation and amortization .. 380,403 94,602 - 475,005
Segment profit ...oeecnceeeecniis 7,624,590 665,794 1,203,673 9,494,057
Federal income tax expense ....... 1,488,365 248,826 408,797 2,145,988
Segment aSSetS .c.irnirmerinniens 123,381,430 2,077,332 319,571 125,778,333
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December 31, 2004

Municipal Reportable
Property/Casualty Code Insurance Segment
Insurance Publishing Agency Total

Revenues from external customers  § 51,126,855 $ 4,005,415 § 68,080 $ 55,200,350
Intersegment revenues............... 5,880 - 377,893 383,773
Interest revenue...o.ooveesveneceiicenne 2,266,807 - 349 2,267,216
Interest expense. .. e (262) 1,921 - 1,659
Depreciadon and amortization .. 376,016 93,410 - 469,426
Segment profit (0ss) ....oireernnn (11,569,336) 503,702 402,592 (10,663,042)
Federal income tax expense (benefit) (4,440,684} 180,608 136,212 (4,123,804)
SeZMEILt ASSEES evrvomemmrmrecnscarrrnens 107,524,584 2,687,373 729,932 110,941,880

The following is a reconciliadon of the segment results to the consolidated amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements:

2006 2005 2004
Revenues
Total revenues for reportable SEEINENLS ...t e, $ 57,338,076 § 61,570987 § 57,851,339
Parent company gain {loss) 2,698,553 258,611 (62,844)
Elimination of intErSegINent FEVEMUES .......cvvvrercricesinesesessressssssessssstsnnssessesneass (1,349,987) (1,193,088) (383,773)
Total consolidated TEVEMUE ......i.vioeeremerrersressnse st brn s bsss s s pesssssssssas s ss s seae $ 58,686,642 & 60,636,510 § 57404,722
Profit
Total profit (loss) for reportable SEEMENLS..........coovermreciieienticeeeee st beeesas s seeeee $ 6,466,509 § 9494057 §(10,663,042)
Parent company gain (loss), net of intersegment eliminations 357,327 (1,323,412) (2,605,010)
Totat consolidated net income (loss) before income taxes..........coceievnvcneecornenrinenns $ 6823836 $§ 8,170,645 $(13,268,052)
Assets
Total assets for reportable SEEMENIS.....vv v $118,971,828 § 125,778,333 § 110,941,889
Parent COMPAnY a5SEL5 ..ot irn e crmss st b reca st b s erena e 6,492,158 3,771,162 11,096,804
Elimination of intersegment receivables.., {3,175,480) {1,213,660) {4,978,211)
Total conSOlAAted ZSSEES ....couviriiiirreermrrs e issmss e e rrses st ats s b anas et bessra bt eeneen $122.288,506 $ 128,335,835 § 117,060,472

(24) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

During 2003, the Company began issuing insurance policies which guarantee the performance of two automobile service contract providers
(the “Providers”). The Providers are owned and managed by a common group. The Company issues insurance policies for business pro-
duced by the Providers in five states. Qur insurance policy guarantees the fulfillment of the Providers’ obligation under the service contract.
Under the program, the Providers carry the related assets and reserves and are responsible for the premiums and claims administration. The
Company is obligated to pay a claim only if a Provider fails to do so. Under a reinsurance arrangement, the Company cedes 100% of this
business to another insurance carrier. In addidon, the Company obtained collateral in the form of a letter of credit to secure its obligadons
under the program. In February 2007, the Company was notified that one of the Providers entered into an assignment for the benefit of
creditors liquidatdon and that no new business is being produced by that Provider. The Company, with the assistance of its outside actuary,
has esdmated its potendal exposure under the program to be approximately $3.0 million as of December 31, 2006. Because our estimated
potential exposure is fully collateralized by a $4.3 million letter of credit and the loss exposure 1s 100% reinsured, we do not believe this
event will have a material adverse impact to the Company. However, if the Company is required to pay claims under the program and it is
unable to draw on the letter of credit and cannot collect on the reinsurance, then this program could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and/or operating results.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company entered into a producer-owned reinsurance arrangement with a new CPI customer whereby 100%
of that custorner’s premiums (along with the associated risk) were ceded to its PORC. For this program, the CPI coverage is voluntary and
is primarily for tractors and residential/commercial mowers as opposed to automaobiles. The Company receives a ceding commission based
on a percentage of the premjums ceded. For this reinsurance arrangement, the Company obtains collateral in the form of funds held and a
letter of credit to secure its obligations, Under the provisions of the reinsurance agreement, the collateral must be equal to or greater than
102% of the reinsured reserves and the Company has immediate access to such collateral if necessary.
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ITEM 9. CHAN IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH UNTANTS ON ACCO AND
DISCLOSURE

As previously reported, on July 12, 2005, the Audit Committee dismissed Emst & Young LLP (“E&Y") as the Company’s independent registered
public accounting firm. Also, on July 12, 2005, the Audit Committee engaged Daszkal Bolton LLP (“Daszkal”) as the Company’s independent reg-
istered public accounting firm for the fiscal years ending December 31, 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004 and 2005, Subsequently, the Audit Committee
engaged Daszkal as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.

The following is a description of all "disagreements” described in [tem 304(a}(1)(iv) of Regulation §-K and "reportable events” described in Item
304(a){(1)(v) of Regulation S-K that occurred with respect to the Company and E&Y during the period between January 1, 2002 and July 12, 2005.

As previously reported, on February 4, 2005, E&Y advised the Company that, because of developments related to the Company’s discontinued
bond program (1) E&Y was withdrawing its audit reports for the years 2001 through 2003 for the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
Ohio Indenmity and ALPC, (2} those audit reports and the completed interim reviews of the Company’s 2004 quarterty filings on Form 10-Q
should no longer be relied upon, (3) E&Y was unable to complete the audit of the Company’s 2004 financial statements at that time and (4) the
Company’s appointed actuary, who was employed by E&Y, was withdrawing his certification of Ohio Indemnity’s statutory reserves for the years
2001 through 2003.

In subsequent correspondence to the Company, E&Y informed the Company of the following:

(1) E&Y believed that the Company had a material weakness in its system of internal controls related to the discontinued bond program claim
reserves;

{(2) E&Y believed thar the Company did not have the internal controls related to the discondnued bond program necessary for the Company to
develop reliable financial statements;

{(3) E&Y believed that at the time the Company filed its 2003 Form 10-K in March 2004, management was aware that there had been significant
adverse claims development in the discontinued bond program. E&Y believed this information was not provided to E&Y on a timely basis in con-
nection with E& Y% audit of the Company’s 2003 financial statements. As a result, E&Y did not believe it could rely on the representations of man-
agement. Furthenmore, E&Y believed this adverse claims development information would have a significant material effect on the discontinued
bond program reserve levels recognized by the Company in its previously filed financial statements and material adjustments needed to be record-
ed in such previously filed financial statements; and

(#) EXY did not believe sufficient information existed to enable management or consulting actuaries to esdmate a liability for IBNR claims on the
discontdnued bond program at December 31, 2004.

As discussed above, at the time of its dismissal, E&Y believed that material adjustments needed to be recorded in the Company’ previously filed
financial statements for the discontinued bond program; however, E&Y did not qualitatively or quantitadvely disclose to the Company the mate-
rial adjustments they believed existed for each of the previously filed financial statements prior to its dismissal. As a result, the Company cannot
determine how E&Y would have accounted for or disclosed the discontinued bond program differently from how the Company has accounted for
and disclosed the discontinued bond program in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 9A. NTROLS AND PROCEDURES

With the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, our management has evaluated the effectiveness of our dis-
closure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act")) as of the
end of the period covered by this repart. Based upon that evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have conclud-
ed that such disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of the end of the period covered by this report.

In additon, there were no changes during the quarter ended December 31, 2006 in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in

Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 of the Exchange Act) that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OQTHER INFORMATION

‘There is no information that was required to be disclosed in a report on Form 8-K during the fourth quarter of 2006 that has not been reported
on a Form 8-K.

55




PART ITI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXF OFFICERS AND CORPORATE RNANCE

The informadon required by this Trem 10 is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive Proxy Statement relating to the 2007 Annual

Meeting of Sharcholders.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive Proxy Statement relating to the 2007 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders.

12. SECURITY F CERTAIN BENEFI WNERS AND AGEMENT AND RELATED
SHARFHOQLDER MATTERS

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following table sets forth the number of our common shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding optiens, warrants and rights under our
equity compensation plans, the weighted-average exercise price of the outstanding options, warrants and rights under our equity compensadon
plans and the number of our common shares remaining available for future issuance under our equity compensation plans, each as of December
31, 2006. Each of our equity compensation plans has been approved by our shareholders.

@ b @
Number of securities remaining
Number of securities to Weighted-average available for future issuance
be issued upon exercise exercise price of under equity compensation plans
of outstanding options, outstanding options, {excluding securides reflected in
Plan category warrants and rights warrants and rights column (a))
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders............ 827,500 5 532 357,000
Equity compensation plans
not approved by security holders ..... None None None
Total oo 827,500 552 35,000

Other informadon required by this Item 12 is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive Proxy Statement relatng to the 2007 Annual
Meetng of Shareholders.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item 13 is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive Proxy Statement relating to the 2007 Annual
Meetng of Shareholders.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 14 is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive Proxy Statement relating to the 2007 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders. ‘
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PART IV

I'TEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STA NT SCHEDUL

(@) The following documents are filed as a part of this report: Page in
this
(1) Financial Statements Report

@)

3

The following financial statements, which are included in Item 8 of Part IT of this report:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 30
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 3l
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 32
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 34
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2003 and 2004 35
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 36

Financial Statement Schedules

The following financial statement schedules are included in this Item 13 of Part IV of this report:

Schedule I -- Summary of investments - other than investments in related partes 60

Schedule T -- Condensed finaneial information of Bancinsurance Corporation (Parent Company Only) 61

All other schedules are omitted because of the absence of conditions under which they are required or the required information is
given in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

Exhibits

The following exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K are filed as part of this report. For convenience of reference,
the exhibits are listed according to the numbers appearing in the Exhibit Table to Item 601 of Regulation S-K.

3(a)

3(b)

3(c)

3(d)

Ha)

+b)

4c)

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporadon of Bancinsurance Corporation {reference is made to Exhibit 3(a)
of Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1984 (file number 0-8738), which is incarporated herein by
reference).

Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Bancinsurance Corporation dated
March 10, 1993 (reference is made to Exhibit 3(b) of Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 (file
number (-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Bancinsurance Corporation (reflecting amendments through
March 10, 1993) (for SEC reporting purposes only) (reference is made to Exhibit 3(c) of Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2001 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Amended and Restated Code of Regulations of Bancinsurance Corporation (reference is made to Exhibit 3{(b} of Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1984 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Credit Agreement dated January 23, 1993 by and berween Bancinsurance Corporation and The Fifth Third Bank of
Columbus, Ohio (reference is made to Exhibit 4(a) of Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 (file
number (-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated November 5, 1993 by and between Bancinsurance Corporation and The
Fifth Third Bank of Columbus, Ohio (reference is made to Exhibit 4(b) of Formn 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2001 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated October 19, 1994 by and between Bancinsurance Corporation and

‘The Fifth Third Bank of Columbus, Ohio (reference is made to Exhibit 4(c) of Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2001 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).
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Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated November 24, 1999 by and between Bancinsurance Corporation and
The Fifth Third Bank of Columbus, Ohio (reference is made to Exhibit 4(d) of Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2001 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated December 11, 2000 by and between Bancinsurance Corporation and
The Fifth Third Bank of Columbus, Ohio (reference is made to Exhibit 4(e) of Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2001 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July 1, 2002 by and between Bancinsurance Corporation and The Fifth
Third Bank of Columbus, Ohio (reference is made to Exhibit 4(f) of Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30,
2002 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Sixth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated October 20, 2003 by and between Bancinsurance Corporation and The
Fifth Third Bank of Columbus, Ohio (reference is made to Exhibit 4(a) of Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
September 30, 2003 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Indenture dated as of December 4, 2002 by and berween Bancinsurance Corporation and State Street Bank and Trust
Company of Connecticut, National Association (reference is made to Exhibit 4(g} of Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2002 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust dated as of December 4, 2002 by and among Bancinsurance Corporatian,
State Street Bank and Trust Company of Connecdcut, National Association, John Sokel, Si Sokol and Sally Cress
(reference is made to Exhibit 4(h) of Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 (file number 0-8738),
which is incorporated herein by reference).

Guarantee Agreement dated as of December 4, 2002 by and between Bancinsurance Corporation and State Street Bank
and Trust Company of Connecticut, Natonal Associadon (reference is made to Exhibit 4(i) of Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference),

Indenture dated as of September 30, 2003 by and between Bancinsurance Corporation and JPMorgan Chase Bank
(reference is made to Exhibit 4(b) of Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2003 (file number (-8738),
which is incorporated herein by reference).

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trusc dated as of September 30, 2003 by and ameng Bancinsurance
Corporation, JPMorgan Chase Bank, Chase Manhattan Bank USA, National Associadon, John Sokol, Si Sokal and
Sally Cress (reference is made to Exhibit 4(c) of Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2003 (file
number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Guarantee Agreement dated as of September 30, 2003 by and between Bancinsurance Corporation and JPMorgan
Chase Bank (reference is made to Exhibit {d) of Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2003 (file
number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement effective as of June 15, 2006 by and between Bancinsurance Corporaton and
Fifth Third Bank of Columbus, Ohio (reference is made to Exhibit 4.1 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 16,
2006 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Eleventh Amendment and Restatement of Note effective as of June 15, 2006 by and between Bancinsurance
Corporation and Fifth Third Bank of Columbus, Ohio (reference is made o Exhibir 4.2 of Form 8-K filed June 16,
2006 {file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Amended Tax Allocation Agreement by and between Bancinsurance Corporaton and Ohio Indemnity Campany
(reference is made to Exhibit 10(d) of Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1983 (file number 0-8738),
which is incorporated herein by reference).

Bancinsurance Corporation 1984 Stock Opton Plan (reference is made to Exhibit 10(d) of Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1984 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference}.

Bancinsurance Corporation 1994 Stock Option Plan (reference is made to Exhibit 10(f) of Form 10-Q for the fiscal
quarter ended June 30, 1994 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Employment Agreement dated May 17, 2000 by and between Ohio Indemnity Company and Daniel J. Stephan

(reference is made to Exhibit 10(g) of Form 10-0Q) for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2002 (file number 0-8738),
which is incorporated herein by reference).
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10{e)# Bancinsurance Corporation 2002 Stock Incentive Plan (reference is made to Exhibit 10 of Form $-8 dated June 28,
2002 (file number 333-91396), which is incorporated herein by reference).

10¢F# Undertaking Agreement dated April 14, 2005 berween Bancinsurance Corporation and Si Sokol (reference is made to
Exhibit 99.1 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 15, 2005 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein
by reference).

10(g)y# Undertaking Agreement dated April 14, 2005 between Bancinsurance Corporation and John S. Sokel (reference is
made to Exhibit 99.2 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 15, 2005 (file number 0-8738), which is
incorporated herein by reference).

10(h)# Undertaking Agreement dated April 14, 2005 between Bancinsurance Corporation and Sally J. Cress (reference is made
to Exhibit 99.3 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 15, 2005 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated

herein by reference).

103 First Amendment to Undertaking Agreement dared October 17, 2005 between Bancinsurance Corporation and Sally
J. Cress (reference is made to Exhibir 99.1 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 21, 2005 (file number
(-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

10(4# Bancinsurance Corporation 2002 Stock Incentve Plan Form of Award Agreement (reference is made to Exhibit 10.1
of Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 6, 2006 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

10(k)y# Bancinsurance Corporation 2006 Fiscal Year Executive Officer Bonus Plan (reference is made to Exhibit 10.1 of
Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 24, 2006 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

10(1) Stock Purchase Agreement between A.L.P. Acquisidon Co., Inc. and Bancinsurance Corporaton dated August 31,
2006 (reference is made to Exhibit 10.1 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 7, 2006 (file number 0-8738),

which is incorporated herein by reference).

10{m)# Bancinsurance Corporation 2007 Fiscal Year Execuave Officer Bonus Plan (reference is made to Exhibit 10.1 of
Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 21, 2006 (file number (-8738), which is incorporated herein by
reference).

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant as of December 31, 2006,

23 Consent of Daszkal Bolton LLP.

3L Certificadon of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 under the Securites Exchange Act of 1934, as

Adopted Pursuant to Secdon 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2" Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1* Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Prineipal Financial Officer Pursuant o 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

*  Filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

# Constitutes a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

(b) Exhibits
See Item 15(a)(3).

(c) Financial Statement Schedules

See Item 15(2)(2).
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BANCINSURANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule ! - SUMMARY OF INVESTMENTS - OTHER
THAN INVESTMENT IN RELATED PARTIES

December 31, 2006

Column A Column B Column C Coluinn D
Type of Investment Cost (1) Estimated Amount at which
fair shown in the
value balance sheet
Held to matunty:
Fixed mamrites:
Governments $ 1,356,518 $ 1,355469 $ 1,356,518
Political subdivisions 2,030,077 2,037,707 2,030,077
Special revenue and assessments 1,406,989 1,457,810 1,406,989
Total held to maturity 4,793,384 4,850,986 4,793,584
Available for sale:
Fixed maturities:
States, territories and
possessions 4,209,642 4,248,063 4,248,063
Polideal subdivisions 1,496,513 1,515,050 1,515,050
Special revenue and assessments 58,165,494 53,863,798 58,863,798
Industrial and miscellaneous 4,063,130 3,920,975 3,920,975
Total available for sale fixed
maturides 67,934,779 68,547,886 68,547,886
Equity securities:
Preferred stock:
Banks, trusts and insurance
companies 250,003 286,298 286,298
Common stock:
Banks, trusts and insurance
cormpanies 1,074,623 1,662,368 1,662,368
Industrial and miscellaneous 922,696 1,412,840 1,412,840
Investment in mutual funds 6,029,985 6,038,741 6,038,741
Total available for sale equity securities 8,277,307 9,400,247 9,400,247
Short-term investments 8,263,980 8,263,980 8,263,980
Orther invested assets 751,936 1,021,450 751,936
Total investments 3 90,0219‘86 b 92,0841549 $ 91,757,633

(1) Original cost of equity securities, adjusted for any write-downs, and, as to fixed maturities and short-term investments, original cost reduced

by repayments, write-downs and adjusted for amortization of premiums or accrual of discounts.

60




BANCINSURANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule IT - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF
BANCINSURANCE CORPORATION (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

Assets 2006 2005
Cash $ 104,407 ) 172,751
Unaffiliated investments 751,936 807,531
Investments in subsidiaries (at equity) 46,237,424 43,379,394
FFederal income tax recoverable 271,052 -
Receivable from subsidiaries, net 2,672,990 -
Other 2,691,773 2,308,401
Total assets 52,729,582 46,668,077
L.iabilites and Shareholders’ Equi
Trust preferred debt issued to affiliates 15,465,000 15,465,000
Federal income tax payable - 2,060
Payable to subsidiaries, net - 525,271
Other 898,963 596,120
Shareholders’ equity 16,365,619 30,079,626
Total liabilides and shareholders’ equity $ 52,729,582 $ 46,668,077
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BANCINSURANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule I - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF
BANCINSURANCE CORPORATION (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Other income

Net realized gain on sale of affiliate
Interest expense

General and administratve expenses

Income (loss) before tax benefit
and equity in earnings of
subsidiaries

Federal income tax benefit

Income {loss) before equity in
earnings of subsidiaries

Equity in distributed and undistributed earnings of
subsidiaries

Net income (loss)

62

Years ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
$ 187,184 $ 288,842 $ 406318

2,511,891 - .
(1,427,241) (1,150,315) (892,804)
(914,507) (461,938) (1,364,788)
357,327 (1,323,411) (1,851,274)
28,990 269,416 643,568
386,317 (1,053,995) (1,207,706)
5,088,584 7,348,069 (7,292,914)
$ 5,474,901 $ 6,294,074 $ (8,500,620)




BANCINSURANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule II - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF
BANCINSURANCE CORPORATION (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Cash flows from operating activides:
Net income (loss) $ 5,474,901 § 6,294,074 $ (8,500,620)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash used in
operating activities:
Equity in distributed and undistributed net earnings of subsidiaries (5,088,584) (7,348,069 7,292,914
Net realized gain on sale of affiliate (2,511,891) - -
Net realized gains on disposal of furniture and equipment - (658) (183)
Net realized (gains) losses on investments (74,801) (139,979) 286,313
Depreciation and amartization 135,162 145,045 147,428
Deferred federal income tax expense {(benefit) (230,484) 254,057 (306,506)
Change in operating assets and Kabilites:
Notes receivable (104,148) 102,718 58,664
Loans to affiliates (71,719) (71,719 (71,719
Accounts receivable/payable from/to subsidiaries (3,198,261) (4,392,848) 5,398,125
Other assets 18,218 4,138,556 (3,731,229)
Other liabilities 207,578 (32,974 (685,312)
Net cash used in operating activites (5,444,029) (1,051,797) (112,125)
Cash flows from investing activides:
Proceeds from sale of affiliate, net 4,306,901 - -
Proceeds from available for sale fixed maturides
sold, redeemed or matured - 1,393,341 764,257
Proceeds from available for sale equity
securities sold 93,426 2,000,673 735,683
Cost of investnents purchased:
Awailable for sale fixed maturities - - {964,535)
Available for sale equity securides - (79,051) (859,367)
Other (95,265) (49,928) (171,646)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activides 4,305,062 3,265,035 (495,608)
Cash flows from finaneing activities:
Proceeds from note payable to bank - - 3,500,000
Repayments of note payable to bank - (500,000) (3,000,000)
Proceeds from stock options exercised 38,880 - 252,705
Dividends from subsidiaries 1,031,743 2,462,563 -
Capiral contribution to subsidiary - (4,200,000 -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1,070,623 (2,237.437) 752,705
Net increase {decrease) in cash (68,344) (24,199) 144,972
Cash at beginning of year 172,751 196,950 51,978
Cash at end of year $ 104,407 $§ 172,751 $ 196,950
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid (received) during the year for:
| Interest $ 1,421,109 $ 1,137,074 $ 884457
Federal income taxes $ 283,091 $ (58,842) $ -
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Secton 13 or 15(d) of the Securites Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Bancinsurance Corporation

Dated: March 7, 2007 By /s/ John §, Sokol
John 8. Sokel
Acting Chief Executive Officer,
President and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behaif of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Dated:  March 7, 2007 /s/ _John S. Sokol
John §. Sokol
Acting Chief Executive Officer,
President and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: March 7, 2007 /s/Douglas G, Borror Dated:  March 7, 2007 /s/ Kenton R. Bowen
Douglas G. Borror ‘ Kenton R. Bowen
Director Director
Dated: March 7, 2007 /s/_Stephen P Close Dated:  March 7, 2007 /s/ Daniel D, Harkins
Stephen P. Close Daniel D. Harkins
Director Director
Dated: March 7, 2007 /s/ Saul Sokol Dated:  March 7, 2007 /s/ _Matthew D. Walter
Saul Sokol - Matthew . Walter
Director Director
Datred: March 7, 2007 s W a

Matthew C. Nolan
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Secretary
{Principal Financial Officer
and Principal Accounting Officer)
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INDEX OF EXHIBITS
The following exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation 5-K are filed as part of this report. For convenience of reference, the exhibits are
listed according to the numbers appearing in the Exhibit Table to Item 601 of Regulation §-K

Exhibit No. Deseription

3(a)

3(b)

30

3(d)

Ha)

Hb)

He

Hd)

He)

40

He)

4(h)

i)

4)

HK)

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Bancinsurance Corporation (reference is made to Exhibit 3(a) of Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1984 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporaton of Bancinsurance Corporation dated March 1€,
1993 (reference is made to Exhibit 3(b) of Form 10-K for the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2001 (file number 0-8738), which is
incorporated herein by reference).

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Bancinsurance Corporation (reflecting amendments through March 10, 1993) (for
SEC reporting purposes only) (reference is made to Exhibit 3(c) of Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 {file
number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Amended and Restated Code of Regulations of Bancinsurance Corporation (reference is made to Exhibit 3(b) of Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 1984 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Credit Agreement dated January 25, 1993 by and between Bancinsurance Corporation and The Fifth Third Bank of Columbus, Ohio
(reference is made to Exhibit 4(a) of Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 {file number 0-8738), which is
incorporated herein by reference).

First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated November 5, 1993 by and between Bancinsurance Corporation and The Fifth Third
Bank of Columbus, Ohio (reference is made to Fxhibit 4(b) of Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 {file number
0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated October 19, 1994 by and between Bancinsurance Corporation and The Fifth Third
Bank of Columbus, Ohio (reference is made to Exhibit 4(c) of Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 (file number
0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated November 24, 1999 by and between Bancinsurance Corporation and The Fifth Third
Bank of Columbus, Ohio (reference is made to Exhibit 4(d) of Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 (file number
0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated December 11, 2000 by and between Bancinsurance Corporation and The Fifth Third
Bank of Columbus, Ohio (reference is made to Exhibit 4{e) of Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 (file number
0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July 1, 2002 by and between Bancinsurance Corporation and The Fifth Third Bank of
Columbus, Ohio (reference is made to Exhibit 4(f) of Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2002 (file number 0-8738),
which is incorporated herein by reference).

Sixth Amendmenr to Credit Agreement dated October 20, 2003 by and between Bancinsurance Corporation and The Fifth Third
Bank of Columbus, Ohie {reference is made to Exhibit 4{a} of Form 10Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2003 (file number
0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Indenture dated as of December 4, 2002 by and berween Bancinsurance Corporation and State Street Bank and Trust Company of
Connecticut, National Association (reference is made to Exhibit 4(g) of Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 (file
number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust dated as of December 4, 2002 by and among Bancinsurance Corporation, State Street
Bank and Trust Company of Connecticut, National Association, John Sokol, Si Sokol and Sally Cress (reference is made to Exhibit
4(h) of Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Guarantee Agreement dated as of December 4, 2002 by and between Bancinsurance Corporation and State Street Bank and Trust
Company of Connecticut, National Association (reference is made to Exhibit 4(i} of Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2002 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Indenture dated as of September 30, 2003 by and between Bancinsurance Corporation and JPMorgan Chase Bank (reference is made

1o Exhibit 4(b) of Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2003 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by
reference).
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L0(g)#

10(hy#

10G)#

10G)#

10(ky#

10(1)

10{m)#

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust dated as of September 30, 2003 by and among Bancinsurance Corporation,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, Chase Manhattan Bank USA, National Association, John Sokol, Si Sokol and Sally Cress (reference is
made to Exhibit 4(c) of Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2003 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated
herein by reference).

Guarantee Agreement dated as of September 30, 2003 by and between Bancinsurance Corporation and JPMorgan Chase Bank
{reference is made to Exhibit 4(d} of Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended Septcmber 30, 2003 (file number 0-8738), which is
incorporated herein by reference).

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement effective as of June 15, 2006 by and between Bancinsurance Corporaton and Fifth
Third Bank of Columbus, Ohio (reference is made to Exhibit 4.1 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 16, 2006
(file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Eleventh Amendment and Restatement of Note effective as of June 15, 2006 by and between Bancinsurance Corporation and
Fifth Third Bank of Columbus, Ohio (reference is made to Exhibit 4.2 of Form 8-K filed June 16, 2006 (file number 0-8738),
which is incorporated herein by reference).

Amended Tax Allocation Agreement by and between Bancinsurance Corporation and Ohio Indemnity Company (reference is
made to Exhibit 10(d) of Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1983 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated
herein by reference).

Bancinsurance Corporation 1984 Stock Option Plan (reference is made ta Exhibit 10(d) of Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1984 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Bancinsurance Corporation 1994 Stock Option Plan (reference is made 1o Exhibit 10({f} of Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
June 30, 1994 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Employment Agreement dated May 17, 2000 by and between Ohic Indemnity Company and Daniel J. Stephan (reference is
made to Exhibit 10(g) of Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2002 {file number 0-8738), which is incorporated
herein by reference).

Bancinsurance Corporatdon 2002 Stock Incentive Plan (reference is made to Exhibit 10 of Form S§-8 dated June 28, 2002 (file
number 333-91396), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Undertaking Agreement dated April 14, 2005 between Bancinsurance Corporation and Si Sokol (reference is made to Exhibit
99.1 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 15, 2005 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Undertaking Agreement dated April 14, 2005 between Bancinsurance Corporation and John S. Sokol (reference is made to
Exhibit 99.2 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 15, 2005 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by
reference).

Undertaking Agreement dated April 14, 2005 between Bancinsurance Corporation and Sally J. Cress (reference is made to
Exhibit 99.3 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 15, 2005 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by

reference).

First Amendment to Undertaking Agreemeént dated October 17, 2005 between Bancinsurance Corporatott and Sally J. Cress
(reference is made to Exhibit 99.1 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 21, 2005 (file number 0-8738), which is
incorporated herein by reference).

Bancinsurance Corporation 2002 Stock Incentive Plan Form of Award Agreement (reference is made to Exhibit 10.1 of Current
Report on Form 8-K filed June 6, 2006 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Bancinsurance Corporation 2006 Fiscal Year Executive Officer Bonus Plan (reference is made to Exhibit 10.1 of Current Report
on Form 8-K filed July 24, 2006 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

Srock Purchase Agreement between A.L.P. Acquisition Co., Inc. and Bancinsurance Corporation dated August 31, 2006
{reference is made to Exhibit 10.1 of Current Report on Form 8§-K filed September 7, 2006 (file number 0-8738), which is

incorporated herein by reference).

Bancinsurance Corporation 2007 Fiscal Year Executive Officer Bonus Plan (reference is made to Exhibit 10.1 of Current Report
on Form 8-K filed December 21, 2006 (file number 0-8738), which is incorporated herein by reference).

66



Subsidiaries of the Registrant as of December 31, 2006.
Consent of Daszkal Bolton LLP.

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Constitutes a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this Annual Report

on Form 10-K.
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Subsidiaries of the Registrant as of December 31, 2006

Bancinsurance
Corporation

Exhibit 21

Ohio Indemnity Company
(An Insurance Company)
Incorporated in Ohio

Ultimate Setvices Agency, LLC

{An Insurance Agency)
Organized in Chio

I

BIC Sututory Trust 1
(A Trust)
Organized in Connecticut

.
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BIC Statutory Trust IT
{A Trust)
Organized in Delaware




Exhibit 23(a)

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statements on Form S-8 permining to the 1984 Stock Option Plan, the 1994
Stock Option Plan and the 2002 Stock Incentive Plan, of our report dated February 23, 2007, with respect to the consolidated financial state-
ments and schedules of Bancinsurance Corporation and subsidiaries included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December
31, 20086.

/s/ Daszkal Bolton LLLP
Boca Raton, Fiorida

March 7, 2007
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATTION OF PRINCIPAL EXECTUIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, John §. Sokol, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Bancinsurance Corporation;

-2

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omirt o state a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect o the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented
in this reporg

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a 13(c) and 15d 15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

©)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

i
disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluadon of internal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a)  all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b} any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date:  March 7, 2007 /s/ John 8. Sokol

John S. Sokol
Acting Chief Executive Officer,
President and Director
{Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Matthew C. Nolan, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Formn 10-K of Bancinsurance Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessarv to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, nat misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3 Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented
in this reporg;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
{as defined in Exchange Act Rules [3a 15(e) and 13d 15(¢)) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

©)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within rhose entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reportng; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a)  all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
nformation; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: _March 7, 2007 /s/_Matthew C. Nolan

Matthew C. Nolan
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Secretary
(Principal Financial Officer)
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Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 US.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Bancinsurance Corporation (the "Company™ on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31,
2006 as filed with the Securites and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report’), the undersigned, John 5. Sokol, Acting Chief
Executive Officer, President and Director of the Company, and Matthew C. Nolan, Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and
Secretary of the Company, each certify, pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Secton 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002, that:

1)) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a} or 15(d) of the Securiries Exchange Act of
1934; and

) The information contained in'the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

/s/ John S. Sokol

John S. Sokol

Acting Chief Executve Officer,
President and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)
March 7, 2007

/s/ Matthew C. Nolan

Matthew C. Nolan

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
"Treasurer and Secretary

(Principal Financial Officer)

March 7, 2007

72




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Si Sokol
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

John S. Sokol

President and Acting Chief Executive Officer

Douglas G. Borror
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Dominion Homes, Inc.

Kenton R, Bowen
Executive Vice President
Teleperformance USA

Stephen P. Close
Senior Vice President
Coinmach Corporation

Daniel D. Harkins
Private Investor

Saul Sokol
Private Investor

Matthew D. Walter

Managing Partner

Talisman Capital Partners, LLC
Chariman and Chief Executive Officer
Bound Tree Medical Products, Inc.

OFFICERS

Si Sokol
Chief Executive Officer

John 5. Sokol
President and
Acting Chief Executive Officer

Matthew C. Nolan
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Secretary

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Corporate Headquarters
Bancinsurance Corporation
250 East Broad Street
Columbus, Ohio 43215
www.bancins.com

(614) 220-5200

Subsidiaries

Qhio indemnity Company
250 East Broad Street
Columbus, Ohio 43215
www.ohioindemnity.com
(614) 228-2800

Ultimate Services Agency, LLC
250 East Broad Street
Columbus, Ohio 43215

BIC Statutory Trust | and Trust I
250 East Broad Street
Columbus, Chio 43215

Independent Accountants
Daszkal Bolton LLP
Boca Raton, Florida

Legal Counsel
Vorys, Sater, Seymour and Pease LLP
Columbus, Ohio

Transfer Agent

Communications regarding changes of address, transf
of shares and lost certificates should be directed to th
Company's stock transfer agent and register:

Computershare Investor Services, LLC
250 Royall Street, Mail Stop 1A
Canton, MA ozo021

SEC Form 10-K

A copy of the Bancinsurance Form 10-K as filed with th
Securities and Exchange Commission is available to
shareholders without charge upon written requestto t
Corporate Secretary.
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